
 
 
 

Families and Wellbeing Policy and 
Performance Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 2 February 2015 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Lyndzay Roberts 
Tel: 0151 691 8262 
e-mail: lyndzayroberts@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

/ PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 

pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare whether they are 
subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be considered 
and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Families and Wellbeing Policy and Performance Committee held on 2 
December 2014. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



3. MINUTES OF ATTAINMENT SUB COMMITTEE - 10 DECEMBER 
2014 (Pages 7 - 12) 

 
4. REPORT OF THE CHAIR FROM MEETINGS OF THE HEALTH & 

CARE PERFORMANCE PANEL HELD ON 19 NOVEMBER 2014 
AND 11 DECEMBER 2014 (Pages 13 - 22) 

 
5. SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICE - PROPOSAL FOR SERVICE CHANGE 

(Pages 23 - 30) 
 
6. WIRRAL UNIVERSITY TEACHING HOSPITAL - COST 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN (Pages 31 - 48) 
 
7. WIRRAL UNIVERSITY TEACHING HOSPITAL - COMPLIANCE 

WITH THE 4 HOUR STANDARD (Pages 49 - 52) 
 
8. CLATTERBRIDGE CANCER CENTRE RE-ORGANISATION 

PROPOSALS - OUTCOMES OF THE  JOINT CHESHIRE AND 
MERSEYSIDE SCRUTINY REVIEW (Pages 53 - 56) 

 
9. COMMISSIONING COMMUNITY SERVICES, MANAGING THE 

MARKET AND REDUCING RELIANCE ON RESIDENTIAL AND 
NURSING CARE SERVICES (Pages 57 - 62) 

 
10. LEISURE REVIEW - PROGRESS UPDATE (Pages 63 - 68) 
 
11. ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR WITH AN EMPHASIS ON YOUTH 

(Pages 69 - 82) 
 
12. CHILD POVERTY STRATEGY (Pages 83 - 118) 
 
13. FAMILIES AND WELLBEING DASHBOARD (INCLUDING PUBLIC 

HEALTH) (Pages 119 - 142) 
 
14. FINANCIAL MONITORING (Pages 143 - 156) 
 
15. WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 157 - 162) 
 
 
 



FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY AND 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday, 2 December 2014 

 
Present: Councillor  D Roberts (in the Chair) 
 
 Councillors P Brightmore 

T Johnson 
T Norbury 
W Smith 
C Spriggs 
 

J Williamson 
W Clements 
P Hayes 
M Hornby 
A Brighouse 
P Cleary 
 

Also Present:  
 
Ms Val McGee, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Trust  
 
Deputies:  
 
Councillor G Watts (in place of Councillor Berry) 
Councillor J Salter (in place of Councillor  McLaughlin) 
 

  

    
 

28 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Councillor Roberts indicated that she would be chairing this meeting as 
Councillor McLaughlin was with her daughter who had recently given birth. 
 
Councillor Roberts further indicated that item 5 – Traded Services – Proposed 
Changes to Service Delivery would be taken as the first item of business on 
the agenda. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the best wishes and congratulations of the Committee be conveyed 
to Councillor McLaughlin on the birth of her granddaughter. 
  
 

29 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / 
PARTY WHIP  
 
Councillor Hornby declared a personal interest by virtue of his appointment as 
a trustee/Director of the Voluntary and Community Action Wirral. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Councillor Roberts declared a personal interest by virtue of her appointment 
on the Management Committees of Arch Initiatives and Wirral Council for 
Voluntary Service. 
 
 

30 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the Families and Wellbeing Policy and Performance 
Committee held on 3 November 2014 be approved. 
 
 
 

31 TRADED SERVICES - PROPOSED CHANGES TO SERVICE DELIVERY  
 
The Committee considered a joint presentation from the Strategic Director 
Families and Wellbeing and the Director of Childrens Services in relation to 
the proposed changes to service delivery of traded services. 
 
The Strategic Director Families and Wellbeing and the Director of Children’s 
Services gave an overview of the ambition which was to ensure that schools 
continue to have access to a high quality, value for money services that will 
support attainment; changing landscape- why we need change; options; the 
journey so far; key features of the model and the next steps. 
 
In response to Members, the Strategic Director, Families and Wellbeing and 
the Director of Children’s Services explained that the work was further 
supported by the Cabinet Office, Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG), SOLACE and the Local Government Association (LGA) 
through an award as part of the national Delivering Differently Programme. 
The award comprised of £100K worth of bespoke consultancy support. They 
reiterated that private companies would not be involved in the final model and 
that Wirral and Cheshire West and Chester would be 50/50 shareholders. 
 
Further to Members Comments and questions the Director of Children’s 
Services explained that the reason for choosing to join with Cheshire West 
and Chester and not another neighbouring authority was that Wirral had a 
good relationship from which to build on and there was a mutual trust.  In 
addition, some children attend Cheshire West and Chester schools. 
 
In relation to the transferring of staff, staff would be TUPEd over with the 
same terms and conditions; further work was to be done on finalising the 
details on this.  
 
The Director of Children’s Services indicated that traded services would start 
from the 1st April starting with the appointment of the Chief Executive.   

Page 2



 
In response to concerns raised by a Member regarding staff TUPE’d over 
from the Council, the Strategic Director Children and Families indicated stress 
testing and risk sharing analysis had been undertaken by officers to ensure its 
sustainability. Detailed financial modelling had also been undertaken to 
ensure the company is financially viable. 
 
The Director of Childrens Services indicated that the new company would 
allow the department to become more responsive to schools needs; she 
indicated that the Council had a good strong basis and ethos which would be 
replicated in the new company. 
 
The Director of Childrens Services indicated that consultation had been 
undertaken with head teachers, governors, schools forum, WASH at various 
meetings, three newsletters had been sent out to staff and various meetings 
had been held with the trade unions and discussions had been held with head 
teachers at Cheshire West and Chester schools. As detailed within the 
Cabinet report, officers had spent a lot of time looking at the model and risks 
to ensure Wirral had the ‘best fit’. 
 
In response to a Members question, the Director of Childrens Services 
indicated that training for governors would be provided by the new company, 
however, core statutory services such as education health care plans, and 
core subjects such as physical education and music would be staying within 
the Council. 
 
RESOLVED: That  
 
(1) the Strategic Director, Families and Wellbeing and the Director of 

Childrens Services be thanked for their informative presentation; 
and  

 
(2) continuing updates be provided to the Committee. 

 
32 FEEDBACK FROM THE MEETING OF THE HEALTH & CARE 

PERFORMANCE PANEL HELD ON 20 OCTOBER 2014  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Chair of the Health and Care 
Performance Panel providing the feedback which arose from the meeting held 
on 20 October 2014. 
 
The report indicated that the Panel had discussed and considered various 
reports in relation to the progress on the delivery of the recommendations 
arising from the Francis Scrutiny Review; quality framework and performance 
measures for the health and care sector in Wirral and future arrangements 
and work programme for the Panel. 

Page 3



 
The report concluded by outlining the summary of actions arising from the 
meeting. 
 
A Member indicated that the review undertaken on the Francis report was an 
excellent piece of work undertaken by Members; he further commended the 
staff at Arrow Park Hospital for the care and medical attention his wife had 
received which was excellent and he commented that the attitude of the 
clinical staff was superb. 
 
A Member commented that the Council needed to mindful of Wirral’s ageing 
population who will have complex needs and how the Council will be able to 
fill the gap on fewer resources. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Chair and Spokespersons of Families and Wellbeing Policy & 
Performance Committee be requested to write to the political group 
leaders to promote the concept of continuity of membership amongst 
members undertaking health scrutiny, given the length of time to 
develop a broad understanding of the subject. 
 

33 UPDATE ON THE OUTCOMES FOR CHILDREN IN CARE AND SCRUTINY 
REVIEW  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Children’s Services 
providing an update on progress on the implementation of the 
recommendations made in August 2013 relating to the Scrutiny Review of 
Outcomes for Looked After Children. The Review obtained evidence directly 
from children in care and care leavers, Council officers and partners. The 
Review focused on raising aspirations, the role of foster carers, the social 
care process, post-16 support, education, 16+ employability and housing. 21 
recommendations were made in total. 
 
The report indicated that the 21 recommendations had formed a central part 
of the work of the Corporate Parenting Group throughout 2014 and had been 
formulated into the Corporate Parenting Strategy Action Plan, progress 
against which was detailed within the report. 
 
The Senior Manager, Specialist Services introduced the report and indicated 
that the CICC(Children in Care Council) had refreshed the Promise which was 
signed up to by the Corporate Parenting Group in September 2014, the Chief 
Executive would be signing this off by the end of the week.  
 

Page 4



The Senior Manager, Specialist Services further indicated that improvements 
had been made to services provided to 16/17 year olds declared homeless 
and care leavers and 19 year olds in employment and training. 
 
It was commented that work had also been undertaken on the retention of 
foster carers and improvements made to the personal education plans.  
 
 In response to a question raised by a Member in relation to the retention of 
social workers, it was reported that a new framework was to be introduced in 
the New Year, consultation had also been undertaken focusing on recruitment 
and retention. The Department was also looking at the possibility of a revised 
staffing structure. 
 
It was reported that officers from the Department had worked with ex Ofsted 
team to produce an evidence based reports of the current social teams and 
case loads, up to 200 cases were audited and all managers had undertaken 
personal coaching when the cases had been signed off. 
 
In a response to a Members comment, The Director of Children’s Services 
extended an invitation to Members to attend a LAC awards evening which 
was due to be held on 4 December at 5:00pm, Wallasey Town Hall. The event 
was to be introduced by a care leaver. 
 
RESOLVED: That  
 
(1) the Director of Childrens Services and the Senior Manager, 

Specialist Services be thanked for their update report; and  
 
(2) the Director of Children’s Services be requested to provide an 

update report in 12 months.  
  
 
 
 

34 AN ASSET BASED APPROACH TO SUPPORT 'USING SOCIAL CARE 
RESOURCES EFFECTIVELY TO TRANSFORM LIVES'  
 
The Committee considered a verbal presentation from the Integration 
Programme Manager on the asset based approach to support ‘Using Social 
Care Resources Effectively to Transform Lives’. 
 
The report which was considered by Cabinet at its meeting held on 6 
November 2014 was appended to the agenda for information. The report 
informed Members that the Council faced a major challenge in meeting rising 
needs and new legislative requirements through the Care Act, as well as 
improving health and social care responsiveness and performance. It had to 
do this in the context of reducing resources. 

Page 5



 
The Integration Programme Manager indicated that the asset based approach 
was a shift from ‘can’t do’ to ‘can do’, to a focus on people’s positive attributes 
and potential to do for themselves; consider the support that people have 
available to them as opposed to the deficit approach. He indicated that the 
new asset based approach would ensure that people were supported only to 
meet assessed need in the most effective ways and focused on developing 
skills for independence and also included considering Assistive Technology, 
Self Directed Support and Re-ablement. 
 
Consultation had been held on the proposed approach with partner agencies; 
feedback had been received from those who currently use services through 
statutory review process and consultation undertaken with partner agencies to 
ensure a joined approach to the change of culture.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That Mr Tomlin be thanked for his informative presentation. 
 
 

35 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Chair of the Committee, updating 
on the progress and the activity proposed for this Committee in relation to its 
agreed Work Programme. 
 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 6



ATTAINMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 10 December 2014 
 

Present: Councillor W Clements (Vice Chair) 
 
 Councillors T Norbury 

P Brightmore 
W Smith 
 

P Hayes 
A Brighouse 
 

    
Apologies Councillors M McLaughlin 

D Cunningham 
 

H Shoebridge 

 
 

29 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES  
 
Councillor Wendy Clements welcomed all present to the meeting of the 
Attainment Sub Committee and noted apologies. 
 

30 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Paul Hayes declared a non pecuniary interest by virtue that he is a 
Governor of St Mary’s Catholic College. 
 
Councillor Tony Norbury declared a non pecuniary interest by virtue that his 
sister is employed in Early Years settings. 
 
Councillor Wendy Clements declared a non pecuniary interest in agenda item 
4 (minute 35 refers) by virtue that she is a Governor of Emslie Morgan 
Alternative Provision School (EMAPS) Special Needs Provision school. 
 

31 MINUTES  
 
Resolved – That the accuracy of the Minutes of the Attainment Sub 
Committee held on 1 September. 2014 be approved as a correct record. 
 

32 OFSTED ASSESSMENT OF SCHOOLS IN WIRRAL (INCLUDING 
SCHOOLS IN SPECIAL CATEGORIES)  
 
Sue Talbot, Senior Manager, School Improvement, Targeted Services, 
Children & Young People’s Department gave an overview of Ofsted 
inspections since1September, 2014 to 1 December, 2014 and responded to 
members questions. It was reported that 2 schools were in an Ofsted 
category (1secondary – serious weaknesses, 1 special school/alternative 
provision – special measures), 7 secondary schools required improvement 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



(3 academies, 4 maintained) and 13 primary schools required improvement. 
86% of primary schools were currently reported as good or better 68% of 
secondary schools were currently good or better and 92% of special schools 
/ alternative provision were good or better. There had been 17 inspections in 
this period; 2 schools had been downgraded (2 primary schools - good to 
requires improvement), 11 schools had stayed the same grade (9 good; 2 
requires improvement) and 4 schools have been upgraded (2 primary 
schools, 1 secondary school, 1 special school. 
 
Members considered the published results relating to Bidston Avenue 
Primary, Christ the King Catholic Primary School, Eastway Primary School, 
Egremont Primary School, St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School (W), 
Leasowe Primary School, Woodslee Primary School, St. Mary’s Catholic 
College, Lingham Primary School, Pensby High School for Boys, St 
Josephs’s Catholic School (U),Stanton Road Primary School, Mendell 
Primary School, St. Alban’s Catholic Primary School and monitoring 
inspection visits to Bebington High Sports College and Emslie Morgan 
Alternative Provision School. Sue Talbot also reported upon HMI Monitoring 
visits since Sept 2014, schools in Special Measures, schools in serious 
weakness and schools requiring improvement. It was noted that as schools 
convert to academies that the current status would disappear and in 
response to questions from members Sue Talbot informed the Sub 
Committee that support would be ongoing for these schools. 
 
It was reported that two major reforms had been implemented which affected 
the calculation of Key Stage 4 performance measures data; Professor Alison 
Wolf’s review of Vocational Education recommendations which would restrict 
the qualifications counted and prevented any qualification from counting as 
larger than one GCSE and capped the number of non GCSEs included in 
performance measures at two per pupil and secondly that an early entry 
policy should only count a pupil’s first attempt at a qualification. Members 
also discussed the analysis of FSM Attainment Gap 5A*-C Including English 
& Maths and the interventions which were in place throughout the country 
and determined to include this in the Work Programme for future meetings. 
 
Resolved – That; 
 
1 Sue Talbot be thanked for the presentation. 
2 the report be noted. 
 

33 THE EVOLVING EDUCATION SYSTEM:  A "TEMPERATURE CHECK" - 
DFE RESEARCH  
 
Julia Hassall, Director of Children’s Services, presented a verbal report on the 
main priorities for the Council with schools 2014-15 and beyond. The 
presentation had been given to Primary and Secondary Headteachers. The 
Director of Children & Young Persons reported on the LGA – role of Councils 

Page 8



in relation to schools and the role of the Director of Children’s Services. The 
Director also provided members with outcomes from the ADCS Conference in 
July 2014 that examined the evolving education system in England: a 
“temperature check” - DfE July 2014 – which was a study of 10 local 
education systems that referred to the evolution of the three key functions of a 
local education system - school improvement and intervention, school place – 
planning and supporting vulnerable children. The presentation also included 
an outline of supporting vulnerable children – national “temperature check”, 
school improvement locally, place planning, and supporting vulnerable 
children. Members were also given an update on evolving local systems – 
Wirral / Cheshire West and Chester - shared service and shared service 
development. It was reported that both Cabinet’s had made the decision to 
proceed in November and were now moving forward to set the company up 
from April 2015. 
 
Resolved – That; 
 
1 the Director of Children’s Services be thanked for the 
presentation. 
2 the presentation be noted. 
 

34 CHILD POVERTY PILOT PROJECTS  
 
Members considered a report of the Director of Children’s Services that 
informed members about the work of two primary schools in Wirral, which had 
received investment from the Council to develop innovative approaches to 
tackling child poverty. The report evidenced the impact and added value of 
working in this way to improve outcomes for children, families and their 
communities. Examples included programmes of activity to engage children 
educationally during school holidays, support for parents to get into work and 
further training, and ways of engaging the whole community in a positive way. 
An appendix to the report provided details of the commissioning process for 
the projects. 
 
The report set out the background and underpinning reasons for the project 
and informed the Sub Committee that 25% of Wirral children lived in poverty 
as determined by the income deprivation indicator for child poverty. It was 
reported there were acute inequalities in Wirral with levels as low as 1% in 
some areas and as high as 70% in others, where long-standing issues of 
deprivation and disadvantage prevented families from escaping poverty.  
Feedback from local agencies suggested that the financial climate and 
changes to the benefits system were having a combined impact on children 
and families in poverty.  In June 2013 Cabinet had approved the Working 
Group’s child poverty pilot project.  The proposal was based on the evidence 
and research of the 2010 Marmot Review and Wirral’s Child and Family 
Poverty Working Group. The proposal had invited those schools, where the 
majority (i.e. 51% or above) of pupils on roll lived in an area where child 

Page 9



poverty and deprivation levels were in the highest 20% of areas nationally, to 
express an interest in working with the Council to pilot a primary ‘school 
community Hub’. The Hub acted as a central place for people to work together 
and access resources available in the school and in the community and 
offered a focused approach to children, young people and families to have 
their needs met as early as possible. It was reported that In January 2014, 
Holy Spirit Primary School, Leasowe and Fender Primary School, 
Woodchurch (the Community Hub) had been awarded £50,000 each to 
develop and implement a ‘School’ Community Hub. Upon allocation of the 
money the hubs had begun work immediately and had been active since that 
time. 

The report informed the Sub- Committee that the objectives of the Hubs 
dovetailed with the Council’s Corporate Priorities; Local Decisions; Local 
Solutions; Driving Growth and Promoting Independence. Translating these 
priorities into tangible objectives for the Hubs, were as follows:  

• Increase family and children’s wellbeing; 
• Increase capacity in the community to tackle poverty; 
• Create greater awareness of support available to parents in the local 

area; 
• Increase desire of parents to move into work, and with a clear 

understanding of how to pursue this goal; 
• Increase engagement of parents with existing employment and 

enterprise;  
• Improve aspirations of children due to rising parental aspirations. 

 
It was reported that the ultimate function of the Hubs was to create a web of 
support around the community’s children, young people and families. The 
Hubs provided an opportunity for needs of the individual to be met as early as 
possible and incorporated active parental support to do this. Each Hub had 
recruited a Community Builder who was a local residents and trusted member 
of the community and the report showed positive outcomes illustrated by case 
studies of both children and parents. It was reported that both Community 
Hubs were working within and enhancing local community networks and were 
showing great strength at a local community level in building support for 
children and families at a timely and appropriate way. 
 
Resolved – That the Attainment Sub-Committee welcome the report and 
all those involved be congratulated. 
 

35 THE DELIVERY OF ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION PROVISION  
 
Members considered a report that provided information about how the Council 
would be taking forward its provision for alternative education (AP).  The 
report outlined the outcome of a review of alternative education provision, its 
recommendations and outlined the details of a further consultation about 

Page 10



options for the future provision of alternative education provision at Key Stage 
3 and Key Stage 4. 
 
Mr P Ward, Senior Manager, SEN attended the meeting and informed 
members that  
 

36 WORK PROGRAMME FOR FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
Members considered suggestions to be included in the Work Programme for 
future meetings and agreed that future areas for consideration should include; 
 
1 interventions aimed at closing the attainment gap between pupils in 
receipt of free schools meals and other pupils and: 
 
2 provision for disruptive (EBD) pupils and whether this was up to 
standard. 
 

37 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting of the Attainment Sub Committee will be held on 4 
March, 2015 in at 6 pm, Committee Room 1, Town Hall, Wallasey. 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE –  

2ND FEBRUARY 2015 

HEALTH AND CARE PERFORMANCE PANEL – 11TH DECEMBER 2014 

 

SUBJECT: FEEDBACK FROM THE MEETING OF 

THE HEALTH & CARE PERFORMANCE 

PANEL HELD ON 19TH NOVEMBER 2014 

REPORT OF: THE CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 

  
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

This report provides feedback of the key issues arising from the meeting of the Health & 
Care Performance Panel held on 19th November 2014.  
 

2.0 ATTENDEES 
 

Members: 
Councillors Moira McLaughlin (Chair), Wendy Clements, Alan Brighouse, Denise 
Roberts, Chris Spriggs 
Other Attendees: 
Lorna Quigley (Head of Quality and Performance, Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group) 
Clare Fish (Strategic Director, Families and Wellbeing, Wirral Borough Council)  
Amanda Kelly (Senior Manager, Market Transformation and Contracts, Adult Social 
Services, Wirral Borough Council)  
Alan Veitch (Scrutiny Support Officer, Wirral Borough Council)  
 
Apologies: 
Cllrs Cherry Povall and Treena Johnson; Karen Prior (Wirral Healthwatch) and Elaine 
Evans (Wirral Healthwatch) 

 
3.0 NOTES FROM THE PREVIOUS PANEL MEETING HELD ON 20TH OCTOBER 2014 
 

The notes from the previous meeting, held on 20th October 2014, were approved by 
members.   

 
4.0 ISSUES RELATING TO FOUR SEASONS CARE HOMES 
 Amanda Kelly provided members with a report relating to Four Seasons Healthcare, 

both locally and regionally. Four Seasons is one of the largest care home providers 
nationwide, operating five homes in Wirral; three of which are currently suspended. 
Four Seasons holds 13% of the older person bed market in Wirral. Concerns have been 
raised locally regarding the standards of care. These concerns have been escalated to 
the Cheshire, Warrington and Wirral Quality Surveillance Group and subsequently to 
the North Regional Quality Surveillance Group. Members were informed that the 
concerns raised with homes in Wirral were comparable to those raised for this provider 
nationally. The major concerns included provision of medication, staffing levels and 
quality of management.   

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
It was noted that the Care Quality Commission (CQC) are now issuing many more 
warning notices for care homes; this demonstrating an unprecedented level of action 
from CQC, which was welcomed. There is also now a closer working relationship 
between DASS and CQC than was demonstrated a year ago.  
 
Members were informed that Four Seasons had recently announced that Highground, 
one of the five homes operated in Wirral, was to close. Members were reassured that 
there is enough capacity in the local market to absorb this closure. At a national level, 
there is evidence that a new management team at Four Seasons is having a positive 
impact.    
 
Amanda Kelly informed members that across the care home sector, 80% are currently 
achieving a rag rating of green. There are currently 11 homes in red, of which 7 are 
suspended. Members were reassured that when a home is suspended, relevant officers 
across the health and social care sector are informed; further admissions being 
prevented.  
 
Members were informed of the drive to ensure patients were both admitted to and 
discharged from hospital appropriately. It is the aim to increase the numbers of clients 
receiving reablement at home and domiciliary care, while reducing the numbers of 
clients in care homes.   

 
 
5.0 PROGRESS ON THE DELIVERY OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM 

THE ‘QUALITY ASSURANCE AND STANDARDS IN CARE HOMES’ SCRUTINY 
REVIEW  

 
During late 2013 / early 2014, a scrutiny review entitled ‘Quality Assurance and 
Standards in Care Homes’ was undertaken. The Members of the Scrutiny Panel met 
with a range of witnesses throughout the course of the Review, including Council 
officers, representatives of partner organisations and advocacy agencies, care home 
owners and managers. The final report was presented to the meeting of the Families 
and Wellbeing Policy & Performance Committee on 8th April 2014 and to Cabinet on 7th 
July 2014. The members of the Health and Care Performance Panel were provided with 
a report which updated progress towards the implementation of the recommendations 
made by the scrutiny review. 

Members noted the progress and outstanding actions as detailed in the report. 
Additional comments included: 

• Out-of-hours inspections of care homes (Recommendation 1) - Amanda 
Kelly explained that the working hours of the Quality Assurance team have not 
been changed from 9.00am to 5.00pm. However, on some occasions they will 
visit care homes outside those hours if required as do other partner 
organisations. The Chair requested further evidence to determine whether this 
current arrangement was meeting the requirements of the scrutiny report 
recommendation.  
 

Page 14



 

 

• Performance data in the public domain (Recommendation 3) - There is still 
an aspiration to publicise the rag rating data although there are legal issues to 
resolve. It was noted that providers are informed of their rag rating. Given the 
change in the CQC inspection framework, the standards applied by the Quality 
Assurance Team and CQC are more in line with each other. Members were also 
informed that people looking for a home are provided with a list of homes which 
only includes those rated as green.  

• Good practice guidance for care home managers (Recommendation 7) – 
Amanda Kelly argued that this recommendation would compromise the role of the 
CQC. It is not appropriate for the Local Authority to be training care home 
managers as it is the responsibility of the employer.  

• Communication with care home owners (Recommendation 8) – Action 
complete 

• End of Life Care (Recommendation 10) – Laura Quigley reassured members 
that prior to admission, a care home should be sure that they have the 
competencies to provide care for the patient. However, as patient safety is 
paramount, support will be provided to the home if necessary, for example, from 
the GP or community nurse.  

• Establish relevant performance indicators on the dashboard 
(Recommendation 16) – It was agreed that the number of homes on the rag 
rating would be reported although it was not appropriate to set a target.  

• Provision of performance data to members (Recommendation 17) – 
Quarterly update reports regarding the performance of care homes will be 
provided to the Health & Care Performance Panel. Data will include: the number 
of homes categorised by rag rating, the direction of travel of the rag rating, the 
occupancy rates, number of suspended homes, the throughput of residents 
(length of stay, admissions, discharge). The numbers of residential and nursing 
homes will also be benchmarked on a historical basis.  

• The relationship between local members and care homes 
(Recommendation 18) - A list of care homes in each ward will be sent to the 
relevant ward members.  

 
It was agreed that a further update report regarding the outcomes of the 
recommendations arising from the care homes scrutiny review will be provided by 
officers in approximately six months.   

 
6.0 ESTABLISHING HOW THE PANEL WILL MONITOR THE HOME CARE SECTOR - 

DISCUSSION 

The number of domiciliary care providers, with whom the Local Authority has contracts, 
has been reduced from 68 to 6, with contractors providing care on a zoned approach. 
Performance data relating to domicilary care will be included as part of the quarterly 
care home performance report described above.   

 

 

Page 15



 

 

7.0 FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS AND WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE PANEL 

It was proposed that two future meetings of the Panel be arranged: 
• Thursday 11th December – agenda items will include an update from Jill Galvani 
(WUTH), an update regarding the CQC inspection of Wirral Community Trust and 
a performance monitoring report to be provided by Wirral CCG.  

• Wednesday 4th February – agenda to be agreed.  
 

8.0 SUMMARY OF ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MEETING 

The following actions arose from the meeting: 
 

1. Amanda Kelly agreed to send a list of care homes in each ward to the relevant 
ward members.  

2. Amanda Kelly to provide quarterly update reports regarding the performance of 
care homes and domicilary care to the Health & Care performance Panel.  

3. Alan Veitch / Amanda Kelly will arrange for a further update report regarding the 
outcomes of the recommendations arising from the care homes scrutiny review 
to be provided in approximately six months.   

 

   
9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPROVAL BY THE FAMILIES AND WELLBEING 

POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

There were no specific recommendations to be made to the Families and Wellbeing 
Policy & Performance Committee.  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Alan Veitch 
  Scrutiny Support 
  0151 691 8564 
  email:  alanveitch@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 16



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE –  

2ND FEBRUARY 2015 

HEALTH AND CARE PERFORMANCE PANEL – 4TH FEBRUARY 2015 

 

SUBJECT: FEEDBACK FROM THE MEETING OF 

THE HEALTH & CARE PERFORMANCE 

PANEL HELD ON 11TH DECEMBER 2014 

REPORT OF: THE CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 

  
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

This report provides feedback of the key issues arising from the meeting of the Health & 
Care Performance Panel held on 11th December 2014.  
 

2.0 ATTENDEES 
 

Members: 
Councillors Moira McLaughlin (Chair), Wendy Clements, Alan Brighouse, Treena 
Johnson, Cherry Povall, Denise Roberts, Chris Spriggs 
Other Attendees: 
Lorna Quigley (Head of Quality and Performance, Wirral Clinical Commissioning Group) 
Karen Prior (Wirral Healthwatch)  
Alan Veitch (Scrutiny Support Officer, Wirral Borough Council)  
Visitors for part of the meeting: 
Paula Simpson (Head of Quality and Nursing, Wirral Community Trust) 
Jill Galvani (Director of Nursing & Midwifery, Wirral University Teaching Hospital) 
Evan Moore (Medical Director, Wirral University Teaching Hospital)   
Jean Quinn (Chair, Quality and Safety Committee, Wirral University Teaching Hospital) 
 
Apologies: 
Clare Fish and Amanda Kelly  

 
  
3.0 NOTES FROM THE PREVIOUS PANEL MEETING HELD ON 19TH NOVEMBER 2014 
 

The notes from the previous meeting, held on 19th November 2014, were approved by 
members.   
 
A member commented that the notes referred to a list of care homes in each ward 
being sent to the relevant ward members. This action is outstanding.  

 

Page 17



 

 

4.0 WIRRAL COMMUNITY TRUST – OUTCOMES OF THE RECENT CQC INSPECTION 
AND RESULTING ACTION PLAN 

 Paula Simpson provided members with a presentation regarding the outcomes of the 
recent CQC inspection of Wirral Community Trust, which was a week-long review in 
September 2014. The Trust received an overall rating of good, which was welcomed by 
members. Feedback from the inspection team included: 

• The identification of exceptional services, for example, speech and language 
service 

• Very positive comments regarding staff 
• Staff, in general, are happy in their jobs 
• Service users and patients spoke very positively 

 
The ratings for each of the service areas were as follows:  

 
 Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well-led Overall 

Adults 
Services 

Requires 
Improvement 

Good Good Good Good Good 

Children’s 
Services 

Good Good Good Good Requires 
Improvement 

Good 

Dental 
Services 

Good Good Good Good Good Good 

End of 
Life Care 

Good Good Good Good Good Good 

Urgent 
Care 

Good Good Good Requires 
Improvement 

Good Good 

Overall 
 

Good Good Good Good Good Good 

 
 

Wirral Community Trust has accepted the findings of the CQC report and an 
improvement plan, highlighting aspects where further progress is required, has been 
produced. Areas identified for improvement include: 
• Incident reporting, including a review of the incident reporting policy     
• A review of safeguarding policies and procedures  
• A review of record keeping systems 
• The understanding by staff of the implications of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 

code of practice and the Deprivation of Liberty safeguards 
• Leadership for children’s services – providing a single reference point for children 

and their families. The long-term aim is for all areas providing services to children 
to be located from the same point.   

• Triage waiting times in Walk-in Centres 
 

During discussion the following issues were raised: 
• The Trust will challenge itself in the future through setting appropriate quality 

goals, leading to continuous improvement. The areas identified for improvement 
following the CQC report will be used to identify objectives in the Trust’s Quality 
Account for 2015. 

Page 18



 

 

• The Trust ensures that there is a robust programme of staff training, for which 
there is good uptake. 

• Where services are being transformed, public consultation will be included in 
plans where appropriate. 

    
Conclusion: 
Members congratulated Wirral Community Trust on achieving a positive outcome from 
the recent CQC inspection.   

   
 
5.0 PROGRESS REPORT FROM WIRRAL UNIVERSITY TEACHING HOSPITAL  
 

The CQC recently undertook an announced inspection of Arrowe Park hospital, the 
report for which was published on 2nd December 2014. Jill Galvani, Evan Moore and 
Jean Quinn provided members with an update regarding the outcomes of the inspection 
and an overview of the resulting action plan which has been agreed by the Trust’s 
Board.  

The inspection, which took place on 18th and 19th September at Arrowe Park, was 
arranged by CQC in response to a number of concerns which had been raised directly 
with them by patients and staff. The Trust was given one and a half days’ advance 
notice in order to collate documents which the inspectors might need to see. The 
inspectors visited the Emergency Department, and surgical and medical wards, with a 
particular focus on care of the elderly wards. CQC also reviewed a very wide range of 
documentation, including audit reports, agendas and minutes of committees, root cause 
analysis investigations, and staffing records. 
 
The Trust was inspected against five standards and was found to be non-compliant to a 
minor and moderate impact in all five: 

• Respecting and involving people who use services (moderate impact on 
patients) 

• Care and welfare of people who use services (moderate impact on patients) 
• Staffing (minor impact on patients) 
• Assessing and monitoring the quality of service provision (minor impact on 

patients) 
• Records (moderate impact on patients) 

 
Key themes to emerge from the inspection were: 

• Closer scrutiny of the standard of nursing care 
• Raising the profile of nursing leadership at divisional and ward level 
• Reviewing staffing levels against NICE guidelines to ensure appropriate staffing 

levels  
 

During discussion the following issues were raised: 
• The findings of the final published report are accepted by the Trust and will be 

acted upon. All the required actions are already in the process of being 
implemented. 

• Concerns were expressed by members regarding the financial circumstances 
within which the Trust is currently operating and the implications for staff. 
Contributory factors include block contract funding whilst demand and costs 
including drugs, consumables and staffing are increasing; some internal 

Page 19



 

 

processes being more expensive than competitors; and a 15% increase in 
emergency referrals from GPs.   

• The Trust is progressing towards safer nurse staffing levels and the next phase 
is being prepared for 2015/16.  

• The trust was asked about changes to theatre nursing and support staff, the 
executives responded that recent bench marking from external experts had 
indicated a greater number and higher grade of staff in Wirral theatres than other 
organisations. The trust is currently engaged with staff and their representatives 
to understand how Wirral could achieve a cost similar to other more efficient 
hospitals. 

• Nurse attendance levels are monitored on a weekly basis. Sickness rates vary 
between wards, with the aim being an overall rate of 4%. Some wards are 
recorded at 7% and above. 70% of sickness is in the long-term category.  

• The action plan includes strengthening the performance management of ward 
sisters. 

 
Jill Galvani informed members that a formal CQC inspection will take place before the 
end of 2015, although no definitive timescale has yet been determined by CQC. WUTH 
would welcome support through scrutiny and challenge in preparation for that 
inspection.  

 
It was agreed that the following updates would be requested from WUTH: 

• Families and Wellbeing Policy & Performance Committee, 2nd February – A 
report / update regarding the cost improvement plan. The report will include an 
overview of the financial position, details of the actions being taken and an 
assessment of any impact on the standards of care. 

• Health and Care Performance Panel - WUTH will return to the Panel, in 
approximately three months, with an update regarding progress towards 
implementing the Action Plan in response to the recent CQC report.  

 
Conclusion: 
Members thanked Jill Galvani, Evan Moore and Jean Quinn for attending the meeting 
and providing the progress report.  
 

 
6.0 QUALITY FRAMEWORK AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR THE HEALTH 

AND CARE SECTOR IN WIRRAL  

Lorna Quigley provided an update relating to Quarter 1 performance data (June – 
August 2014) as a proforma for future reporting of performance data to the Panel. A 
further report will be provided to the next meeting of the Panel.  
 
Members requested that a glossary of terms be provided alongside future performance 
monitoring reports. 

 
 

Page 20



 

 

7.0 FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS AND WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE PANEL 

It was proposed that two future meetings of the Panel be arranged: 
• Wednesday 4th February – Major items on the agenda will be a report on home 
care providers and the Quarter 2 performance report. 

• End March 2015 - An update from WUTH regarding progress towards 
implementing the Action Plan in response to the recent CQC report  

 

8.0 SUMMARY OF ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MEETING 

The following actions arose from the meeting: 
 

1. Amanda Kelly agreed to send a list of care homes in each ward to the relevant 
ward members (outstanding from a previous meeting).  

2. Alan Veitch to arrange a meeting of the Panel for the end of March 2015. 

3. Lorna Quigley will arrange for a glossary of terms to be provided alongside future 
performance monitoring reports. 

   
9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR APPROVAL BY THE FAMILIES AND WELLBEING 

POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

There were no specific recommendations to be made to the Families and Wellbeing 
Policy & Performance Committee.  
 
 

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Alan Veitch 
  Scrutiny Support 
  0151 691 8564 
  email:  alanveitch@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                           

 
January 2015 
 
 
Review of ongoing clinic provision at Birkenhead Medical Centre and Moreton Clinic, Sexual Health 
Wirral  
 
Background to the service 
 
Sexual Health Wirral (SHW) is a local authority commissioned integrated sexual health service which has 
been in operation since April 2013.  SHW offers clients of all ages a full range of contraception and sexual 
health services including: HIV testing; sexual health screening; all contraceptive methods including long 
acting reversible contraception; Chlamydia screening; cervical screening; referral for termination of 
pregnancy; hepatitis vaccination; hepatitis screening; HIV post exposure prophylaxis and pre-conceptual 
counselling.  The National Chlamydia Screening Programme and the psychosexual service also sit 
within the SHW service.  Over 30,000 patients attend the integrated sexual health clinics annually. 
 
SHW operates a ‘hub and spoke’ model of service delivery with 3 hub clinics; St Catherine’s Health Centre, 
Birkenhead; Wirral University Teaching Hospital and Brook, Birkenhead.  Alongside these venues, there are 
4 spoke clinics; Eastham clinic, Victoria Central Hospital, Wallasey, Moreton Clinic and Birkenhead Medical 
Building (BMB).   
 
Current Provision 
 
Sexual Health Wirral (SHW) holds a weekly clinic at BMB in Laird Street, Birkenhead and also at Moreton 
Clinic.  Both clinics have run since April 2013. The clinics run for a 3.5hr period 5.00-8.30 Wednesday 
evening and 3-6.30 Friday afternoon respectively.  SHW has identified a number of issues (detailed below) 
which affect the quality and efficiency of the service we are able to offer to patients from within these two 
venues.  It is proposed that these two venues are removed from SHW clinic provision to allow more 
effective use of the staffing resource in venues of a higher clinical quality.  The remaining 5 clinics within 
SHW offer a higher quality environment to patients and to staff and enable the full range of contraceptive 
and sexual health options to be offered to patients in a streamlined manner.  
 
It is recognised that this decision needs to be balanced with health inequalities evident in these two 
geographical locations; access to the remaining clinic locations for these populations; and access to other 
related services in the area. However when benchmarking against other (larger) populations in the North 
West of England e.g. Liverpool, this larger area is served by an integrated sexual health service which runs 
from only 3 sites across the conurbation.  This brings into question the necessity and cost effectiveness of a 
seven site service for Wirral.  
 
During this period of service review, SHW commissioners have expressed an interest in the service further 
promoting a ‘self care model’ of sexual health on Wirral which would allow patients to access sexual health 
advice and intervention in a non-clinical setting.  
 
SHW staff have developed a service level agreement with colleagues from Livewell (public health) and 
training has been delivered to enable Livewell staff to discuss sexual health with their clients during 
outreach sessions and ‘one to one’ consultations.   Outreach clients can access advice, Chlamydia and 
gonorrhoea tests and condoms without attending a sexual health clinic.  This scheme is currently in its early 
stages and will be evaluated. 
 
Outreach services have also been developed in Forum housing (social landlord and supported housing) and 
Phoenix House (drug and alcohol rehabilitation service) again focusing on socially excluded populations 
within Wirral. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Rationale for clinic review 
 
SHW has a contract with BMB to cover the rental of clinical areas including: a small reception area, waiting 
area (combined with other patients attending Walk-In Centre and GP), 3 clinical rooms and a counseling 
room.  Similar accommodation is provided by Moreton Clinic. 
 
The service has identified a number of issues at BMB and Moreton which have a detrimental impact on 
patient experience and the quality of the service we offer.  These issues are related to room availability, IT 
connectivity, the set up and take down of clinics, waiting room, levels of patient activity and the clinic 
environment.  They are detailed in appendix A 
 
Patient activity within SHW 

Sexual Health  Month        

Clinic's Apr14 May14 Jun14 Jul14 Aug14 Sep14 Oct14 
Grand 
Total 

RY701 - St Caths 700 742 807 883 704 831 875 5542 
RY702 - Eastham 117 157 124 139 129 145 125 936 
RY703 – VCH 366 347 423 428 371 479 351 2765 
RY704 – APH 645 672 575 659 633 641 565 4390 
RY706 - Birkenhead Medical Building 110 109 128 121 96 110 125 799 
RY717 – Brook 555 569 630 657 607 613 508 4139 
RY718 - Moreton 60 86 76 76 90 88 89 565 
Grand Total 2553 2682 2763 2963 2630 2907 2638 19136 

 
The average attendance per clinic, over the period shown, for BMC was 25.8.  In Moreton the average 
attendance per clinic was 18.  Both clinics have a very similar staffing structure. 

Patient and Public involvement (PPI) 
Over a one month period in September 2014, the SHW Wirral Patient Experience Lead carried out a PPI 
initiative in BMB (41 patients participated) and repeated this for 2 weeks in November in Moreton (18 
patients took part).  Patients attending each clinic were asked questions including:  means of transport to 
clinic; why they chose this particular venue; what alternative clinic may they attend and how far they had 
travelled.  Patient demographics were recorded.   
 
A copy of the questionnaire is included as appendix B and the results from the questionnaires are included 
as appendix C 
 
PPI Summary  
 

• Patients are accessing BMB and Moreton clinic for a range of reasons; however half of all 
attendees have chosen BMB and 39% of attendees from Moreton based on the time/day of the 
clinic rather than location. 

• Patients are accessing Moreton clinic for a range of reasons, however 55% access the clinic as it 
is close to their home.  Other respondents attended as it was convenient day/time or that it 
was a convenient location. 

• Over half of all patients travel to BMB by car (58%), 24% of respondents walked to the clinic 
and 17% used public transport. Within the younger age group (under 25 years) 8 patients (40% 
of respondents) walked to the clinic and 7 patients (35% of respondents) in this younger age 
group travelled by car. 

• 50% of patients travelled to Moreton clinic by car, 28% of all respondents attending Moreton 
walked to clinic and 22% of attendees used public transport. 

• If the clinic no longer ran at BMB 78% of patients said they would still attend SHW, however 
they would access an alternative clinic.  22% of patients would choose to attend their GP 

• If the clinic no longer ran at Moreton clinic 78% of patients would attend an alternative SHW 
clinic and 22% would attend their GP practice.  

Page 24



• The clinic at BMB costs SHW £9000 pa in rent with a further £400 pa in staff travel costs and 
the cost of paying staff over-contract hours to prepare clinic for opening. At a time when cost 
improvement savings have to be made, these resources would be better utilised by increasing 
capacity in other clinics. 

 
Recommendations 

 
As high percentages of patients indicated that they attended Moreton and BMB based on day/time of 
operating, we recommend the transfer of both BMB and Moreton clinic services to alternative venues 
within SHW in April 2015.  To ensure clinic capacity is not reduced in the overall timetable we will initiate a 
clinic within St Catherine’s Health Centre on a Wednesday evening.  We will also extend the opening hours 
of the Arrowe Park clinic which takes place every Friday.  Both of these venues offer higher quality facilities 
including facilities to conduct cryotherapy and microscopy which are not available in spoke clinics. 
 
Proposing closures in April 2015 allows a period of patient engagement to take place to ensure that regular 
users of both clinics are aware of all planned changes.  This would also allow for a comprehensive 
communication and marketing strategy to be put in place making use of media and social media to 
communicate with the local community and local stakeholders. 
 
Both changes will be implemented concurrently moderating any upheaval to service users.  The SHW 
timetable will be subject to one change and then circulated widely to all local stakeholders (including GPs, 
Children’s Centres, pharmacies, local colleges, school nurses etc).  Information will be placed in the GP 
bulletin and be placed on Staffzone (WCT intranet). 
 
Our website will remain fully updated along with Facebook pages and Twitter account.  Adverts and 
information in local newspapers will be utilised. 
 
Staff currently working in these clinics will be relocated to other clinics within SHW with a focus on 
particularly busy clinics which will reduce patient waiting times and improve the patient experience. 
 
We will continue to increase the outreach element of the service and continue training staff from Livewell 
to ensure that patients are offered sexual health information and some limited interventions during one to 
one consultations and outreach events, particularly with hard to reach groups.   
 
 
 
Neil Perris, Divisional Manager, Lifestyle services, Wirral Community Trust 
Toni Gleave, Service lead – Sexual Health Wirral, Wirral Community Trust 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 
Appendix A 
 
Overview of issues within BMB 

1. Room availability  
a. SHW has access to 3 clinical rooms plus one consultation room.   This allows a doctor, 2 nurses 

and 1 HCA to work within the clinic.  However the HCA is not able to perform venepuncture 
due to the lack of clinical rooms.  Any blood samples required are then taken by the clinician, 
lengthening the clinician consultation time and patient waiting time, lengthening the patient 
journey 

b. No other rooms are available for use by SHW staff removing the possibility of extra staff 
working within the clinic to reduce patient wait. 

c. There is a lack of flexibility by the landlord around the start and finish time of the session.  The 
session cannot be lengthened in an attempt to manage throughput of patients.  Patients within 
this clinic can be faced with a long waiting time, yet BMB sees only 4% of all patient activity 
within SHW. 

 
2. IT connectivity 

a. limited IT access for electronic patient databases eg Excelicare which can limit the accessible 
patient history. 

b. staff are unable to log-on to e-mails/staffzone, reducing communication with staff working in 
this clinic and making timely incident reporting impossible. 

3. ‘Set up’ and ‘take down’ of clinic 
a. Prior to the start of every clinic all consumables have to be unpacked and moved to the clinical 

areas.  Staff have to be paid ‘over contract’ hours to attend clinic early and start this process 
increasing the running costs of this clinic. 

4. There is a mixed waiting room.  People in waiting room  waiting to use other services within the 
building which has raised issue of a lack of confidentiality 
 

5. The landlord has placed restrictions in the posters/patient information/staff quality posters that we 
are able to put up in the waiting room and in the patient toilets, limiting our ability to promote self-
care. 

 
Overview of issues within Moreton clinic 
 

1. Room availability 
a. Limited room availability.  One clinician is based some distance from other clinicians in an 

isolated room creating a risk to both patients and clinician. No ability to expand clinic. 
b. Rooms are not suitable with inaccessible beds, inadequate curtains and difficulty in creating an 

environment that protects the dignity of patient. 
 

2. ‘Set up’ and ‘take down’ of clinic 
a. Prior to the start of every clinic all consumables have to be unpacked and moved to the clinical 

areas.  Staff have to be paid ‘over contract’ hours to attend clinic early and start this process 
increasing the running costs of the clinic. 

 
3. IT connectivity 

a. There are limited IP addresses allocated to Moreton clinic which means on many occasions 
staff cannot log onto clinical IT system and have to move to the contingency plan of creating 
paper records.  This has implications for patient care and creates risk to patients if previous 
patient clinical records cannot be reviewed.  It also means that staff  have to be paid ‘over 
contract hours’ to input patient records, again increasing the running costs of the clinic. 

 
4. Waiting room 

Page 26



a. The waiting room can get very busy with patients attending the GP surgery and can be 
‘standing room only’, resulting in the issue of a lack of confidentiality.  

 
5. Patient activity 

a. Moreton is the quietest clinic within SHW and only 3% of overall patient activity is seen here. 
This means that staff are underutilised within this clinic whilst other settings within SHW are 
extremely busy with long patient waiting times. 

Page 27



Appendix B 
 
We are constantly aiming to improve the services that we provide. We would like to know why 
you chose this clinic today.  
 
Clinic Venue ___Moreton Clinic ___________   Date __________ 
 

Gender:     Male         Female    
 
Age range: 16 or under          17-25      26- 35        36-45       46-55      56+   
 
Your postcode: ___________________ 
 
How often do you use this clinic? 
 
This is my first visit here                    
 
I have been once or twice before                   
 
I have attended on more than 3 occasions in the last year     
 
How did you get to clinic today?        
 
Public transport       Walk               Car               Other ______________________ 
 
Why do you/did you choose this clinic?  
 
Close to home       Convenient from /to work, school, college            
 
Day of the week and/or time suits me  
 
Which other venue would you be most 
likely to attend  if this clinic did not run? 

Please specify any of our clinics you have 
attended in the last 12 months? 

Victoria Central Hospital, Wallasey  Victoria Central Hospital, Wallasey  
Arrowe Park Hospital, Upton  Arrowe Park Hospital, Upton  
Brook, Wirral Young Person’s Clinic, 
Birkenhead (under 25’s only) 

 Brook, Wirral Young Person’s Clinic, 
Birkenhead 

 

Eastham Clinic, Eastham Rake Eastham       Eastham Clinic, Eastham Rake Eastham       
St Catherine’s Health Centre, 
Birkenhead 

 St Catherine’s Health Centre, 
Birkenhead 

 

Own GP    
Other clinic / health centre / venue     
 
If other, please state where you would be likely to attend 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
Why would you choose this alternative? ______________________________________________________ 
 
Your feedback is important to us. Many thanks for completing this questionnaire  
WCT will hold this information securely in accordance with the Data Protection Act (1988)  

 
 
 
 

Page 28



 
Appendix C 
 
PPI questionnaire results 
 
BMB 
The results show that 87.8% of the respondents were female and 12.2% male.  The age range of 
respondents was as follows: 
 
Aged 25 and under 48.8% 
Aged 26-45 years 48.8% 
Aged 46+  2.4% 
 
Moreton 
The results show that 66.7% of the respondents were female and 44.4% male.  The age range of 
respondents was as follows: 
 
Aged 25 and under 22% 
Aged 26-45 years 61% 
Aged 46+  16.7% 
 
The geographical range was as follows: 
 
BMB                                                                      Moreton 
Postcode % of respondents   Postcode % of respondents  
CH41  30.0%    CH41  5.5%   
CH42    2.5%    CH42  5.5% 
CH43  27.5%    CH43  11% 
CH44    7.5%    CH44   0% 
CH45    5.0%    CH45   0% 
CH46    5.0%    CH46   44% 
CH47    7.5%    CH47   5.5% 
CH48    2.5%    CH48   0% 
CH49    2.5%    CH49   5.5% 
CH61    0%    CH61  11% 
CH62    5.0%    CH62   0% 
CH63    5.0%    CH63   5.5% 
CH64    0%    CH64   5.5% 
 
60% of all respondents who attended BMC live in Birkenhead whilst the largest group of Moreton 
attendees live within Moreton (44%)   
 
Mode of transport to clinics 
Whilst considering patients distance to travel to clinics, we also explored by what means they travelled to 
the clinic.  We found that within BMB 58.5% of all respondents travelled to the clinic by car, 24.4% of 
respondents walked to the clinic and 17% used public transport.  We found that 50% of patients travelled 
to Moreton clinic by car,  27.8% of all respondents attending Moreton walked to clinic and 22% of  
attendees used public transport. 
 
From the BMB questionnaire 20 of the respondents were aged 25 and under and of this group 35% 
travelled to BMB via car, 25% used public transport and 40% walked to the clinic.  Of those walking, the 
most common postcode of origin was CH41.  
 
We asked people why they had chosen to come to attend BMB rather than one of SHW’s other clinics. 
Patients could select more than one answer to this question.  50% of responses were ‘the day of the 

Page 29



week/time suits me’.  This seems to indicate that a high number of patients would have attended a clinic 
located elsewhere as long as it ran at an equivalent time to BMB and it was the clinic time and not the clinic 
location that was important to this group of patients.  42% of responses indicated that patients attended 
BMB as it was close to their home (in some cases building was own GP practice) and 8% of all the answers 
described the clinic as ‘convenient from/to work, school, college’. 
 
When patients were asked why they had attended Moreton clinic rather than one of SHWs other clinics 
55.5% of responses where that the clinic was located close to home, 27.7% attended as it was a convenient 
location and 39% of responses showed that Moreton clinic was chosen based on it day/time of operation 
(patients could select more than 1 answer). 
 
To enable us to plan for any changes to SHW, we asked people where they would chose to attend if BMB 
and/or Moreton did not run and again patients may have given more than one answer to this question.  
22% of responses were that if patients could not attend BMB they would attend their GP surgery (often in 
same building).  The remainder of responses showed that patients would attend an alternative clinic within 
SHW.  There are a range of sexual health clinics within 2 miles of BMB:  the distance to St Catherine’s 
Health Centre is 2 miles; distance to Brook is 1.4 miles and Victoria Central Hospital is 1.9 miles.  BMB is 
located opposite a bus station with buses running to Brook and SCHC.  
 
The closest alternative clinic to Moreton is WUTH (2.4 miles) and most respondents selected this as their 
alternative clinic.  The second closest clinic to Moreton was VCH (4.5 miles). 22% of patients attending 
Moreton stated that they would attend their own GP as an alternative to a clinic within SHW (often within 
the same building as clinic). 
 
 

Page 30



 

  wuth.nhs.uk 
  @wuthnhs #proud 
 

 
Quality & Safety Committee 

Agenda Item 
 

6.6 

Title of Report 
 

Quality Impact of CIP - Report for September 2014 

Date of Meeting 
 

14th January 2015 

Author 
 

John Halliday 

Assistant Director of Information 

Accountable Executive  
 

Evan Moore 

Medical Director 
FOI status  
 

Document may be disclosed in full 

BAF Reference  
 

Risks 1 

Data Quality Rating  Silver – quantitative data that has not been externally validated 

Level of Assurance  Full 
  

 Committee confirmation 

 
1. Executive Summary   

 
This report presents a range of metrics of quality and performance, alongside the achievement of 
CIP schemes over the last 18 months. 

The Quality and Safety Committee is asked to note this report to the end of November 2014. 

2. Background  
 

This report is a high level report which is reserved for the Quality and Safety Committee and not 
reviewed by any other Committee. Against a background of continual cost reduction NHS, all 
providers of healthcare should be seeking to ensure that the quality of services provided is 
protected and even enhanced whilst containing costs. However it requires a degree of rigorous 
assessment to ensure there are no perverse or unforeseen consequences for quality of some 
planned service or efficiency changes.  

This report is the starting point of such an assessment of WUTH’s CIP schemes. The report pulls 
together a range of KPIs crossing indicators of patient harm, staff satisfaction and efficiency 
measures.   

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 

  wuth.nhs.uk 
  @wuthnhs #proud 
 

 

Such KPI analysis is consistent with recommended approaches in two reference publications: the 
National Quality Board’s “How To: Quality Impact Assess Provider Cost Improvement Plans” and 
Monitor’s “Quality Governance: How does a Board know that its organisation is working effectively 
to improve patient care?”  

There is no authoritative list of appropriate metrics, and the ones included in WUTH’s report are 
considered to cover the major broad themes. The metrics vary in the time-frame represented, 
monthly or quarterly. For some information sources such as Dr Foster there is a time-lag in 
releasing data, and this delay has recently increased due to issues with data being provided by the 
HSCIC. 

3. Key Issues 
 

The latest report covers the period April 2013 to September 2014 and at this stage there is no 
particular indicator that is being flagged up as a cause of concern due to the impact of a CIP 
scheme.  

4. Next steps 
 

Periodic review will be required of the metrics included in this report, with a view to adding further 
appropriate metrics and / or removing irrelevant measures. 

5. Conclusion 
 

Results across a range of metrics are provided for information. 

6. Recommendation 
 

The Quality and Safety Committee is asked to note this report to the end of November 2014. 

Page 32



 

  wuth.nhs.uk 
  @wuthnhs #proud 
 

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 

Board of Directors 
 

Agenda Item 
 

7.1.2 

Title of Report 
 

Month 7 Finance Report 

Date of Meeting 
 

26 November 2014 

Author 
 

Julie Clarke, Head of Financial Management 

Accountable 
Executive  

Alistair Mulvey, Director of Finance 

FOI status  
 

Document may be disclosed in full 
 

BAF Reference  
 

4,5,11,12,19 

Data Quality Rating  Silver – quantitative data that has not been externally  validated 
 

Level of Assurance  Full 
  

 Board confirmation 

 
1. Executive Summary  

 
Income and Expenditure Position 
 
The planned income and expenditure position for Month 7 is an in month surplus of £586k. 
Against this plan, an actual surplus of £494k was delivered, resulting in an adverse 
variance of £92k in month.     
 
The cumulative position for the first 7 months shows a cumulative deficit of £4,652k against 
a planned deficit of £3,976k; this represents an adverse variance against plan of £676k.  
This now means that in order for the Trust to operate within its plan for the year – which is a 
deficit of £4.2m, it will be necessary for there to be no further deterioration in the position for 
the remaining months of the year; and furthermore that the adverse variance reported in the 
first 7 months is recovered.  Thus in months 8 to 12 it will be necessary for the Trust to 
deliver a surplus in order to achieve the plan.    
 
In overall terms NHS Clinical income is above plan for October, which includes non 
recurrent increases in income from commissioners to support referral to treatment times 
and urgent care, together with associated costs to support delivery.   
 
A clear message, through the Chief Executive Forum, has been provided within the 
organisation that given the financial position it is required that: 
 

• There is a cessation of all non-essential expenditure 
• Where possible necessary expenditure should be delayed 
• Increases in pay costs to be curtailed wherever possible and 
• The generation and delivery of further ideas to close the financial gap this year and 

into the new financial year 
 
 
 
 

wuth.nhs.uk Page 35



  @wuthnhs #proud 
 
Cash Position & Continuity of Service Ratios (COS) 
 
The cash position is £15.2m, £11.2m better than plan, this is largely due to: 
 

• Increase in net of trade creditors and trade debtors, including specific cash 
management actions. 

• Payments received early (ahead of terms) 
• Capital spend below plan 
• Draw down of first tranche of the loan 
• Positive movements offset by delayed sale of Springview 

 
The overall Continuity of Service rating at month 7 is a 2, which is in line with the planned 
COS rating. However the Capital Service metric did not increase to a 2 as planned for 
month 7 due to operational income & expenditure performance.  The year-end forecast is 
forecast to be a 2 as the fall in EBITDA position is offset by the planned sale of Springview 
(the sale of which was originally scheduled for August).  The liquidity position will also 
benefit from the drawdown of a loan from the ITFF to support the capital programme.  
 
The headline financial position is summarised as follows: 
 

Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
Operating Revenue 25,791 26,237 446 173,774 175,994 2,220 172,685 171,146 (1,539)
Employee Expenses (16,943) (17,381) (438) (118,431) (121,625) (3,194) (111,387) (119,132) (7,745)
All Other Operational Expenses (7,116) (7,506) (390) (47,500) (50,098) (2,598) (43,154) (46,719) (3,565)
Reserves 12 262 250 (3,896) (1,120) 2,776 (9,014) (804) 8,210

EBITDA 1,744 1,612 (132) 3,947 3,151 (796) 9,130 4,491 (4,639)
Post EBITDA Items (1,158) (1,118) 40 (7,923) (7,803) 120 (7,336) (7,352) (16)
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 586 494 (92) (3,976) (4,652) (676) 1,794 (2,861) (4,655)

EBITDA % 6.8% 6.1% (0.6%) 2.3% 1.8% (0.5%) 5.3% 2.6% (2.7%)
CIP as % Op Expense 4.9% 4.7% (0.2%) 3.5% 2.6% (0.9%) 4.9% 1.5% (3.4%)

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT MONTH 7 2014/15 (OCT)

In Month Year to Date Year to Date

Comparative 2013/14 
Position (Month 7)

 
 
Cost Improvement Programme (CIP) 
 
The Trust has an annual CIP target of £13.0m this was extracted from the budget at the 
start of the year.  Identified CIP plans (c. £8.5m) were extracted according to the profile of 
the schemes identified (including cost avoidance), with the balance extracted in a flat profile 
(12 ths).  At the time of the plan the balance was £4.5m so under £0.4m was unidentified 
each month.  
 
As at month 7 schemes have delivered £3.7m, a shortfall of £2.3m against the year to date 
target of £6.0m and the latest CIP forecast is £10.5m compared with a £13m target. Please 
see table below for detail by Division/Executive theme leads. 
 

Page 36



Month 7 CIP Position 
 

 
 

2. Background 
 
The Trust began the year with a deficit plan of £4.2m, which provided a risk rating of 2.  The 
position for the first 7 months of the year translates into; 

 
• a planned deficit of £4.0m, against which an actual deficit of £4.7m has been delivered 

(£0.7m adverse variance); and  
• A COS rating of 2 in line with the planned COS rating of 2, although the Capital Service 

metric did not increase to a 2 as planned for month 7 due to operational income & 
expenditure performance. 
 

The cash position is £15.2m, £11.2m better than plan; this is largely due to early settlement 
of debtors, delays in the payment of creditors, slippage in the capital programme, specific 
actions taken to improve cash management and the draw down of the first tranche of the 
loan.  The positive variance in cash balances is offset in part by the poor income and 
expenditure position, and the delay in the sale of Springview.  
 

3. Key Issues 
 
The Trust has a deficit of £4.7m at Month 7 against a plan of £4.0m; this position is not 
sustainable going forward.  The Trust has continued to work closely in order to assist in 
improving the financial performance and in embedding deeper transformational change.  
 
For the Trust to achieve its plan for the year it will be necessary for there to be no further 
deterioration in the position for the remaining months of the year; and furthermore that the 
adverse variance reported in the first 7 months is recovered. 
 
Divisional Analysis 
The following table shows the summary Divisional position (cumulative to Month 7).  The 
senior management teams within the Divisions have provided further explanation and 
context to the respective positions, and this is included in further detail (attached to this 
document).  
 

Page 37



Divisional Analysis of Income & Expenditure Position 
 

Detail
Medicine & 

Acute
Surgery & 

W&C
Clinical 
Support 

Op & Lab 
Medicine Corporate Central Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
NHS Clinical Income
Planned Income 66,341 77,236 5,463 3,967 504 3,653 157,164
Actual Income 68,939 75,662 6,266 4,053 439 3,678 159,037
Variance 2,598 (1,574) 803 86 (65) 25 1,873

Net Expenditure
Planned Expenditure 45,915 43,136 25,170 16,178 19,288 3,530 153,217
Actual Expenditure 48,493 44,320 26,429 16,778 19,136 730 155,886
Variance (2,578) (1,184) (1,259) (600) 152 2,800 (2,669)

Variance EBITDA 20 (2,758) (456) (514) 87 2,825 (796)

Post EBITDA
Planned Post EBITDA 7,923 7,923
Actual Post EBITDA 7,803 7,803
Variance 0 0 0 0 0 120 120

Total Variance to Plan 20 (2,758) (456) (514) 87 2,945 (676)  
 
Pay Analysis 
 
The most significant area of expenditure for the Trust in October, relates to pay.  The total 
pay spend for October was £17.4m, this is comparable to the costs incurred in August and 
September, although the preceding period incurred costs of £17.2m.  The following figure 
provides further detail of the monthly and cumulative position in the year to date, and also 
splits expenditure between permanent (core) spend and other (non-core) spend types.   
 
Analysis of Pay Spend 
 

April May June July August September October YTD

Detail £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Budget 16,789 16,922 16,901 16,933 16,944 16,999 16,943 118,431

Pay Costs

Permanent 15,950 16,081 15,944 15,776 15,785 15,897 15,870 95,433

Bank Staff 299 326 297 355 347 342 330 2,296

Agency Staff 318 357 311 379 537 449 504 2,855

Overtime 318 208 209 162 174 229 195 1,495

Locum 418 336 301 374 435 380 339 2,583

WLI (In Year) 180 138 170 164 171 125 143 1091

Total 17,484 17,444 17,234 17,210 17,449 17,422 17,381 121,624

Variance (695) (522) (333) (277) (505) (423) (438) (3,193)

Pay Reserves 495 205 70 122 50 60 170 1172

Variance (after reserves) (200) (317) (263) (155) (455) (363) (268) (2,021)  
 

4. Next Steps  
 
The Trust has continued to work closely in order to assist in improving the financial 
performance and in embedding deeper transformational change.   The financial 
performances of the divisions are being closely monitored through the monthly performance 
review process.  A clear message has been provided within the organisation, emphasing 
the necessity for the financial position to be improved, both in terms of delivery of activity 
and control of costs.  
 
 
 
 

Page 38



5. Conclusion 
 
The in month position shows a surplus of £494k, against a plan of £586k, resulting in an 
adverse variance of £92k.  The year to date position shows a deficit of £4,652k, which is 
£676k worse than planned.  In order for the Trust to operate within its plan it will be 
necessary that the position does not deteriorate any further in the remaining months of the 
year; and furthermore that the Trust recovers the adverse performance for the first 7 
months of the year.  A clear message has been provided within the organisation as to the 
importance of delivering against activity plans, and in controlling and minimising costs. 
 

6. Recommendations  
 
The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report.  

 
 
Alistair Mulvey 
Director of Finance 
November 2014 
 
Attachment – Divisional Overview & Narratives 
 

Page 39



 

 
 

 
 Page 40



 

 
         
The division reported a £315k surplus in month 7, the fourth successive month within 
which a surplus was reported and has resulted in the cumulative position having a surplus 
against plan of £20k. A concern for the forthcoming months is the shortage of therapy 
support staff and the pressures this may cause with the additional activity anticipated for 
the winter months and also the shortcomings of schemes from external providers to aid 
reductions to length of stay. 
 
Clinical Income within the division is over achieving by c£2.6m, the main drivers of this 
include additional volumes of activity within planned care work streams both out-patients 
and in-patient care (£135k and £762k respectively relating to 930 out-patient and 1,374 in-
patients) and increased volumes of patients from a non elective care perspective. Non 
elective activity (net of re-admissions) has over performed against plan by 1,127 patients 
equating to £1,738k.  The Division has generated this additional non elective activity within 
a reduced bed base of 40 funded beds.  However, Emergency Department attendances 
are up against plan by 626, but due to penalties imposed relating to the 4-hour breaches, 
the net income position for ED is down against plan by £419k.  
 
The net costs of service delivery have exceeded the planned budget by £2.6m. The most 
significant element of pressure relates to staff costs, c£2.2m with the balance being 
slippage against CIP plans and over spending against clinical supplies.  
From a pay perspective, the cumulative deficit relates to; 
 

• ED staffing, £0.6m - the current level of overspending has reduced per month as 
expected rather than the previous £100k per month. The excess costs which will 
persist relate to the use of temporary/locum staff whilst awaiting substantive staff 
to be appointed. The department has, in the last month appointed another 
substantive consultant which reduces the current consultant gap to two wte. 

• Gastro currently has overspending of c£534k as locum staff are required to fulfill 
vacant posts. It should be noted that the current over recovery of income within 
gastro is £370k and therefore partially off sets these costs. Recruitment 
processes are underway to fill posts substantively. However, the over-recovery 
of income is not expected to continue as the speciality planned activity 
assumptions increase significantly in the latter part of the financial year and 
there will be additional gaps due to Nurse Endoscopists leaving in December. 

• Nursing costs – nursing budgets are currently £920k overspending, keay areas 
of this are; 
 

o £200k relates to staffing of additional beds opened through the preceding 
6 months as patient demand and infection control and prevention 
measures have impacted on the core bed stock 

o £285k relates to staff sickness cover. Sickness levels were at 5.6% at 
their height in 14/15 and through a programme of work have been 
reduced to under 4% in September 

o £292k relates to the provision of additional staff for Specialing of patients 
as a function of their acuity needs. A revised process of agreement for 
the use of additional staff has been implemented and seen favourable 
financial results in the last two months although is likely to remain a 
pressure moving forwards. 

 
 Page 41



Pressures through non pay subjective lines include variable costs associated with 
clinical supplies of c£471k which are in the main driven by over activity and 
therefore covered by income secured. To ensure controls and best practice 
processes for ordering goods is in place the divisional teams are working closely 
with procurement colleagues. 

 
The division continues to work closely with the PMO and FTI to maximize delivery of 
CIP. Whilst the division is confident that it will achieve its target on a recurrent basis, 
in year the division is facing a c£706k year to date pressure, which includes 
slippage on income schemes not being realised. All efforts continue to be focused 
on bridging the in year gap.  

 
A detailed forecast outturn position based on current performance levels and run 
rates has been completed, which has the Division delivering a deficit of £1.2m, 
which has been reduced from a forecast earlier in the year of over £3m and is 
anticipated to be achieved through additional income, investment in staffing and 
cost reduction schemes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 42



 

 
 
The divisions overall financial position deteriorated in month 7 by £252k generating a 
cumulative year to date deficit of £2.76m. Within the overall deficit position expenditure 
variances are £1.2m year to date deterioration in month of £110k and income under 
performance is currently £1.57m of which £142k was in month. 
The key cumulative drivers of the overall year to date expenditure variance of £1.2m 
include; 
 

• £249k to support additional bed capacity, of which £108k relates to the provision 
of the Trust CPE cohort ward; 

• £350k relates to Non-PBR excluded devices and high cost drugs, which are 
pass through costs and attract additional income; 

• £435k relates to Park Suite underperformance, against which there is strategic 
agreement to identify a different PP provision, this will be supplemented with in 
year price changes where available. Agreement was reached at the beginning of 
the year that whilst this service sat within the Surgical division any associated 
pressure would be centrally managed; 

• £521k of CIP underperformance and  
• Underspend of £300k on Trauma & Orthopaedics costs which is due to Income 

under performance. 
 
The above costs, which reflect the cumulative position, were also incurred on a 
proportionate basis in month 7.  
 
From an income perspective the division has a cumulative under performance of £1,574k 
of which £142k was in month 7. 
 
Whilst there are variations in income across several points of delivery and specialties the 
key feature within the division both cumulatively and in month relates to orthopaedic 
activity. Year to date orthopaedics is £1,209k behind its elective plan which includes £109k 
in Month 7.  However, there has been additional work done from Wales in T&O which 
offset this under performance. The division has also seen year to date under performance 
against neonatal activity of £278k. Favourable variances, most notably against RTT 
income and income streams associated with Wales go some way to mitigate these gross 
income pressures.  The Division has seen an improvement in its First Appointment 
outpatient activity and Non-Elective activity in Month 7 relating to an over performance of 
£22k and £44k. 
 
The division continues to scrutinise the detail of the orthopaedic position from both a 
retrospective and prospective perspective increasingly focusing on a daily and weekly 
basis on the volume of operations booked to ensure slots are filled and resource utilisation 
maximised and available capacity used for alternative services where appropriate. 
 
The PBR orthopaedic plan was set this year based on available capacity to treat patients. 
Within the year there has been a significant casemix shift which means that higher volume, 
lower casemix cases are no longer being received into the Trust thus affecting the ability to 
deliver the plan.  
 
To help mitigate the impact of this the Division approached Betsi Cadwaladr LHB to 
undertake cases to help with Welsh waiting time targets for both orthopaedics and 
ophthalmology to backfill the loss of English activity. These activities are now developing Page 43



although there were some initial operational anomalies to over come. Good working 
between the respective organisational teams have resolved these issues and it is hoped 
that this will support a longer term strategic alliance for future service delivery and it is 
forecast that the financial benefits of this service provision will flow into future periods and 
within September the Division has secured another 116 orthopaedic cases to be 
undertaken from Betsi. The Division is now starting to see an increase in the number of 
elective cases coming through for Wales and hopefully this will continue for the rest of the 
financial year and beyond. 
 
Whilst the overall divisional position remains significantly challenging the focus has been 
and continues to be on; 
 

• Minimising costs where possible with engagement and support with the PMO 
and more recently FTI who are specifically supporting changes within theatre 
use and utilisation; 

• Exploring, with success, new markets for the provision of services, specifically 
within north Wales and potential collaboration with Chester 

• Delivering additional RTT volumes where possible to underpin loss of core 
income and 

• Ensuring prospective systems are in place for the booking of patients to allow 
the divisional management teams can support the maximisation of use of clinics 
and available in-patient resources. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 44



 
 
The Division reported a cumulative overspend of £513k to Month 7 with an adverse 
movement of £121k in month, however, the month 7 position was slightly better than 
forecast by £30k. By Directorate the main areas of overspend are within Labs and Hotel 
Services.  
 
From an income perspective the only area that generates Clinical Income is Pathology 
which is performing slightly ahead of plan (£86k year to date); this increase being largely 
driven by direct access income with Blood Sciences and Cellular Pathology being 
cumulatively ahead of plan whilst Microbiology income is slightly behind. However 
performance against plan has dipped across Pathology for the last four months and as a 
result we are now projecting a small adverse variance for the remaining year. There 
remains an overarching concern around the affordability risk across the economy if these 
levels of diagnostic demand continue. 
 
The Division is reporting a favourable pay variance £190k year to date with only Patient 
Flow showing a cumulative overspend owing in the main to sickness cover and pay 
protection.  
  
Non pay budgets are £670k overspent year to date but this is offset by £382k in 
associated income.  Pathology non pay overspend is £296k offset by £136k income, the 
bulk of lab costs vary with both GP & Trust activity however Pathology is experiencing a 
significant cost pressure in the provision of blood products to the broader organisation 
(£113k year to date net of income recovery – further to last month’s comment updated 
reports were available this month resulting in increased volumes being recharged). Hotel 
Services non pay overspend is £359k offset by higher associated income of £188k, within 
this area is the impact of accommodation guarantee (£119k adverse ytd),  
  
The division remains £502k behind its year to date CIP target and this remains the biggest 
risk to delivering a balanced budget.  All service areas are actively seeking to identify 
further opportunities to bridge any remaining gaps in CIP delivery. 
  
The full year unmitigated position based on current activity levels and run rates is forecast 
to be £1.3m adrift of budget, a slight deterioration on the P6 forecast mainly as a CIP 
slippage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 
 
The Division reported an overspend of £458k year to date to month 7, with an adverse 
movement of £115k in month. However, the month 7 position was £81k better than 
forecast. Year to date Radiology remains underspent by £30k, AHP’s £75k underspent 
and outpatients, £66k underspent.  Theatres are £665k overspent and moved adversely by 
£168k in month. This was predominantly due to an increase in clinical supplies 
expenditure and locum costs.  
   
From an income perspective the Division is performing well and is £801k ahead of plan 
year to date. This is largely driven by direct access income from Radiology. Radiology has 
experienced an 18% increase in activity resulting in £567k income over achievement with 
high demand continuing in areas such as Ultrasound.  Whilst these income gains generate 
a contribution there is an affordability risk across the economy if these levels of diagnostic 
demand continue. 
  
The Division is reporting an adverse pay variance £328k year to date with Theatres £477k 
overspent (£207k of which relates to 16RTT work) and Radiology £125k, however, 
encouragingly Outpatients is in surplus £108k and Therapies is also in surplus by £160k. 
  
Non pay budgets are £331k overspent year to date but this is offset by £147k in 
associated income.  Theatres non pay overspend is £135k offset by £87k income and 
radiology non pay overspend is £197k but there is a shortfall on income of £12k - the bulk 
of these costs being variable costs associated with direct access volumes.  
  
The Division remains £748k behind its year to date CIP target. Specifically Theatres and 
Anaesthetics are £351k behind plan, Radiology £202k behind, Therapies £143k behind 
and Outpatients £52k behind.  This is the biggest risk to delivering a balanced budget.  
Every service is actively in consultation/implementation to introduce new structures which 
will reduce cost. The division is working closely with PMO in exploring further opportunities 
to bridge any remaining gaps in CIP delivery. 
  
The full year unmitigated position for Diagnostics & Clinical Support is forecast to be 
£1.0m adrift of budget, an improvement of the P6 forecast of £0.2m mainly as a result of 
the inclusion of benefits associated with the remedial plan to address Direct Access 
waiting times and the realignment of 16wk RTT from Surgery. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 46



 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  wuth.nhs.uk 
  @wuthnhs #proud 

 
9 January 2015  
 
Re:   Compliance with the 4 Hour Standard  
 
 
Quarter 3 performance against the Emergency Department standard was a significant challenge for 
the Trust. I can now confirm a Quarter 3 position of 92.24% against the 95% standard.    
 
The start of Quarter 4 has seen a significant increase in the non-elective pressures felt by the Trust. 
In January the hospital has seen the highest number of non-elective medical admissions ever.  
 
It is pleasing to see that the communication agenda the Trust has led on with the BBC and Sky 
News has seen a reduction of inappropriate Emergency Department attendances. However, 
although absolute numbers of ED presentations hasn’t increased the acuity of the patients 
presenting at our Emergency Department has increased significantly, which is placing immense 
pressure within the emergency department and inpatient flow.  
 
The demographic changes on Wirral mean that it is now not unusual to see multiple patients over 
the age of 100 years within our Emergency Department; in fact on one recent day we had 3 patients 
aged 100 years plus in the department 
 
The acuity has also been seen from the ambulance conveyance perspective with Wirral receiving 
some of the highest number of ambulance attendances within the region. Average ambulance 
arrivals that the Trust would expect are circa 80 conveyances per day, in January the hospital saw 
days where ambulance presentations have been over 140 patients directly to the ED. 
 
As expected with such high numbers of ambulance arrivals, admissions specifically to medicine 
have increased significantly since late December, which is demonstrated within the graph below. 
 
Average admissions for quarter 3 were 83 patients per day, this has increased in quarter 4 (up to 8th 
January) to 98 patients per day. 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

01
 No

v

03
 No

v

05
 No

v

07
 No

v

09
 No

v

11
 No

v

13
 No

v

15
 No

v

17
 No

v

19
 No

v

21
 No

v

23
 No

v

25
 No

v

27
 No

v

29
 No

v

01
 De

c

03
 De

c

05
 De

c

07
 De

c

09
 De

c

11
 De

c

13
 De

c

15
 De

c

17
 De

c

19
 De

c

21
 De

c

23
 De

c

25
 De

c

27
 De

c

29
 De

c

31
 De

c

02
 Ja

n

04
 Ja

n

06
 Ja

n

08
 Ja

n

Ad
mi

ssi
on

s

Non-Elective Medical Admissions

ED

GP

Total

 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 

  wuth.nhs.uk 
  @wuthnhs #proud 

Our Acute Medicine department have been over the last four months adapting the way they provide 
consultant level review. I am pleased to confirm that from December every patient, both ED and GP 
admissions are now seen by an acute physician before admission to the main hospital. I understand 
that we are one of the few Trusts that provide such an enhanced timely senior medical review. The 
graph below demonstrates how we have seen a month on month increase in the number of patients 
discharged directly from our Acute Medicine Units; December 2014 has seen 60% of patients 
discharged from our Acute Medicine Team. 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14

% D
isch

arg
e

Percentage of Patients Discharged from Acute Medicine

 
 
The schemes the economy has put in place have, I feel, assisted in mitigating the impact of these 
significant spikes in admission and acuity. However, the Trust has on a number of days managed 
patient flow in a command and control basis to ensure optimum flow and patient safety. 
 
 
Length of stay within medicine has remained static since late summer, which I feel gives an 
indication that although the hospital is under immense pressure, the models of care being adopted, 
albeit they are in their infancy are the right models of care, which require further expediting in both 
speed of delivery and capacity.  
 
 

Rolling YoY -8.3%

Financial YoY -9.2%

Discharges in Month Avg Non-Elective LoS

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Dec 13 Apr 14 Aug 14 Dec 14

 
 
Given the lack of available social care capacity in Wirral the Trust in in discussion with the CCG and 
Spire Murrayfield regarding the possibility of the commencement of Discharge to Assess, in a bid to 
reduce the number of medical fit patients in acute beds, to have a positive impact on both the 
number of escalation beds the Trust is currently having to staff and ensuring availability of acute 
inpatient capacity.   

Page 50



 

  wuth.nhs.uk 
  @wuthnhs #proud 

 
Compliance for quarter 4 continues to be a challenge.  On average we have seen 58 breaches of 
the 4 hour standard per day, the Trust has put in place a range of emergency initiatives to improve 
on this position such as; additional inpatient capacity, mutual aid for nursing workforce and as 
stated earlier ran several days on a internal major incident setting.  
 
The economy are extremely disappointed not to be able to provide our patients with more timely 
care despite our collective best efforts. Please be assured we continue to review our activity data 
with health and social care partners on a regular basis to ensure where possible efficiencies in 
patient flow are made. 
 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

2ND FEBRUARY 2015 

SUBJECT: SCRUTINY OF THE PROPOSED CHANGES TO 
PROVISION OF SERVICES BY 
CLATTERBRIDGE CANCER CENTRE NHS 
FOUNDATION TRUST   

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CLLRS MOIRA MCLAUGHLIN AND  
WENDY CLEMENTS  

 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1   Members will be aware of proposed changes to the provision of services by Clatterbridge 
Cancer Centre NHS Foundation Trust. At a meeting held on 8th July 2014, this Committee 
resolved that the proposals were “a substantial variation to service”. Subsequently, Committee 
agreed to participate in a joint health scrutiny committee alongside a number of neighbouring 
Merseyside and Cheshire Local Authorities. This report provides members with an update 
regarding the outcomes of the joint scrutiny review.  

 
2.0 BACKGROUND  

2.1 A Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (the Committee) was established in October 
2014 to consider proposals for changes to the provision of cancer services provided by 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre (CCC). Eight neighbouring authorities agreed to participate in a 
joint scrutiny review: Cheshire West and Chester, Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, Sefton, St 
Helens, Warrington and Wirral. All Local Authorities were represented by two members. Wirral’s 
representatives were Councillors Moira McLaughlin and Wendy Clements.    

 
The Joint Committee was convened for a period of six weeks and met on five occasions.  The 
meetings heard evidence from: 

• Executive Officers and clinicians from Clatterbridge Cancer Centre NHS Foundation 
Trust 

• Patients representatives 
• Staff Members 

 
3.0 THE PROPOSAL FOR TRANSFORMING CANCER CARE 
 
3.1   Proposals for Transforming Cancer Care 

A key part of the proposal is the development of a new Cancer Centre in Liverpool adjacent to 
the redeveloped Royal Liverpool University Hospital. The proposed new Cancer Centre will 
provide all inpatient oncology beds for the Cancer Network together with outpatient oncology 
services for those patients for whom the Liverpool site is the most accessible.  The new Cancer 
Centre would therefore operate as the hub supporting a network of cancer services including 
the satellite radiotherapy centre at Aintree Hospital and the existing Cancer Centre at 
Clatterbridge which in the proposals will continue to deliver outpatient cancer care to its local 
population on the Wirral and West Cheshire.  This is in addition to the network of CCC 
outpatient and chemotherapy peripheral sites operated in partnership with local hospitals.    

 
4.0 KEY ISSUES ESTABLISHED BY THE SCRUTINY REVIEW 

From the evidence presented both in written and verbal format the Committee considered the 
following as key issues relating to the development of cancer services in Merseyside and 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Cheshire.   
 

4.1  Quality of Care 
• The Clatterbridge Cancer Centre is highly regarded as a specialist cancer trust.  The 
committee heard from patients, senior clinical, front line staff and Trust Executives of the 
aspirations for the enhancement of the clinical services at the new hub in Liverpool.  This will 
be developed in tandem with the continued development and maintenance of services at the 
current satellite site at Aintree and peripheral sites in Cheshire and Merseyside.  A key 
element of the proposals includes the upgrading of facilities retained on the Clatterbridge site 
following the proposed opening of the new facilities in Liverpool. 

• A key feature of the proposals is the enhancement of clinical services and facilities to enable 
the trust to care for very acutely ill patients.  This is currently not possible within the current 
Clatterbridge site necessitating the transfer of patients who are critically ill to other hospitals.  
The location of Cancer Services alongside acute medical and surgical services was 
recognised by the committee as a key component in the delivery of high quality care for 
patients.   

• The establishment of a new radiotherapy service in Liverpool will increase the current capacity 
of radiotherapy,which will be run in conjunction with the current capacity already in place at 
Aintree Hospital and Clatterbridge.   

• Staff were on the whole supportive of the proposed development and recognised the benefits 
of this for patients. However, the consultation analysis highlighted that just under 25% of staff 
did not consider that the proposals would help deliver and improve the quality of care.  The 
committee heard of the on-going dialogue with staff and trades unions as part of the project.   

• The creation of a new hub in Liverpool was recognised as being a ‘magnet’ to attract and 
retain highly qualified and committed staff which could only be of benefit to patients.   

 
4.2   Quality of Facilities 

• Improving the quality of the clinical facilities at the new Cancer Centre is a key focus for the 
transformational plans for cancer services on Cheshire and Merseyside.   

• Staff and patients believe that the proposals will provide high quality facilities that improve the 
service experience for all patients but particularly for those that are acutely unwell and for 
teenagers and young adults.   

• The committee heard from a number of stakeholders that the proposals for the new hub have 
taken into account the future demand for services and delivery models.   

• The committee received assurance that alongside the proposed development of the new 
Cancer Centre in Liverpool, investment in the Wirral site is scheduled with a completion date 
of 2019.   

 
4.3   Access and Transport 

• The development of the Cancer Centre hub in Liverpool raised issues relating to access for 
patients across Cheshire and Merseyside which the Committee explored in some detail with 
all stakeholders.  In particular issues raised included access by public transport, car parking 
arrangements and travelling arrangements between sites for staff. 

• The committee heard of the on-going work relating to transport planning for the new centre 
which will continue throughout the lifetime of the project.  

• Car parking for patients and visitors was identified as a particular concern given the adjacency 
of the new cancer centre to Royal Liverpool Hospital and the city centre.  Information on the 
current arrangements for free car parking for patients and visitors at the current Clatterbridge 
Cancer Centre site was provided.  There was an expressed commitment to this as an 
operating principle within the future development. 

• Views from patients highlighted that the issue of travel and associated costs had been raised 
by many people.  They, however, emphasised that the prime reason for relocation of the 
service was to improve services for patients.   

Page 54



 

 

• Whilst much of the discussion focussed on access to the new Cancer Centre in Liverpool by 
car, the committee wished to see the continued consideration of the development of public 
transport options for staff, visitors and patients.   

• The committee were anxious to ensure that access and transport arrangements for staff were 
being considered as part of the planned development.  Some groups of staff will continue to 
travel between sites as currently, but clearly with the relocation of the main treatment and 
planning centre being located in Liverpool this will mean that many staff will be based 
permanently in Liverpool.  A number of options are currently being discussed with staff and 
the trades unions with all options at this stage being considered. The Committee was keen to 
ensure that these issues remain prominent as they were seen as potential barriers to the 
successful implementation of the scheme. 

 
4.4   Patient Views 

• The committee heard from a number of individual patients and representatives from the 
patient reference group for Transforming Cancer Care.   

• Those attending the committee meeting indicated that the information provided at consultation 
events was well received when participants understood that many services would be retained 
at the current site with the new hub in Liverpool being a new specialist centre.  They reflected 
that they considered that the improved service outweighed the issues of service relocation.   

• Overall they felt that the proposals would raise the level of patient care and that the ethos of 
patient care at the heart of service delivery would be maintained by the Trust.  This would 
ensure that Clatterbridge Cancer Centre continued to be recognised as a centre of excellence 
for cancer care.   

 
4.5   Research  

• The proposals for the development of the new cancer centre in Liverpool is seen as creating 
the opportunity for the development of research facilities which will bring about greater 
benefits for patients from new treatments and also through participation in clinical trials.   

• The committee heard how the proposals will enable closer integration between the NHS and 
research teams at the University of Liverpool and other key research partners in the public 
and private sector.   

• These developments are seen as placing Clatterbridge Cancer Centre at the forefront of 
cancer research and treatment nationally and internationally.   

• Staff who work in this area were genuinely excited by what this presented both in terms of 
research opportunities and also the ability to attract greater funding for cancer research and 
the benefits that this presented for patients in improving cancer outcomes.   

• The benefits of being close to the medical school at the University of Liverpool was highlighted 
as being advantageous not only through the initiation of research but also through being able 
to provide medical undergraduate training which is currently not possible with the current 
Cancer Centre in Wirral.  Opportunities to gain experience in oncology at undergraduate level 
is more likely to encourage post qualification specialisation, so retaining medical staff in the 
city and increasing the likelihood of recruitment and retention of staff on an on-going basis.   
 

4.6   Project Management and Construction 
• The Transforming Cancer Care Project has a dedicated Programme Director from whom the 
Committee received an overview of the project together with details of the programme.  The 
outline business case has already been widely consulted on with the aim for this to be 
approved by June 2015 and full outline business case by early 2016.  The proposal is for site 
works to commence mid-2016.   

• The Committee were concerned to understand the process for procurement of the contractor, 
Laing O’Rourke, for the development of the new Cancer Centre.   

• The Committee heard that consideration had been given to ensuring social value aspects 
were taken into account within the procurement both relating to goods and services but also 
the workforce employed on the project by the contractor.  The committee are keen to explore 
the appropriate mechanisms for maintaining an overview of the project as the construction 

Page 55



 

 

progresses; a proposal welcomed by the Programme Team and by the construction partner, 
Laing O’Rourke.     

 
4.7   Financial Sustainability 

• The committee heard from both the Chief Executive and the Director of Finance of 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre.  In summary, the Committee understand that the funding for the 
programme is from a mix of sources including, trust financial reserves, limited borrowing and a 
charity appeal.   
 

4.8   Consultation outcomes 
• A formal 12 week public consultation was undertaken on the proposals for transforming 
Cancer Care.  Analysis of the findings were independently analysed by researchers at 
Liverpool John Moores University.  The committee received the Transforming Cancer Care 
Merseyside and Cheshire Public Consultation Analysis of Findings and had opportunity to 
review and discuss outcomes with members of the Trust Executive.   

• The committee considered that the whole process of consultation and engagement was 
stakeholder and user led. The consultation process has been recognised as exemplary and 
should be seen as a model for any future developments.   

 
5.0 CONCLUSIONS OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

At the Joint Committee held in Liverpool on 4th December 2014, the following motions were 
approved unanimously: 
 “This Committee supports the proposed future model of cancer services for Cheshire and 
Merseyside, including the new site adjacent to the Royal Liverpool University Teaching 
Hospital” 
 
 “That this Committee supports the establishment of a discretionary scrutiny committee to 
oversee the delivery of the new build project in Liverpool and refurbishment of the Wirral site” 

 
Participation in any discretionary scrutiny committee will be done so in line with the ‘Protocol for 
Establishment of Joint Health Scrutiny in Cheshire and Merseyside’, which has been reported 
previously to members.    

 
6.0   RECOMMENDATIONS 

Members are requested to: 
(1) note the decision of the Joint Committee to support the proposed future model of cancer 

services for Cheshire and Merseyside, including the new site adjacent to the Royal 
Liverpool University Teaching Hospital ;  

(2) support, in principle, Wirral Borough Council participating in a discretionary Joint 
Committee to maintain a scrutiny and oversight role during the lifetime of the project.   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Alan Veitch 
  0151 691 8564  email:  alanveitch@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 56



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

FAMILIES & WELLBEING POLICY & PERFORMANCE 
COMMITTEE 

2 FEBRUARY 2015 
 

SUBJECT: Commissioning community services, 
managing the market and reducing 
reliance on residential and nursing care 
services 

WARD/S AFFECTED: All Wards 

REPORT OF: Director Adult Social Services 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

Portfolio Holder Adult Social Care and 
Public Health 

KEY DECISION?   No 

 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 Wirral has traditionally had a relatively high level of reliance on the residential 
sector for older people’s care.  In comparison to other Local Authorities 
(ADASS Aqua Data) the proportion of the adult social care spend in Wirral on 
residential care is one of the highest in the region at 38% of the whole budget. 

 
1.2 The high spend on residential care services reflects a position where the spend 

on community based services has been low.  The market has had to be 
transformed through strategic commissioning to build resilience and quality. 

 
1.3 The strategic commissioning paper Shaping Tomorrow 2012 to 2015 set out 

how the shift towards independence and community based services was to be 
achieved.  The Shaping Tomorrow - Local Account 2013 reported on the 
specific commissioning actions that have supported a re-shaped market to 
provide capacity in local communities. 

 
1.4 Contemporary data shows that the shift is continuing supported be more 

effective case management and take up of commissioned services focussed on 
independence. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The overarching commissioning strategy was developed to make sure that the 
principles of personalisation and the transformation of adult social care would 
be fully embedded in commissioning processes and practices. 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



 

 

2.2 Commissioning for the health and wellbeing of individuals meant helping local 
citizens to: 

• Look after themselves and stay healthy and independent; 
• Participate fully as active members of their communities; 
• Choose and easily access the type of help they need, when they need it. 
 

2.3 Commissioning for the health and wellbeing of a local population therefore 
included: 
• Understanding and anticipating future need; 
• Promoting health and inclusion and supporting independence; 
• Identifying the groups or areas that are getting a raw deal, and giving them a 
voice to influence improvements; 
• Delivering the best and safest possible quality of care. 

 
2.4 In order to achieve these outcomes the Council needed to continue the 

transformation away from a paternalistic, reactive care to a system focused 
on; 
• Early intervention and prevention; 
• Reablement; 
• High quality personally tailored services. 
 

2.5 The adult social care Local Account 2013/2014 reported on commissioning 
changes being made to facilitate the shifts towards a more independent 
model as set out above.  The following changes should be noted between 
2012 and 2013 indicating that commissioning activity and market re-shaping 
was already having an effect; 

 
Area of care and support 2012  2013 
People receiving an adult social care service 
 

9,674  9,861 

People receiving a Personal Budget/Direct 
Payment 

6,259  6,677 

Permanent Residential or Nursing Care 
admissions 

1,622  1,595 

People receiving a package of care 8,052  8,266 
 

 
2.6 The Local Account provides a strong point of reference in explaining how the 

shifts have been made including the following initiatives that were delivered; 
 - Restructured assessment and care management teams into constituencies 

- Revised the contracts for reablement and domiciliary care providers into 
tiers based on neighbourhoods.  This commission enabled the introduction 
and embedding of the ethical care charter principles. 
- Introduced dedicated Contract and Quality Assurance monitoring 
- Implemented a mobile night service 
- Developed Extra Care Housing schemes 
- Invested in an integrated commission for Step Up and Step Down services, 
supporting timely discharges and enabling people to avoid hospital 
admissions where appropriate 
- Revised the range of services to support carers 

Page 58



 

 

- Commissioned a focussed range of support services in collaboration with 
the third sector 
- Reviewed day care services 
 

2.7 In relation to activity in 2014 an ongoing decrease in placements has been 
reported between April and November 2014; there has been a 10% reduction 
in permanent care home placements compared to the same period in 2013. 

 
2.8 In the past, up to 75% of permanent care home placements were made 

following a period of short term care which resulted as part of a discharge 
plan from hospital care.  Given the changing demographics and the 
subsequent increase in hospital admissions, the sustained reduction in 
numbers of placements made in 2014 is very positive. 

 
2.9 In terms of Social Work practice we are leading significant changes.  There is 

far greater emphasis on supporting service users to remain in their own home 
through independent living services such as reablement. 

  
2.10 This is illustrated by the data on STAR reablement services which are 

delivered to service users in their own home, often following a period of 
hospital care or following a period of ill health or reduction in a person’s 
abilities.  The data on STAR activity shows an increase of 36% in 2014/15 as 
compared to 2013/14.  This shows that more people are being offered 
rehabilitation as opposed to traditional care packages.  The outcomes for 
STAR cases demonstrate that the majority of service users move on to 
independence or reduced dependence on services following a period of 
STAR input. 

 
2.11 The changes in practice are supported with a changed focus in strategic 

commissioning.  Through joint investment with the NHS this has increased 
the number of short term intermediate care and transitional care beds, which 
provide therapeutic and convalescent care and support people to return to 
their own homes and also aim to reduce inpatient hospital care. The 
development of intermediate care services has included significant 
remodelling work to improve the joint approach between hospital, community 
Integrated Care Coordination Teams (ICCT) and intermediate care services. 
 

2.12 Integrated Care Coordination Teams are beginning to demonstrate that a joint 
approach to health and social care is effective at keeping people at home and 
helps to avoid the need for permanent care home placements. Development 
around Integrated Care Coordination Teams continues at a pace, and 
reduction in the numbers of new permanent care home placements is one of 
the performance indicators that will demonstrate their effectiveness. 
 

2.13  In addition, robust governance arrangements are in place to ensure that any 
requests for permanent care home placement authorisations are thoroughly 
scrutinised by Senior Managers before they are agreed.  This scrutiny 
involves a detailed review of all options considered to support the person to 
remain in their own home and all alternative options to meet their identified 
needs through a partnership approach and through alternative funding 
streams. 

Page 59



 

 

 
2.14 Significant progress is being made via developments in operational practice, 

partnership working, joint commissioning and robust governance to ensure 
that the reduction in permanent care home placements is sustained.  This is 
in the context of an increase in the older population with significant support 
needs. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Individual risks are taken account of in relation to personal support plans as 
part of the statutory assessment process. 

 
3.2 Investments have been made in community based services in order to support 

the shift away from residential bed based services.  A continued shift from 
reliance on residential care is a core part of the financial strategy for social 
care. 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 N/A 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 The commissioning strategy was subject to formal consultation. 
 
6.0 OUTSTANDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ACTIONS  

6.1  N/A 
 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

7.1 N/A 
 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

8.1 The shift away from residential care has been taken account of in relation to the 
budget available for social care which has also included plans for investment 
into community based services in order to support the shift away from 
residential bed based services.   

 
 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 N/A 
 
 
10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 No because the commissioning strategy was equality impact assessed, all 

individual care plans are personalised to the needs of the individual and their 
specific circumstances. 

Page 60



 

 

    
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 N/A 
 
12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 N/A 
 
13.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

13.1 That progress in relation to performance against this important indicator is 
noted. 

 
13.2 That Committee note the extent of significant market improvements that have 

been driven through strategic commissioning activity. 
 
 
14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

14.1 The report covers activity in relation to a key corporate performance indicator  
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Graham Hodkinson 
 Director of Adult Social Services 
 telephone  (0151) 666 3650 
 email grahamhodkinson@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS/REFERENCE MATERIAL 

Shaping Tomorrow 2012 to 2015 

Shaping Tomorrow - Local Account 2013 

 
BRIEFING NOTES HISTORY 

Briefing Note  Date 

  

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL  

FAMILIES & WELLBEING – POLICY & PERFORMANCE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

2nd February 2015 
 

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON THE LEISURE REVIEW 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: CLARE FISH – STRATEGIC DIRECTOR – 
FAMILIES & WELLBEING 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

CLLR CHRISTINE MEADEN 

 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report is to provide members of the Committee with an update on 
the progress of the first year of the two year Leisure review and 
modernisation programme. 
. 

1.2 The update identifies that progress has been made across all 
‘workstreams’ including; reducing operating costs to save over £340k, 
restructuring programming and pricing to deliver increased income 
which has to date achieved  an additional £200k increase above 
budget; and an alternative provider for the beach lifeguard service.  
Market testing of the Golf offer has been undertaken along with a 
detailed review of operating arrangements and costs, and over £2 
million capital has been invested to increase and improve the leisure 
offer at 2 key Leisure Centres and modernise other areas.  
 

1.3 The target operating saving for Year 1 was £1m.  Currently the service 
is expected to see some slippage on the target by £260k owing to 
delays in implementing a number of key changes. 

 
1.4 The service will be moving into Year 2 of the programme from April 

and plans are in place to enable the challenging target to be delivered 
which includes; further modernisation of operating arrangements, 
development of the Marine Lake operations and the review of the Golf 
offer.   

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Members of the committee will be aware of the unprecedented financial challenges the 
Council is facing requiring budget reductions of at least £109 million by 2017/18.  As 
part of the budget process Cabinet agreed in September 2013 to a review of the current 
leisure offer and asked officers to consider a range of alternative delivery models.   

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



 

 

2.2 The recommendations agreed by Cabinet included; 
• The proposal that the Council should continue to operate the service in-house for 

an initial 18 months in order to deliver a transformation programme of savings 
and service redesign.   

• Reviewing the programming and pricing scheme alongside improvements in the 
Invigor8 package.  

• Increase investment in marketing and promotion. 
• Introduce a stronger performance management regime. 
• Introduce the principal of full cost recovery for services, facilities and activities 

provided for third parties. 
 
2.3 Since then a detailed action plan delivered through six workstreams, monitored by the 

Leisure Board, chaired by the Cabinet member for the portfolio has been developed 
and progressed. 

 
 
3.0 PROGRESS TO DATE  

3.1 The programme of action is divided into 6 workstreams and a progress update is 
described against each workstream. 

 

Workstream 1 - Performance 

New standard operating procedures have been introduced across all Leisure Centres which 

include weekly / monthly monitoring of quality assurance indicators e.g. cleanliness, 

complaints / compliments, health & safety, appraisals, budget monitoring and management. 

Weekly / monthly managers meetings are held to progress work on other key areas e.g. 

pricing and programming, development of the Invigor8 product. 

Visits have been made to other commercially operated centres to enable managers to see 

different operating arrangements / best practice which could be used in Wirral. 

Core competencies have been developed for managers and duty managers which will form 

part of a bespoke management development and support programme.  

 

Workstream 2 – New Ways of Working 

Management of the service has been re-structured with reductions of £340k expected to 

be achieved in year. 

The introduction of flexible working across the service is targeted to achieve savings of 

just over £300k in year. 

The Beach lifeguard service will be provided by the RNLI from May resulting in a saving 

of £70k. 

The cost of sickness in the service was very high, equating to 12.9 days per annum but 

is now just below the Wirral Council forecast average of 6.61 days per annum (up to 

Page 64



 

 

and including November’s figures). 

Revised contracts of employment for swimming instructors have been introduced 

identifying 39 and 42 week contracts which will provide efficiencies and continuity to 

both education and Swim Wirral programmes. 

 

Workstream 3 – Pricing & programming 

A report was agreed by Cabinet in July 2014, which updated the existing pricing policy and 

Invigor8 product.  These had evolved over a number of years and had become quite complex 

and confusing for customers and staff. 

The report enabled pricing to be standardised across all Leisure Centres, allowed centres to 

maximise income from those that are able to pay whilst still allowing discounts to targeted 

groups.  

Alongside the above changes a proactive marketing and promotion campaign has been 

developed which includes a new promotion every month linked to events e.g. Golf, Easter, 

current income for play and pay is £118k and Invigor8 £83.2k over and above the 400k 

budget saving. 

Further work has been undertaken to promote the Invigor8 product including corporate 
membership and to date there has been a successful take up.  Following on from the 
success of the 14/15 campaign, a comprehensive marketing plan will be produced for 15/16.  
Campaigns will be delivered with the aim of increasing membership and through a sustained 
promotion of the Invigor8 product to encourage more Wirral residents to become more active 
more often by 25%.   
 

Workstream 4 - Golf 

A soft market testing exercise was undertaken early last year and attracted a healthy 

interest from operators in the field. 

Cabinet agreed in July to proceed to a full procurement exercise in conjunction with 

Cheshire West with whom we had undertaken the soft market testing activity. 

There was a disappointing limited response to the exercise and, whilst Cheshire West 

decided to progress with the candidates, Wirral reluctantly decided to withdraw from the 

process. 

We are currently reviewing the operations of each Golf Course and will come back with 

revised options for the future of the Council’s Golf provision. 

 

Workstream 5 – Capital Investment 

£2 million of capital investment is being invested to increase and enhance the leisure offer.  

Page 65



 

 

At Guinea Gap the former drill hall is being converted into a state of the art Gym with 

exercise studio.  The completion has been delayed due to poor weather but is expected to be 

open by the end of the month.  Already we have received significant interest from staff at the 

Wallasey Complex as well as local residents.  In addition the refurbished football pitches are 

being well used. 

West Kirby Concourse – the work which commenced this month is spread over 3 phases, the 

first of which will see a first floor conversion to create a contempory 80 station fitness suite 

and improved changing facilities.  The second and third phases will create improved activity 

studios and cafeteria.  The six months of building work are expected to be completed in mid 

July 2015.  This will see at minimum anticipated £120k additional income each year.   

Support has been provided from the Council’s Capital programme to refurbish the changing 

facilities at the Oval Leisure Centre which have been affected by the long standing leak from 

the swimming pool, which has also been repaired.   

There are plans to refurbish the outdoor Tennis Courts at the Oval with financial assistance 

from the Lawn Tennis Association.  The tennis courts are currently in a poor physical state 

and have a very low participation figure throughout the year.  The funding stream available is 

through Sport England which will enable Wirral Council to upgrade the 4 tarmac courts and 

add two additional astro turf courts to make a total of 6 completed to Lawn Tennis 

Association specifications.   

Reception Foyer point of sale counters – Funding of £140k has recently been approved to 

develop and improve reception areas at each Leisure Centre.  Our aspiration is to achieve a 

welcoming, fresh looking feel to all centre foyers.   

 

  

Workstream 6 – The Marine Lake 

This workstream focus is on the development of the offer from the Marine Lake 

supported by a marketing and promotion campaign 

A recent submission to the capital programme for £690k which if approved, will give us 

the opportunity to enhance the facilities and offer an integrated service with improved 

operational control, sailing school, administration, modern changing rooms and catering 

facility.  Existing user groups will be invited to share ideas on the design layout with the 

intention to engage architectural design input from April and all planning and tender 

approvals to be in place by Winter 2015.   

A business plan will be developed to create a significant and unique leisure offer as well 

Page 66



 

 

as ensuring the service is self sufficient 

 

 The service has seen significant change occur over the last 12 months which has 

provided many challenges for managers and staff.  It has also seen the creation of a 

range of opportunities to improve and enhance the service.  To date the subsidy of the 

service has reduced by £1.5 million including (£420k additional savings required 

through the Future Council work)  (from £6 million to £4.5 million) and we are focused 

on delivering a further £1 million in 2015/16.   

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 The service is constantly reviewing its operating arrangements to identify further 
efficiency options. 

 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Consultation is ongoing with staff and with customers when required.  We actively 
encourage feedback from customers 

 
6.0 OUTSTANDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ACTIONS  

6.1  As part of the modernisation programme the service was considering not for profit 
delivery arrangement (NPDO) which was intended to provided savings of over £300k.  
This is currently on hold and is being considered as part of the Council’s review of 
services.   

 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

7.1 We have been working closely with the voluntary sector on initiatives where it makes 
sense to do so and will continue to seek those opportunities. 

 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

8.1 As described in the report. 
 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 We have worked closely with legal services when required e.g. Golf Procurement.  
 
10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (a) Yes and impact review has been sent to the Equality and Diversity Co-ordinator. 
 
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 We seek to reduce any implications.  
 
12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

Page 67



 

 

12.1 N/A 
 
13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Members of Scrutiny are requested to note the content of the update report and 
to provide comment on the work to date. 

 
14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

14.1 Members of scrutiny have requested the update report. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Clare Fish – Strategic Director – Families & Wellbeing  
  
 telephone  (0151) 691 8234 
 email Clarefish@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS/REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
 
 
BRIEFING NOTES HISTORY 
 
 
Briefing Note  Date 

 

 

 

 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



 1

WIRRAL COUNCIL  

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE  
 
2ND FEBRUARY 2015 
 

SUBJECT: Youth and Anti-Social Behaviour  

WARD/S AFFECTED: All 

REPORT OF: Director of Children’s Services 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

Councillor Tony Smith 

KEY DECISION?   No 

 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report outlines the current youth provision and has a focus on anti-social 

behaviour (ASB), it serves to highlight the relationship between anti-social 
behaviour (ASB) and youth.  The report gives focus to the general approach for 
collaborative working and specific consideration to youth anti-social behaviour.   

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
 
 Youth Service Provision 
 
2.1 The Youth Service delivers youth provision through district based Youth Hubs, 

Youth Clubs and Youth Outreach Teams.  These units are supported and enhanced 
by Creative Youth Development service (formerly The Youth Theatre), Play 
Schemes, Response, Duke of Edinburgh’s Award and Health Services in Schools.  
All current youth provision has programmes which tackle and raise awareness of 
ASB and the consequences for young people and communities.  As such, ASB is a 
key standard item on all youth workers’ supervision and team meeting agendas. Hot 
spots for ASB or concerns identified through these processes are fed through to the 
Anti-Social Behaviour Team.  However, the work of the youth service’s Youth 
Outreach Teams makes the greatest contribution to the prevention of youth ASB.  

 
2.2 In 2010 the Youth Service reconfigured youth provision to be co-terminus with 

Wirral parliamentary constituencies and Wirral Children and Young People’s 
Department (CYPD) four areas for locality or district based working arrangements. 
This reconfiguration ensured that a dedicated youth outreach team was attached to 
each of the four constituency areas. 
 

2.3  The Youth Outreach Scrutiny Review (2008) recommended that officers merge the 
then Anti-Social Behaviour Team’s, Youth Respect Team and the 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11



 2

Youth Service Outreach Teams. This merger was subsequently undertaken in 
November 2011 as part of the creation of the (former) Wirral Integrated Youth 
Support Service. 
 

2.4  This merger necessitated a review of outreach provision for children and young 
people aged 8-19 years. Subsequently an outreach model was developed that built 
on the success of earlier outreach projects. This model, which –remains in place 
today  targets antisocial behaviour ‘hot spots’, particularly on Friday and Saturday 
evenings and provides support to a wider age range of young people via an 
integrated approach. Ensuring a seamless and joined up provision with improved 
accessibility for children and young people, the model also incorporated a revised 
set of values and priorities focusing in a more targeted way on early help and risk 
taking behaviour. 

 
2.5  Since 2011 this Youth Outreach model has been regularly appraised, to ensure 

operational proficiency and effectiveness.  The Service’s move into Targeted 
Support in 2013 has continued to ensure appropriate focus and attention on ASB, 
seeing preventive activities with targeted groups of young people and specific 
programmes of work with those young people who are the most vulnerable or at 
risk. During the 2013-14 reporting period to date (April to December) - Youth 
Outreach Teams have contacted in excess of 2,750 young people aged 13-19 
years (this equates to over 10% of the 13-19 youth population in Wirral). 

 
2.6 The current Youth Outreach offer consists of: 
 

• Four district youth outreach teams, one in each constituency.  Each team is 
led by a full-time Team Leader supported by a 5 hour per week Principal 
Youth Worker and a staffing establishment of 63 hours per week of Youth 
Support Workers (the equates to approximately 10 part time posts per 
district).  This level of staffing allows for up to 13 individual deployments by 
the team per week in each district. 

 
• Each of the 4 teams has the use of a ‘Kontactabus’ (converted minibus) to 

provide a safe haven for young people and to help deliver informal 
education.  Each bus has floodlighting to illuminate dark and dimly lit areas 
for safe delivery and activities such as football.   

 
Multi Agency ASB Operations 
 
2.7 ASB relating to youths causing annoyance cannot effectively be dealt with in 

isolation.  Therefore, Wirral has implemented a multi-agency approach to respond 
to such situations, as well as to ensure that the right action is taken to achieve the 
best result for everyone involved or affected as a consequence. This approach 
applies the principles of: deterrence, education, rehabilitation and enforcement to 
prevent and tackle anti-social behaviour. 

 
2.8 Due to an increase in reports of youths causing annoyance, Merseyside Police and 

Wirral Community Patrol ASB now generally (although not exclusively) statistically 
record ‘hotspots’ for locational intelligence purposes. This helps ensure the right 
type of response. Below outlines the multi-agency approach to tackling locational 

Page 70



 3

issues of anti-social behaviour; Wirral’s youth service is fully embedded into this 
approach. 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Governance Group: 
 
2.9 The multi-agency Anti-Social Behaviour Governance Group, chaired by a Police 

Chief Inspector, meets on a monthly basis. The group develop and implement plans 
to tackle current anti-social behaviour in ‘hot spot’ locations across the borough.  
The Group also provides a response to any emerging issues that are identified by 
agencies and gives focus to repeat victims. Consideration is also given to locations 
that may benefit from the use of all or some of the powers available in the Anti-
Social Behaviour Crime & Policing Act 2014. Any long-standing and/or problematic 
issues that cannot be resolved at the ASB Governance Group are passed to a 
multi-agency Problem Solving Group (PSG).  A Team Manger from the Youth 
Support Service attends these multi-agency meetings alongside representatives 
from Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service, Anti-Social Behaviour Team, Sports 
Development, Housing Associations, Environmental Health and the Community 
Safety Team. 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour Problem Solving Groups (PSGs) 
 
2.10 The ASB Governance Group will determine the lead officer to co-ordinate the PSG.  

This meeting will include representatives from all or some of the agencies attending 
the ASB Governance Group, depending upon the nature of the presenting issue/s 
and any other representatives deemed appropriate. In most instances Wirral 
Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Team Leader will be asked to co-ordinate the 
Group, in the event this is led by another service relevant Council Officers (including 
Youth Support) will be invited to attend. 

 
2.11 Each Problem Solving Group will adopt a SARA approach to problem solving: 
 

Ø SCANNING - Identification of the problem 
Ø ANALYSIS – The reason there is a problem *  
Ø RESPONSE – The actions that need to take place to remedy the problem 
Ø ASSESSMENT – Ensuring the action taken has the desired outcome 

*using statistics produced by the Joint Community Safety Team. 
 

The members of the PSG work together over a period of time to address 
entrenched hot-spot locations, developing short, medium and longer term 
responses to help secure sustainable change and positive outcomes.  This may 
include all or some of the following: 
  

Ø high visibility policing 
Ø enforcement activity 
Ø referral of identified young people into the Gateway 
Ø referral of identified adults engaging in anti-social behaviour to Wirral   

Page 71



 4

          Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Team 
Ø youth engagement activity 
Ø provision of diversionary and positive activities 
Ø education/awareness activity (including visits to schools) 
Ø environmental clean ups 
Ø reparation and/or community payback 
Ø referrals into Wirral Neighbourhood Justice Scheme 
Ø marketing/communication strategy 

 
The PSG will also request the authorisation of the multi-agency operations, Stay-
Safe (Police) and Test Purchasing (Wirral Council) and other seasonal operations, 
each of which are detailed below. 

 
Operation Stay Safe: 
 
2.12 This is a Police led multi-agency operation that is coordinated to identify under 18’s 

involved in or at risk of being involved in anti-social behaviour (ASB), relating to 
drug and alcohol.  It is predominantly delivered on a Friday and/or Saturday night 
where ASB, alcohol and drug misuse are statistically recorded to be most 
problematic. It is targeted to identify hotspot areas affecting locations where young 
people (or children) are more vulnerable and at risk; namely, parks, town centre 
areas and where there are reports linked to the night time economy. 

 
2.13 The multi-agency approach includes (but is not limited to) the following partners: 
 

Ø Merseyside Police 
Ø Wirral Anti-Social Behaviour Team (WASBT);  
Ø Youth Support Outreach Teams and specialist alcohol and substance misuse 

workers 
Ø Community Patrol 
Ø The Brook (sexual health services) 
Ø Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 
Ø Education Social Welfare Service 
Ø Wirral Council Emergency Duty Team 

 
2.14 This operation adopts a twin track approach to challenge and support for any young 

person found to be at risk from drugs or alcohol. Any young person found to be in 
possession of, or under the influence of drugs and/ or alcohol will be subject to the 
following: 

 
Ø substance will be confiscated 
Ø the person involved will be taken to a place of safety (accompanied by a 

Police Officer) 
Ø immediate support or intervention i.e. health service involvement,  will offered 

to the young person 

Page 72



 5

Ø their parent(s)/carers or legal guardian are contacted and requested to come 
to the place of safety to discuss the incident  with both enforcement and 
support agencies 

Ø The  parent(s)/carers or legal guardian will be offered support and where 
appropriate ensure a wrap around the family approach is considered 

Ø Referrals to the most appropriate agencies will be made to ensure 
sustainable engagement 

 
2.15 The support aspect of this operation is usually provided through the Youth Support 

Service, whose role is to provide information, advice and guidance in the form of a 
brief intervention around the issues of alcohol misuse, staying safe and reducing 
risks and consequences. Consideration will also be given to ensure that the most 
appropriate support referrals are identified and completed for the whole family, 
including referrals to family support and the intensive family intervention programme 
as appropriate (IFIP). 

 
Test  Purchase Operation:  
 
2.16 This is a Wirral Council (Trading Standards) led multi-agency operation that is 

coordinated to check that businesses are complying with the law. The test 
purchases are predominantly for alcohol and tobacco, however this operation can 
also be coordinated for other purchases such as knifes or seasonal purchases such 
as fireworks. These operations can be requested for a number of reasons. 
However, in terms of a PSG they will likely be requested where an area has been 
identified as having a high level of anti-social behaviour/street drinking or other 
similar problems that cause concern. 

 
2.17 A test purchase operation is where a young person usually aged no older than 16½ 

enters a shop attempts to or buys an age restricted product such as alcohol or 
tobacco. Trading Standards will take proportionate action following the sale of an 
age restricted product; this could be a warning, a simple caution, a license review or 
prosecution. 

 
2.18 Outreach Youth Support will target areas where individuals or groups are identified 

as being involved and will provide information, advice and guidance in the form of a 
brief intervention around the issues of drug or alcohol misuse, staying safe and 
reducing risks and consequences. 

 
Seasonal Operations 
 
2.19 Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service and Merseyside Police coordinate activity in 

the two weeks from Mischief Night, covering the week of Bonfire Night and Bonfire 
Night itself.  With both aiming to prevent issues arising from bonfires, fireworks, 
associated ASB, youths causing annoyance and risk taking behaviour.  

 
2.20 Partners include, but are not limited to: 

Page 73



 6

  
Ø WASBT 
Ø Youth Support 
Ø Sports Development Unit 
Ø Probation Service  
Ø Environmental Services  
Ø Community Safety  
Ø Voluntary Sector Services 

 
2.21 An important aspect of this operation is youth engagement and Youth Support 

provide a menu of both existing and additional activities and provisions over this 
period to support the prevention and reduction to ASB across the whole borough.   

 
Measuring Success of Responding to Locational Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
2.22 Success can be measured through a reduction in reports of anti-social behaviour 

but there are wider measures of success, such as an increase in engagement in 
positive activities and improved perceptions of anti-social behaviour.   A PSG will 
conclude its work when the anti-social behaviour issues have been resolved or 
reduced sufficiently.  However, an exit strategy is implemented to ensure that the 
positive results are sustained; this includes some or all agencies continuing activity 
in the area.   

 
2.23 It is important to note that the level of activity that can be provided for multi-agency 

operations is dependent on the level of resource available. Where funding is 
restricted or unavailable it limits the ability of this wider multi-agency approach, 
which may result in enforcement, rather than implementing the most effective 
method of dealing with the presenting anti-social behaviour through a collaborative 
multi-agency approach.  

 
2.24 The case study (at Appendix1) illustrates the relationship between ASB and the 

Youth Service – it outlines involvement through a recent PSG which centred on 
issues of youth ASB in Woodchurch. 

 
Community Safety Partnership Strategy 
 
2.25 It is a statutory requirement for the Council to operate a Community Safety 

Partnership and produce an accompanying Strategy. The current strategy (2011-
14) contains a number of priorities which were reviewed in 2014 and are directly 
linked to the prevention of  ASB: 

 
       
 

Page 74



 7

  
Figure 1 Wirral Community Safety Partnership Priorities 2014/15 
 
2.26 These priorities demonstrate the importance that all partners place on ASB. This 

importance is also reflected in the Police and Crime Commissioners Strategy, 
where the reduction of ASB is seen as a priority.  

 
2.27 As a result of these various strategies, the rising importance of ASB and the fact 

that ASB covers both adults and young persons an internal review of Community 
Safety and ASB has been undertaken as part of the Future Council work.  The 
results of this project anticipate a move for WASBT to join the Community Safety 
Team as a new service which will be entitled The Corporate and Community Safety 
Team. It is expected that this newly formed team will relocate to operate alongside 
the MASH (Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub), the social care front door and the 
targeted services gateway team, at the offices in Moreton.  

 
2.28 Partner agencies have welcomed this move as it allows for far more joined up 

working and sharing of intelligence.  
 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
3.1 This report is for information, therefore no risks are outlined. 
 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
4.1 As this report is for information, this is not applicable. 
 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  
 
5.1 The service will evaluate information from the recent Future Council public 

consultation exercise to ensure it responds accordingly to public comment.  
 
5.2 The anticipated future configuration of the anti social behaviour service, within a 

new Corporate and Community Safety Team is currently subject to consultation 
which ends on the 6th February 2015. The design principles incorporate joining the 

Page 75



 8

WASBT (Wirral Anti Social Behaviour Team) with the existing Community Safety 
Team and relocating them to the offices at Moreton which house the social care 
front door team, MASH and the targeted services gateway team. This will enhance 
the multi-agency working principles of both these teams and make far more efficient 
use of the joint agency information and intelligence. There will be no direct or 
negative impact from joining up services in how they are delivered in local 
communities.  

 
 
6.0 OUTSTANDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ACTIONS  
 
6.1   None. 
 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
7.1 Voluntary, Community and Faith Groups work are involved in local responses to 

youth ASB.  In addition, both the Anti-Social Behaviour Team and Youth Service 
work in close partnership with a range of organisations.  

 
 
8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  
 
8.1 The Councils delivery approach for young people is transitioning to target resource 

and provision on those most in need of them. Youth and play provision has not 
been affected by the recent Future Council savings proposals.  However, the Youth 
Service along with services that deliver to those most vulnerable and at risk will 
continue to review existing provision to ensure maximum effectiveness and 
outcomes against the impact of interventions.   

 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 None. 
 
 
10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 

No - as the report is for information to Members and there are no direct equalities 
implications at this stage. 

 
  
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1 None. 
 
 
12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 None. 
 

Page 76



 9

 
13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
13.1 That the Families and Wellbeing Policy and Performance Committee note the 

content of this report to consider how it may further support Youth ASB. 
 
 
14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
14.1 The Families and Wellbeing Policy and Performance Committee have requested 

this report to consider and better understand the current relationship and 
operational priorities between Youth and ASB. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR:  
 Deborah Gornik 

Head of Targeted Services 
 telephone  (0151 666 4330)  
 email deborahgornik@wirral.gov.uk 

 
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Youth Outreach / ASB Case Study 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS/REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
BRIEFING NOTES HISTORY 
 
 
Briefing Note  Date 

N/A 

 

 

 

 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Children's Services and Lifelong Learning Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee – Scrutiny Review: Youth 
Outreach Service – Final Report 
 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee - Youth Outreach Scrutiny Review Update 

 

Youth & Play Service Advisory Committee – 

11 November 2008 
 
 
 
16 March 2010 
 
 
 
18 October 2011 

Page 77



 10 

Organisation of Youth Outreach Update 
Reference Material Date 

 

Community safety Partnership Strategy 2011-14  

Reviewed 2014 

 

Merseyside Police Commissioner Priorities 2014-15 

 

http://www.merseysidepcc.info/home/about-

us/janes-priorities.aspx  

2014/15 

 

Page 78



 11 

APPENDIX 1  
 

Case Study: Anti-Social Behaviour from Youths Causing Annoyance in the Elthan 
Green area of Woodchurch 

 
 
Background 
 
In November 2013 the Elthan Green area of Woodchurch was identified at the monthly 
multi-agency Anti-Social Behaviour Governance Group (ASBGG) as an emerging 
locational hotspot by Youth Support and Merseyside Police. This was due to an increase 
of reports to Merseyside Police and Wirral Community Patrol of youths causing annoyance 
and also Youth Support workers were becoming aware of problems through both their 
outreach and centre based work. 
 
The information shared and collated enabled the prediction of a future locational hotspot. 
Therefore, ASBGG instructed Wirral Anti-Social Behaviour Team (WASBT) to coordinate a 
Problem Solving Group (PSG) to respond to the increase of anti-social behaviour (ASB) 
and prevent a long standing issue.  This meeting was held in December 2013 and 
attended by the following. 
 

Ø WASBT 
Ø Youth Support 
Ø Merseyside Police 
Ø Community Patrol 
Ø Magenta Housing 
Ø Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 
Ø Sports Development Unit 

 
As is usual procedure each agency had prepared all relevant information prior to the PSG 
which was sent to WASBT who in turn collated the information and presented the following 
to the members of the PSG at the start of the meeting. 
 

Ø A group of 20 youths (predominantly male) where reported to be causing anti-social 
behaviour in and around the direct area of Elthan Green, Woodchurch 

 
Ø This group was proving to be extremely hard to reach and refusing to engage with 

services 
 

Ø The ASB included, criminal damage, hate race, rowdy and inconsiderate behaviour 
towards shop worker/owners and their customers 

 
Ø The police were also investigating a number of assaults and public order offence 

with regard to this group 
 
Information shared at the PSG identified that the reports were not coming from the 
residents who lived in or directly surrounding Elthan Green they were being reported by 
the shop staff and customers. Police intelligence had identified that local residents were 
refusing to make any official complaints and this was reportedly due to a fear of reprisal.  

Page 79



 12 

The PSG also identified a number environmental, building security and complex design 
issues that were significantly contributing to the increase in ASB. 
 
The PSG produced an action plan which focused upon: 
 

Ø Enforcement 
Ø Improving public perception to encourage and support increased reporting 
Ø Supporting Victims 
Ø Youth Engagement 
Ø Improving Environment  

 
Each area within the action plan was assigned a named lead officer/agency and all 
developments where monitored and continuously reported back to WASBT who acted as 
the central point of contact to ensure all information was being shared efficiently and 
effectively to all partners involved and that ASBGG was updated at each meeting.  
 
Youth Support lead on ‘Youth Engagement’ and implemented a project of work designed 
with the most appropriate youth activity to tackle the exact issues identified at PSG. This 
project is outline below: 
 
Youth Engagement Project Out-Line 
 
An eight week project began on January 10th 2014 and ran each Friday evening, 
supported by Merseyside Police, Youth Support (i.e. West Wirral Youth Outreach Team, 
Response, Fender Youth Club), Sports Development Unit, local community and parents. 
 
Prior to the project stating, young people from the area, including the 20 young people 
targeted, where consulted with regard to what activity they would engage in.  
 
The project comprised of two interventions: 
 

1. The Kontactabus: was deployed between 6.30 – 8.30pm on a Friday evening 
staffed by workers from the youth clubs and outreach team and supported by a 
mobile sports session, through Sports Development staff. This activity was 
deployed in an area away from Elthan Green to give the residents respite. This 
supported other elements of the PSG action plan to encourage residents to report 
incidents of ASB. Whilst it was targeted to the 20 youths causing ASB, it was 
designed to be open to any young person aged 11-19 living in the area. This 
approach provided the opportunity to build relationships with the targeted young 
people and challenge and support their current behaviour. 
The sessions were also attended by the Youth Support Service’s alcohol and 
substance misuse workers who supported specific interventions to young people 
regarding alcohol and substance misuse.  
 

2. Outreach:  An Outreach Team targeted Elthan Green between 8:30pm-10:30pm . 
worked to engage with the very hard to reach young people and encourage them to 
participate in the earlier activity, support positive behaviour from the young people 
whilst they were in Elthan Green and also supported the wider action plan form the 
PSG with regard to reassuring residents and challenging community perception.  

Page 80



 13 

 
 
Measuring Success  
 
In January 2014 Elthan Green was recorded (as predicted in November) as a locational 
hotspot at ASBGG. It should be noted that this is often the case when a multi-agency 
response is deployed into a locational hotspot. There is customarily an aim within a PSG 
action plan to reassure victims and encourage them to report ASB, this usually results in 
an initial increase in recorded incidents, which ensures an actual not perceived position..  
 
It is important to measure the success not only on the reduction of ASB but also on the 
length of time the area continues to be recorded as a locational hotspot, as well as the 
wider factors such as an increase in and sustained engagement with positive activities, 
reduced incidents, improved relationships and an improved perception within the 
community of anti-social behaviour.    
 
 
 Project Outcomes 
 

Ø Between November 2013 and May 2014 there was a 75% decrease in ASB in 
Elthan Green 
 

Ø The area was recorded as a locational hotspot at ASBGG in January 2014. It was 
no longer a recorded locational hotspot at ASBGG in March 2014*  

 
Ø Over the 8 week period the project averaged 40 young people per sports session 

and 25 young people per outreach session 
 

Ø The project developed positive relationships not only with the area youth work staff 
but with wider support agencies and the neighbourhood Pplice. The improved 
relationships allowed areas of risk to be disclosed and the youths to be directed to 
the most appropriate support 
 

Ø It allowed Youth Support staff to build and develop relationships and to support 
individuals to recognise issues presented by their own behaviour, workers both 
challenged and supported any youth involved in or at risk of being involved in ASB; 
 

Ø A number of young people involved in the project were referred to the Youth 
Support Service’s GIRLS or LADS project – both of which provide intensive group 
work around risk taking behaviour for more vulnerable young people (**see notes 
below for greater detail); 
 

Ø A number of young people contacted via the project were referred through to the 
Gateway for Early Help interventions via Team Around the Family (TAF).  A number 
of young people were known to Targeted Services and already receiving a single 
agency intervention or involved in TAF.  These interventions ensure an appropriate 
multi-agency response for individual young people and their families; 

 

Page 81



 14 

Ø This Project drew on strengths from the wider community, including young people 
and parents who supported the initiative, it supported wider community cohesion 
which developed as a response to the issues (see next point) 
 

Ø A group of parents started meeting as a result with a view to enhancing and 
developing additional youth activities on the estate.  This initiative is being 
supported by local elected members and Youth Support officers. 

 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 
* 
WASBT was in weekly contact with both the residents of Elthan Green and the staff of the local shops. Also 
Merseyside Police were coordinating regular reassurance visits. Therefore the reduction in reported 
incidents was not due to incidents simply not being reported.    
 
** 
G.I.R.L.S. Project 
The G.I.R.L.S. Project, funded by Public Health Outcomes Fund, is a specialist project specifically designed 
to support the most vulnerable and at risk young women aged 13 -19 across Wirral.  
 
The project, offers a unique, informal and educational 12 week personal development programme to Wirral 
young women, which includes a weekend residential at Oaklands Outdoor Education Centre and a ‘finale’ 
celebration event.  
  
The overall aims of the project are to: 

1. Reduce risk taking behaviour including drug and alcohol misuse 
2. Reduce offending / re-offending and anti-social behaviour 
3. Increase resilience around peer pressure and harmful relationships  
4. Improve aspirations and opportunities, particularly regarding healthy lifestyles and making informed 

choices  
 
 
LADS Project 
The project is aimed at young men aged between 13-19 years old and runs in the four Wirral localities.  Each 
project has up to 14 young men participating on each course. 
 
The project has been designed to address a number of issues relevant to young men in today’s society, 
including:  

• Drug / alcohol misuse  
• Harmful / exploitative relationships 
• Criminal / anti-social behaviour  
• Raising aspirations and developing resilience 

 
Each of the four groups take part in an 8 week informal education programme aimed at developing young 
men’s awareness and an understanding of the above issues to support them to build confidence, self-
esteem and strengthen resilience.   
 
Towards the end of the project there is a residential run from Oaklands Outdoor Education Centre to 
consolidate what the young men have learned throughout the course.  There is also be a focus on building 
on skills, strategies and aspirations and the young men work towards setting a personal action plan for their 
future. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



WIRRAL COUNCIL  

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE – FAMILIES AND WELLBEING 
 
2ND FEBRUARY 2015 
 

SUBJECT: Child and Family Poverty Strategy 

WARD/S AFFECTED: All 

REPORT OF: Director of Children’s Services 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

Councillor Tony Smith 

KEY DECISION?   No 

 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report informs members about the progress being made in implementing 

Wirral’s Child and Family Poverty Strategy and makes particular reference to two 
strands of activity that contribute to improved outcomes for children and families, 
which are now starting to be evidenced.   

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
2.1  Wirral’s Child and Family Poverty Strategy is governed by the Child and Family 

Poverty Working Group (herein referred to as the Working Group), whose members 
ensure that the actions agreed are embedded across a range of partner strategies 
to improve outcomes for children, young people and their families. The Working 
Group’s focus, as partners in the future of Wirral, is to reduce the numbers of 
children and young people living in poverty and support them to build the 
foundations for prosperous, healthy and happy lives. The Working Group wants to 
raise the aspirations of all children and young people and their families so that their 
aspirations for themselves and their communities can be achieved. The emphasis 
of the Working Group is to: 

 
• Challenge each other to take practical action to achieve common goals of reducing 

poverty and harnessing the talent and ambitions of Wirral’s children, families and 
communities; 

 
• Act as a key stakeholder group for the School Community Hub initiative put in place 

by the Council to find new and innovative ways of working with families building on 
the assets found in local areas; 

 
• Proactively promote the use of research and best practice in addressing poverty. 

 
 

Page 83

Agenda Item 12



2.2 The Working Group focuses its energies on ensuring that Wirral plays its part in 
delivering the aims and actions identified in the Liverpool City Region Child Poverty 
and Life Chances Strategy. The current priorities for this strategy are: 

 
• Improve school readiness; 
• Support families to be prepared for Universal Credit; 
• Tackle children and young people with unhealthy weight; 
• Close attainment differences in schools; 
• Improve transport access; 
• Increase employment and skills within low income families. 

 
The Working Group meets quarterly and its agenda reflects the key priorities to be 
progressed. Three of the priorities for action are included within the performance 
statistics which are reported to the Children’s Trust Board on a quarterly basis. The 
work plan for the last year is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
During 2014 the Child and Family Poverty Working Group implemented the 
Strategy as follows: 
 

• Oversaw Wirral’s progression towards school readiness.  Wirral has a local target of 
85% and is on track to achieve a good level of development at the Early Years 
Foundation Stage (EYFS) by 2016 (Children and Young People Plan 2013-2016).  
Wirral is working successfully towards this target to ensure a greater proportion of 
children are ready for school.  In 2012/2013 47% of Wirral children achieved a good 
level of development at the EYFS, this rose to 63% in 2013/14 

• Explored Credit Unions to identify what is provided locally and if this could link in 
with the Community Hubs.  A number of initiatives are currently under development, 
including a pilot opportunity to develop a junior savers option and training.  Wirral 
Credit Union will train volunteers to confidently handle the administration tasks that 
are required to support a collection point. The training, coordinated by the Leasowe 
Community Builder, began in January 2015   

• Identified actions to be taken forward in 2015 to support Wirral’s Food Plan 
• Oversaw the updating of the Child Poverty Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

(JSNA) in collaboration with Public Health.  The current publication reflects local 
views and strategies 

• Recommended the development (led by Public Health) of a dashboard of indicators 
which are local and linked to the Liverpool City Region Strategy. This will inform the 
Child and Family Poverty Working Group working plan for 2015/2016 and is due for 
completion on 1st April 2015 

• Supported the development, implementation and evaluation of (School) Community 
Hubs (See 2.4) and provided proactive representation on both steering groups. 

 
2.3 Leasowe and Woodchurch Community Hubs  
 

In June 2013 Cabinet approved the Working Group’s child poverty pilot project.  
The proposal was based on the evidence and research of the 2010 Marmot Review 
and the Working Group. The proposal invited those schools, where the majority (i.e. 
51% or above) of pupils on roll live in an area where child poverty and deprivation 
levels are in the highest 20% of areas nationally, to express an interest in working 
with the Council to pilot a primary ‘school’ Community Hub.  The commissioning 
approach was developed with guidance from the Council’s Procurement Team 
taking into account the procurement principles of fairness and transparency. 

Page 84



Holy Spirit Primary School, Leasowe and Fender Primary School, Woodchurch 
were each awarded £50,000 to develop and implement a Community Hub.   

 
It is important to consider the development of the Community Hubs in the context of 
close partnership working to intervene earlier with children and families to develop 
resilience and prevent more intensive interventions being required long term.  The 
Community Hubs sit at the heart of their local communities, where integrated 
locality working is being strengthened for all children aged 0-19 years. Both 
Community Hubs are working within, and enhancing local community networks and 
what we are seeing is great strength at a local community level in building support 
for children and families around their local primary school, and drawing services in 
to support children and families at the right time and in the right way.  
 
There is a growing body of data that provides quantitative confirmation (attendance 
and activity figures) and qualitative case studies that demonstrates the journey 
travelled by the children and families who are part of the Hubs and ultimately a 
reduction in the demand for specialist services. A joint Hub evaluation report for the 
period January 2014 to December 2014 was produced for the Children’s Trust on 
20 January 2015; this report evidences the impact and added value of working in 
this way to improve outcomes for children, families and their communities.  The 
report is attached as Appendix 2.  

 
2.4 Birkenhead Foundation Years Trust Project (herein referred to as The Project) 
 

Following the publication of the report “The Foundation Years: Preventing Poor 
Children Becoming Poor Adults (Field, 2010), the Foundation Years Trust was 
established, to pilot the recommendations made in that report.  The ambition of the 
Trust is to abolish the intergenerational transfer of poverty, shifting the emphasis of 
poverty interventions to a focus on improving life chances.  Central to the Report’s 
recommendations is the emphasis on the importance of the foundation years, from 
the antenatal period to the child’s fifth birthday.  The Project commenced delivery in 
June 2013 with a focus on influencing factors which impact on early learning and 
development.   

 
Some of the Project’s activities include: 
 
• A review of relevant services, both in the Wirral and UK-wide, to scope how it 

could deliver to the brief of developing an intervention.  The purpose of this 
intervention is to develop a model of work with families to reduce the 
developmental gap 

• Consultation with over 40 mothers in Birkenhead who speak about their 
experiences of pregnancy, giving birth and the support they received in the first 
few weeks after the birth 

• Training and learning opportunities for parents to move from receiving services 
to volunteering and training and into paid work 

• Commissioning and directly delivering services during April 2014 to September 
2014 which has a significant impact on school readiness focusing on 3 key 
indicators the home learning environment; parental mental health and well-
being; and parental warmth and sensitivity.   An example of one of these 
services is ‘Side-by-Side’ which is a group play support for parent and children 
with special needs, with one-to-one volunteer support 

Page 85



• An update report on activity from September 2014 to December 2014 which was 
presented to the Children’s Trust on 20th January is available in Appendix 3. 

 
The Birkenhead Project is funded by Wirral Council, Garfield Weston Foundation, 
Wirral GP Clinical Commissioning Group and the Tudor Trust.  The Birkenhead 
Project forms one element in the wider work of the Foundation Years Trust.   

 
2.5 Further developments 

One further development currently planned is that the Birkenhead Constituency 
Committee is proposing to support the development of a local Community Hub.  
The Hub will focus on one key priority of ‘Reducing the Impact of Child Poverty’ that 
‘Children are Ready for School’  

The initial proposal for this Hub model is that it will seek to:  
 

• Provide high quality service provision and interventions for children below 
statutory school age that will have a positive effect on children’s’ intellectual 
and social /behavioural development prior to school entry 

• Work in partnership with parents to help children to learn and develop at 
home and in the community, delivering the key message and understanding 
that what parents do is more important than who parents are 

• Build on the strengths and well-being of the local community; mapping what 
resources are available for parents and children and help families learn about 
and use resources and services available within the community. 
 

Updates regarding the Birkenhead development will be reviewed by the 
Constituency Committee and the Working Group to ensure a consistent approach is 
taken and best practice is embedded. 

2.6 Future actions 
 
 Wirral’s Child and Family Poverty Working Group’s actions for 2015 are to: 
 

• Develop the 2015/2016 work plan and ensure its alignment to Liverpool City Region 
Strategy 

• Review and refresh membership of the Working Group 
• Continue to strategically support the two existing Community Hubs during Year 2 of 

their delivery.   
• Provide strategic direction and governance for new Community Hubs   
• Ensure the recommendations from the comprehensive Community Hub programme 

evaluation report (led by Public Health and due for completion March 2015) is 
cascaded and best practice is implemented   

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
3.1 A risk register will continue to be monitored in line with the project management 

arrangements.  
 
  
 
 
 

Page 86



4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
4.1 A range of options have been reviewed by the Working Group in order to develop 

the recommended approach set out in this report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  
 
5.1 The Working Group is the key stakeholder group for child poverty in Wirral and 

oversees the development of the Community Hubs. 
 
6.0 OUTSTANDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ACTIONS  
 
6.1   Not applicable. 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
7.1 The pilot Hubs have developed relationships with the voluntary and community 

sector to deliver a local action plan and sit on the Hub steering group. Wirral’s Child 
ad Family Poverty Steering Group is chaired by the Chief Executive of Homestart 
Wirral.  

 
8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  
 
8.1 Both projects have received a grant of £50,000 from the Council to develop this 

work. Since they have become operational, the projects have secured additional 
money from other sources to develop their programme of work. On 15th January 
2015 Cabinet agreed an additional £25,000 funding for each of the existing two 
Community Hubs.   

 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 Clear governance arrangements are in place for the Working Group to report to the 

Children’s Trust and this provides the framework for monitoring the projects. 
 
10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (a) Yes and impact review can be found via the following link: 
 
  https://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversity-

cohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-april-2014/eias-families-wellbeing 
   

   
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1 There will be no direct carbon reduction implications. 
 
12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There will be no direct planning and community safety implications. 
 
 

Page 87



13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
13.1 This report invites members to scrutinise the impact of the work the Child and     

Family Working Group. 

 
14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
14.1 This report outlines progress being made to develop and deliver innovative 

approaches to improving children and families life chances and wellbeing in 
community settings. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHORS:  
Julia Hassall 
Director of Children’s Services 
Telephone: (0151) 666 4293 
Email: juliahassall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
Rebecca Mellor 
Public Health  
Telephone: (0151) 666 5186 
Email: rebeccamellor@wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 
  
  
   
   
APPENDICES 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS/REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
BRIEFING NOTES HISTORY 
 
 
Briefing Note  Date 

 

 

 

 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



Appendix 1 

Child and Family Poverty Working Group  - Work plan 2014/2015 
 
Meeting Agenda Additional Contribution 
December 
2013 

  

  

  

§  School Community Hub Update 

§  LCR priority: Supporting families 
to be prepared for Universal Credit 

§  Research and Best Practice: 
Leadership Academy presentation 
on tackling poverty 

§  Steve Lloyd, DWP 
National Partnerships 
Team presentation on 
Universal Credit 

March 2014 §  School Community Hub Update 

§  LCR priority: Tackling children 
and young people with unhealthy 
weight 

§  Local issue: Fuel poverty 

§  Research and Best Practice 

§  Public Health Team 
on Food Plans 

  

June 2014 §  School Community Hub Update 

§  LCR priority: Improving school 
readiness 

§  Research and Best Practice 

§  Zoë Munby, 
Foundation Years Trust 
project 

September 
2014 

§  School Community Hub Update 

§  LCR priority: Closing income 
differences in attainment in schools 

§  Research and Best Practice 

§  Dave Hollomby, 
School Improvement 

9th December 
2014 3-5pm 

Homestart, 
Argyl Str, 
Birkenhead 

§  School Community Hub Update 

§  LCR Priority: Increasing 
employment and skills within low 
income families 

§  Research and Best Practice 

§  DWP / Economic 
Policy Team / Reach 
Out 

§  Fuel Poverty Team on 
Fuel Poverty projects 

March 2015 §  School Community Hub Update 

§  LCR Priority: Improving Transport 
Access 

§  Research and Best Practice 

§  Merseytravel / Wirral 
Transport Team 

 
 
 

Page 89



Appendix 2 

Summary Report for Leasowe and Woodchurch Community Hubs 
January - December 2014 

 

 

 

                                   

 

 

Introduction 

Both schools are extremely proud of what has been achieved over the pilot year, the impact 
this has made upon our communities as a whole and for individual children and parents. 
Headteachers from both schools and hub steering groups identify the increased unity that 
working with hubs has developed. Steering group members are committed to sustaining the 
work achieved and working together for the needs of their community. The establishment of 
community hubs has enabled access to wider support networks and a cohesive approach 
to well-being. 

Activities provided by both hubs are itemised in the Fender Community Hub Five Ways To 
Wellbeing and the Holy Spirit Leasowe Community Hub Programs report which 
demonstrate how activities were planned to meet the five areas of wellbeing: 

1. Connect 

2. Be Active 

3. Take Notice 

4. Keep Learning 

5. Give 

 and can also be linked to: 

• Children are ready for school; 
• Young people are ready for work and adulthood; 
• Children and young people feel safe and are safe. 

 
We have included documentation from both hubs to share the journeys we have been on; 
what we have learnt and how we have exploited the relationships schools have with 
families to achieve the best outcomes for children. 
 
 
 

 

Page 90



WOODCHURCH COMMUNITY HUB 

ORGANISATION AND CONTEXT 

Fender primary school is a primary school in a central location on the Woodchurch Estate 
on the Wirral. The proportion of pupils who are supported by the pupil premium is well 
above average at 59% (ever 6) and the proportion of pupils supported at school action 
plus or with a statement of educational needs is also well above average.  The estate is 
situated within an area of high deprivation in the Birkenhead area of Wirral. 

In Autumn 2013 we were successful in receiving £50,000 from the Child Poverty Project to 
form a community hub. As a new headteacher with three years experience at Fender, I felt 
that this opportunity would fit perfectly with the aims and vision we have already created 
for the future of our school.  In the previous three years we had found that the 
development of close links with the community had reaped benefits for our pupils already 
both in the improved attainment and progress results, but also in the ethos and vibe of the 
school.  We had already made great strides in this area and had improved relationships 
with the parents and community in many ways.  It was always our vision to become more 
than a school but to become the heart of the community in partnership with other local 
establishments and agencies – we had moved a fair way along this path in a short time but 
this exciting project would enhance our work and enable us to achieve the vision sooner, 
thus improving the life chances of the families on the Woodchurch.   

The hub finding has made a huge difference to the community and through the full 
engagement of the steering group and the allocation of the funding in different areas the 
impact is evident in the following figures and case studies. 

Main priorities/first steps – to build on the links already established     

1. Engage main agencies on the estate – form steering group and sub-committee. 39 
organisations have become involved with the Hub. 

2. Identify Community Connector – main factor for the success of the initiative. 
3. Release time and cover set up for HT/SBM. 
4. Hub magazine introduced to share information and activities available – distribution 

organised. 
5. Holiday schools for all primary schools on the estate – starting point so funds were 

spent on hooks like Military School/Junior Chef/coaches/dance instructors.  
Subsidised present holiday club to ensure the same prices charged by all (£5 or £8 
per day).  Staffing arranged and volunteers identified. 

6. Free holiday nursery places subsidised by Hub funding  
7. Adult learning provision – crèche and tutors – Basic English and maths, GCSE 

English and maths, gardening, healthy eating, parenting courses. 
8. Health Fair – 67 referrals 
9. Animal welfare day planned 
10. Parent Groups formed and combined – building up volunteer group WAVES 
11. Coffee afternoons/drop ins for housing, police, health agencies, debt advice etc. 

 

Page 91



COMMUNITY HUB FEEDBACK 

 Achievements/outcomes/impact - Successes – what worked well? 

Holiday provision. 

This links directly with the 3 outcomes: 

• Children are ready for school 

• Young people are ready for work and adulthood 

• Children and young people feel safe and are safe 

 
Holiday clubs for both Easter and summer schools have been extremely positive.  The 3 
schools have had the opportunity of working together during holidays to provide positive 
experiences to prepare them for not only school, but for developing their life skills.  An 
audit of 6 teachers in September 2014 stated that 84 pupils came back into school calmer, 
focussed and easier to settle.   

• Improved relationships between primary schools and pupils from these 
schools ensuring readiness for secondary school and improved transition. 

• Readiness for school return after holidays and reduction in summer dip due 
to continued involvement in educational activities for a further 5 weeks. 

• Improved SATs results due to revision sessions set up during Easter break. 

• Subsidised Nursery/Primary holiday places for vulnerable pupils in Social 
Care or TAF has reduced the crisis points for these families and improved 
school readiness for those pupils joining F2 in September. 

• Staff presence in holiday time providing extra support in crisis times for 
vulnerable families in Social Care or TAF families – reduced crisis points due 
to year round support. 

• Increased interest and readiness for work in adults and young people – 4 
young people from the estate gained paid employment as did 3 adults.  One 
young person continued to gain experience in school and was accepted onto 
Teach direct Course. Adults continue to volunteer in school and complete TA 
qualification.  

• Volunteer base increased.   

• Young people continued their involvement with fitness and dance classes 
improving their health and wellbeing. 

• School Ambassadors involved in raising the Hub profile has resulted in 
further involvement of other agencies. 

Page 92



• Reduction in ASB from children of primary school age on the estate 

This table shows the increase in school support and the decrease in families in formal 
social care arrangements – the Hub has enabled this due to wrap around all year services 
being available and the continued presence of the Community Connector and community 
support. 

 2010-11 2011-12 SEPT 12 SEPT 13 SEPT 14 

CHILD 

PROTECTION 

4 3 0 1 0 

CHILD IN NEED 2 2 4 2 2 

TAC/TAF 14 16 10 8 2 

SCHOOL 

SUPPORT 

34 40 47 47 64 

 

Vulnerable families were offered free places so they would have support during the long 
summer holidays. During the holiday period last summer one family who had experienced 
‘flashpoints’ during this time mean the situation deteriorated  and the family was moved 
from TAC and CIN into Child Protection.  This summer because free places were offered 
the situation was more settled and sustained and it meant the position was maintained and 
no deterioration took place.  

Pupils moving into the area during the summer holidays were offered places at summer 
club which provided a smooth transition and their readiness for school. This applied to 4 
children one of whom were in Team Around the Family.  The community connector 
ensured the smooth transition of the family to the area in conjunction with NACRO.  The 
family were experiencing harassment from neighbours and the child was in a state of high 
anxiety.  Summer club enabled the child to settle into school immediately and the family 
into the area.  

The aforementioned parent said “School was very helpful – including the staff, my child 
has moved on and really is happy with support”.  Mum went onto comment that “summer 
camp gave my child confidence for starting at a new school and it has really helped whole 
family and has helped with housing issues”.    

Page 93



Summer school supported not only the pupils but the adults too.   Auditing the adults 
provided the evidence to support the need for this provision. 

The joint audit of 28 parents revealed that 100% said the holiday clubs actually were 
affordable and this helped them with work commitments during holiday times. Without this 
subsidy low income parents would not be able to access provision like this as it was 
unaffordable and out of their reach. 

Only 2 pupils from Fender had ever attended the holiday provision provided locally.  

• I have been ‘over the moon’ the kids have something to do and at low cost.  I would 
have had to give up my job as I could not afford high prices. 

 
Another person said “it was a Godsend” with me working in the holidays, “I have never 
seen him (child) so excited to come to school, thank you for giving this wonderful 
experience”.   

Adult Education 

Feedback from improve your English Course in July 2014.   

Tutor comment 

9 started the course, this reduced to 6 as 2 moved out of the area.  4 completed.  The 4 
participants that completed the course has gone to Wirral Met, 3 adults said they want to 
return?  Tutor is pleased with the progress of the adults, especially those who completed 
the course.   

Feedback from Improve Your Maths 

Tutor comment 

9 started the course, 5 completed the course.  I am pleased with the progress with adults 
and acknowledge that for some parents just attending the sessions was very difficult and 
one mum was feeling physically sick at the thought of attending a class.  The course has 
given all learners the confidence to help children with their homework.   

Feedback from GCSE Maths and English 

Parent comments 

10 adults attend English (Woodchurch High School) and 19 attend Maths (Ganneys 
Meadow) the courses will be delivered over 1 year (English) and 2 years (Maths).  
Feedback from two parents is that they need this qualification to train as midwives.  

Feedback from the Nurturing Programme 

Tutor comment 

10 parents attended and all completed the course.  The feedback was that it had 
increased children and families’ wellbeing.  

Page 94



Parent feedback 

 One parent said the “it has enabled me to develop strategies for feeling calmer and 
relaxed and have more empathy with my children”.  Another mum said “It has been so 
useful to me that if I knew a family who were in the same boat I would highly recommend 
this course to them”. 

Feedback from Gardening Group 

Tutor comment 

9 parents attended 2 different short groups; one group had parents the other 2 local 
primaries.  All parents finished the course and are keen to join again in the spring.  
Feedback from the tutor was that it was a good opportunity to work collaboratively across 
more than one school.  This has enabled an additional course to be offered and this 
involves the group working with other social enterprises to grow fruit and vegetables. 

Parent comment 

“Enjoyed the course and it was good to make new friends and learn about how we get our 
food.”   

Feedback from Cookery Course 

Parent comments 

“This course has been a Godsend to me in many ways, not only health eating but meal 
planning and new ideas, this has helped to have time for myself to learn new skills but my 
son has separation issues and having the crèche was invaluable”.  Another mum said “I 
am now aware of fats and salts in foods, I feel more confident when cooking meals and 
learning to budget”. 

An audit of 28 pupils revealed that 100% of pupils said they had fun and felt safe and 
enjoyed meeting pupils from other schools. 

• A pupil said if he had not come to the summer school he would be “up to no good 
around the shops in Hoole Road all day”. 

 

Further Service Development 

Working with other partnerships that would not normally be established has been a real 
positive of working relationship with a variety of stakeholders.   Working in this new way 
has improved the communication between organisations and has reduced the need to 
‘duplicate’ information and provides a more strategic approach to planning provision.  The 
hub has facilitated a variety of new initiatives that has both raised the profile of the hub as 
well as the organisations delivering services locally.  Health Fair Day 18 children, 65 
adults and 47 volunteers attended and were able to access routine screening/health 
advice on the day.  Animal Welfare day 20 children, 35 adults and 25 volunteers were 
able to ask for pet advice.  Garden club and a day garden event showed 20 pupils, 46 

Page 95



adults and 20 volunteers participated in shared activities.  The garden club has had 
parents from St Michael and All Angels working alongside Fender parents in the garden.  
Drop in sessions 36 adults and 70 volunteers have participated, whilst some drop in 
sessions were available prior to the hubs inception, the breadth and scope of what is now 
provided has increased.  The above key events that raised the profile of the hub would not 
have taken place if the hub had not been conceived.  

HEALTH AWARENESS DAY 

• 67 referrals to support agencies 

• Home watch volunteers have increased 

• Young people gained support for CV and employment advice in 
readiness for gaining employment and training 

• Family safety in cycling – bike checks 

 
Through the hub 7 parent groups have been established, 2 groups are accessing 
vocational training, 3 groups are accessing support groups that is helping to reduce stress 
in the family home and promote emotional wellbeing, the hub organised 2 special event 
days that offered information and advice that was easy to access at a local level.  
Developing the community garden has established links that reach beyond the hub and 
from the spring the group will be working within a network of social enterprises. 
Further positives arising from the Hub initiative – see below: 

1. Jobs provided 
2. Volunteers and parents now in further training and employment 
3. Parents have contact points in holidays – important for vulnerable families in TAF, 

CP (no crisis points this year) 
4. Flexi-time for school staff 
5. Hub magazine sharing information and advertising what’s on offer 
6. Links between pupils – knock on effect for Secondary School 
7. Pupils more settled on return after holidays 
8. Opportunities to continue basic skills teaching through the holidays, also identified 

tutor groups e.g. SATS revision, LACES pupil received extra reading programme, 
PP can pay for free places 

9. Food/furniture banks running to help families at crisis times 
10. ASB reduced on the estate. 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour Feedback from Woodchurch 

Having looked at the anti-social behaviour figures for the period March and April, in both 
2013 and 2014, for the same two police beats covered by the Woodchurch Estate, there is 
a marked reduction in the reported incidents of youth related anti-social behaviour. 
March to April 2013 show 61 reported incidents of anti-social behaviour. 
March to April 2014 shows 34 reported incidents of anti-social behaviour. 
Crucially only a small percentage of the 34 incidents reported in 2014 involved children of 
primary school age on the estate. 

Page 96



 
The parent courses, groups and drop-ins developed have empowered parents to take 
responsibility for their children’s behaviour.   
The hub connector has given parents a link to access services.  This has enabled them to 
report incidents which would normally have been unreported. Some of these incidents 
have been domestic violence related.  The connector has empowered the victims to feel 
confident in seeking help and advice. As a result of her intervention she is educating the 
children of these parents / carers that this type of behaviour is not acceptable and can be 
challenged. 
As a direct result of the family / community wishes programme, the Hub Connector has 
engaged with at least 15 families who need support which otherwise would have been 
missed. 
This project has had a very positive effect on the area of Woodchurch. 
 
 WOODCHURCH COMMUNITY HUB – IMPACT UP TO NOVEMBER 2014 

 

 

 

Provision Use - footfall  Added Value   

 

Total Fender adults 
accessing activities 

 

770 

 

Signposting 
to agencies 

 

Housing  

 

6 

 

Total Adults 

Volunteers/staff 

 

1454 

333 

  

Family Support 

 

64 

 

Fender Children accessing 
activities 

 

906 

  

Health and 
Wellbeing 

 

67 

 

Total other children 
accessing activities 

 

681 

  

Employment 
pathways / 
support 

 

 

25 

 

 

Total Children – 183 
different pupils 

 

1587 

  

Secured work 

 

8 

 

Page 97



CASE STUDIES 

Case study 1 – Parent from Fender 

Single parent of three young children aged 6 and 13, and 14 years.  

AB was invited to attend Hub coffee afternoons and adult learning.  AB by her own 
admission has suffered with a drugs addiction and has been seeking help.  The family had 
lots of professional support including IFIP family support workers social workers.  The 
school identified AB as needing support with organisation and family support.  AB attended 
every week and was a valuable member of the group in her own words she had been 
through such a lot and she was willing to share her knowledge with others. AB disclosed 
that she suffered from depression and she often felt she could not cope with family life.  

During one session the community builder was reading a poem and was relaxing the 
group AB became very tearful and told the group she was upset her eldest child was 
struggling with mental health issues and she was desperate for support.  The community 
builder gave intensive support at home.  AB said she now felt that someone cared and she 
could see a light at the end of the tunnel.  

The community builder encouraged AB’s child C to attend school regularly and her 
confidence grew she went from going to school two days a week to full time. During the 
time of non-attendance AB was supported by school, the community police and parent 
volunteers.   The last time the family was in crisis was during the summer holidays – 
Summer Club has helped with this by offering free places to the youngest child and 
bringing AB and C in to volunteer. 

AB has now accessed Maths and English plus a gardening course.  She would never have 
done these courses if they weren’t provided locally through the Hub as she was anxious 
about going to college.  In September 2014, AB attended Woodchurch High School to 
complete a further maths course (GCSE) again provided by the Hub.  AB received a 
certificate from the mayor in recognition of her further study – she was extremely proud to 
share this with visitors from the council and other agencies on the Hub Open Day. 

AB said coming along to the parenting sessions has opened her eyes to her own way of 
parenting and she found herself saying to other parents, ‘have you tried using the 
language of choice or giving choices?’ She felt proud to know it had worked for her.  The 
relationship with school has also strengthened and we are able to support AB in so many 
more ways through the building of trust.  C experiences mental health problems and at the 
end of term was not attending school due to friendship issues – the Hub encouraged the 
child to come to school to complete a work placement and attended every day.  This 
resolved a serious issue as C’s attendance is a pivotal action in supporting plans.   

AB will continue with her journey and is a WAVES volunteer she will be involved in setting 
up a parents’ base which will in the end be run by the parents of the community of 
Woodchurch.   

 

 

Page 98



Case Study 2  

Parents EF and GH volunteered in school as reading support partners.  When the Hub 
was set up they were invited to coffee sessions and parenting groups as helpers.  They 
volunteered at Easter Club and EF is now enrolled to complete her NVQ Level 2 in school 
in September, GH has already done this.  EF has volunteered for numerous activities in 
school and is now a paid member of the Summer Club workforce.  EF has now started her 
NVQ Level 2 Teaching Assistant course at Fender. GH is volunteering at Summer Club 
and has just gained employment at a school on the Wirral.  There are 6 more parents and 
young people who signed up for volunteering at the Health Fair on Friday the 8th August 
2014 parents/siblings from all schools.  Three of them started their volunteering work on 
Monday 11th August 2014 at Summer Club.  The activities provided by the Hub have 
allowed adults to gain experience for their CVs and improved their employability – this had 
not happened before the Hub. 

Case Study 3 

Play worker A has worked in the Council run play scheme for a number of years.   Since 
the Hub was begun and the opportunity for involvement in school advertised she has 
volunteered in different roles in Fender.  She then became a paid member of the Hub 
Easter Club workforce.  After showing great potential during her Easter role she was given 
a four week pupil support work job at the school.  Before the Hub this role would have 
been filled by agency workers.  Play worker A has recently completed her degree and has 
gained a place on the School Direct Teaching course at a school on the Wirral.  She tells 
me that the experience gained through the Hub was invaluable to her being successful at 
gaining the place on the extremely sought after course.  Play worker A lives and attended 
schools on the estate.   

Case Study 4 

Play worker B is a nineteen year old student from the estate who volunteered during the 
Easter Club.  She has been given three weeks employment in Summer Club and will 
continue to be employed for years to come.  This will improve her CV as in the case of 
Case Study 3 and lead to further employment in the future. 

Key issues / barriers in the setting up the pilot Hub 

• Getting connector in place earlier  

• Improving communication – look for ways to reach the wider community 

• Timescales too tight – planning time needed to be longer.  Planning and introducing 
new initiatives at the same time proved challenging  

• Getting adults to sustain attendance/volunteers found from non-educational areas 

• Busy schedules of some of the stakeholders on the estate – everyone is not in the 
position to give the project time 

• Budget linked to school budget was an issue for the bursar  

Page 99



• There were many hidden costs mainly to school – e.g. photocopying and utilities. 

Page 100



 
 

Leasowe Community Hub 

 

ORGANISATION & CONTEXT 

Holy Spirit is a smaller than average sized primary school with 198 pupils currently on roll 
including nursery provision. Previously Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Primary School; Holy 
Spirit Catholic and Church of England Primary School opened in September 2010 and has 
since increased in size by 30%. The proportion of pupils known to be eligible for free 
school meals is above National average. The proportion of disabled pupils and those who 
have special educational needs is significantly above average. The large majority of pupils 
are from White British backgrounds with an increasing number from minority ethnic 
groups. The school is situated in an area of high deprivation rated .5 on the IDACI. Over 
the past three years, a higher than average number of pupils have joined the school during 
Key Stage 2.  
 
The school works closely with the churches and wider community and has strong links with 
support services. A community room within the Catholic church was given to the school by 
Shrewsbury Diocese in 2010 to develop community work. The school Governors and staff 
have always been committed to extending school provision beyond education and 
providing wider service for children and families. Staffing was allocated to support 
vulnerable families and community work two years ago and links with community groups 
and activities have been strengthening since this time.  
 
The shared vision for the school is to provide high quality education and enable children to 
feel safe, valued and loved. We strive for all children to achieve their potential by removing 
barriers, building self-esteem and forming strong relationships with families. This existing 
provision gave us a firm basis to build on when we were awarded funding for a community 
hub and provided us with the opportunity to extend support networks beyond immediate 
school families. 
 
 
THE JOURNEY 
 
Community Builder 
Selecting the right community builder was pivotal to the success of the hub; we allocated 
time from one of our existing HLTA’s roles to focus on hub activities. She was already 
involved in family support and had grown up on the estate so had knowledge of the wider 
agencies and organisations, the history of relationships and was well known locally. 
School Staffing 
Time within the Headteacher and school Business Manager’s schedules was allocated 
and other staff were given responsibilities so that they could be released to work on 
developing the community hub.  
 
 
Forming a Steering Group 
Engaging the wide number of groups and organisations across the estate to formulate 
Terms of Reference and spending agreements so that activities were transparent and 
consistently linked to wellbeing outcomes was a priority. This unified working was crucial 

Page 101



as previously there had been a feeling of competition and a lack of cohesive partnerships 
which often resulted in duplication or isolated services.  
Promotion and Marketing 
Organisations agreed that they would all distribute information about activities and we 
would create a shared provision map for the estate so that families could be signposted to 
any / all activities being held and services would then ensure they weren’t duplicating 
existing provision. This would be extended to providing a hub website with links into all 
other services and activities. 
Community Voice 
We consulted with families and residents to determine which activities were needed and 
establish timings and locations which would be most accessible 
Community Champions 
A growing team of community volunteers was established to be trained to lead groups, 
skills sessions, act as buddies to new participants and have a voice in provision. This then 
developed to include Teen Champions for youth engagement. 
Activity Overview 
Jan / March   – plan and deliver drop in sessions and engage champions 
April    – launch day for wider community 
May / June   - roll out of activities and development of ownership by champions 
July / August   - Summer school activities 
Sept    – new activities and sessions for Autumn 
Oct    – Half term family activities and Fire Prevention, Lantern Parade 
Nov / Dec  - Christmas activities 
  
OUTCOMES 

Activities provided by the hub are itemised in the Holy Spirit Leasowe Community Hub 
Programs January – December 2014 report which demonstrates how activities were 
planned to meet the areas of wellbeing and can also be linked to: 

• Children are ready for school; 
• Young people are ready for work and adulthood; 
• Children and young people feel safe and are safe 

We were committed to supporting Leasowe families and this was crucial in engaging the 
wider community; it is evident that the hub has attracted participants from across the 
estate and has not been for the sole use of Holy Spirit families. This has helped to improve 
working relationships across organisations and schools.  

 

 

Provision use   Footfall 
(sessions) 

Individuals 
Engaging 

 Holy Spirit Adults  
accessing activities 

1056 72 

Total other Adults 
accessing activities  

601 173 

Page 102



Total adults 1700 244 

Holy Spirit Children 
accessing activities 

712 80 

Total other children 
accessing activities 

508 96 

Total Children  1265 172 

             Please note that the numbers represent those participants who were willing to 
complete attendance forms. 

Targets were set to ensure a minimum of 80% attendance on all sessions, with a range of 
10 – 25% being from the hard to reach locality super output areas dependent upon the 
objective of the course. If attendance targets were not met after three weeks the activity 
was reviewed, participants consulted and the provision altered accordingly.  In one 
instance after a further three weeks, the course was cancelled as feedback indicated it 
was not meeting community needs. 

 By providing courses and sessions which were of interest to community members, we 
were able to make links with other agencies and signpost families for further support. 
Residents who completed courses were encouraged to pursue next steps so that 
development was continuous and wider outcomes could be gained. Specific outcomes that 
would not have been achieved without hub participation can be evidenced: 

Page 103



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sessions during the school day have targeted parents, grandparents and those with pre-
school children. During holiday periods activities to reduce isolation, improve socialisation 
and self-esteem and develop specific talents or skills have been provided for children and 
young people to access independently or with family members. By evaluating responses 
before and after engagement and tracking children as they either move into school or 
return to school after holidays, we have been able to note any impact that hub sessions 
have made on education and aspirations.  

School readiness 

The 0-5 sessions and summer activities enabled families, pre-school children and staff to 
build relationships prior to starting school which was the main benefit in terms of school 
readiness. Children who regularly access the hub are well known to staff, the school 
environment is familiar to them and adults are comfortable with school staff. This has 
meant that they settled straight into school and were quickly ready to start learning. Our 
pre-school knowledge of children enabled us to be ready with early interventions as we 
had greater knowledge of children’s needs before they began in F1 or F2. It is clear that 
those children who regularly access the hub with their families have an advantage over 
those who do not. 

 
Young people are ready for work and adulthood 
 
To support children to develop skills in communication and collaboration several activities 
and courses have been provided including work with Everton in the community. The focus 
was on team work, leadership and co-operation and gave vulnerable children an 
opportunity to work closely with those children who excelled in this area. The engaging 

Added value    

Signposting to other 
agencies 

Housing  11 

 Benefit support 25 

 Family support  9 

 Zero Centre 5 

 Employment 
pathways/support 

20 

 Secured work  6 

 Health & well being 9 

 Legal -  Kirwins 7 

Page 104



activities and positive role models enabled the development of aspirations, friendships and 
respect for each other – particularly amongst children who would not usually mix. There 
was one very minor reported misdemeanour which was managed effectively and no 
reported incidents. Children and parents were all very positive about the sessions. 

Feedback from Participants 
What would you have been doing if you 
weren’t here? 

What do you think of the course? 

‘I would have just bin on de street’  age 
9 
‘Playing on xbox’  
‘Nothing age’ age 11 
‘On streets doing nothing much’  age 11 
‘Sitting on coach being bored’  age 10 
‘PSP’ 
‘Sleeping on coach’  age 9 
‘Playing on Xbox’  
‘Lying in bed playing’ PS3 age 9 

‘It’s great, loads of fun’  age 9 
‘This is fun, its brilliant, amazing’ -
age 8 
‘Brilliant, fun, exciting’  age 11 
‘Hilarious, lots of fun’  age7 
‘Amazing’  age 8  
‘Made mates’ age 8 

 

 
 
School Attendance 

It is difficult to quantify the impact of the hub on improved attendance as the school has 
had this as a school improvement focus for the duration of the hub. However, of the 
children who are monitored for attendance, there are ten individual children whose families 
are regularly accessing the hub whose attendance has increased from below target to 
achieving or exceeding the school’s attendance target. 

Family Management 
 
To develop confidence and life skills amongst parents and so provide direct impact for 
children, activities aimed at supporting family life have been run throughout the year; some 
of these have included 

• Working with in a budget – able to use money more efficiently 
• Food bank cookery -  able to make a family meal with limited resources 
• Eating on a budget – able to make nutritious meals for families with limited, low cost 

ingredients 
• Allotment outreach 
• Professional drop in sessions  - Legal Advice & Counselling, substance support 

 
• Fire prevention  
• ASD support  
• Social enterprise  

 
 

Page 105



Children and young people feel safe and are safe - Reduced Demand on Specialist 
Services 
 
When looking at targeting the most vulnerable families, we have evidence to show that 81 
sessions have been attended by children at Level 1, 35 by children who are open to TAF 
or at Level 2, three children who are supported at Level 3 or Child in Need and 2 current 
Level 4 cases are regularly attending hub activities. We have not been able to gather level 
3 and 4 information from schools other than Holy Spirit but will look to see how we can do 
so without breaching confidentiality. 

Figures for children open to some form of social care involvement have decreased over 
the past year from 16 to 4, whilst numbers of families engaging in support through school 
or linked services has increased from 28 to 46. This may lead to questioning the capacity 
in schools; however the time taken for early intervention activities and the ability to share 
that across school staff and hub members compared to the time required to provide for the 
needs of those families at Level 3 or 4 by senior school staff would show that school 
resources are less for the greater number of early intervention activities. More important 
than this is the reduced levels of risk that children are subject to and the increase in feeling 
and being safe. 
 

October 2013 
 

Child 
Protection  
(CP) 

Child in 
Need 
(CIN) 
  

Team 
Around the 
Family 

Under 
Assessment
     
from Social 
Care 

Looked 
After 
Children 

Attendance 
Support 

Behaviour 
Support 

Allocated 
Family 
Support 

Total 

2 
  

9 5 5 3 6 9 7 46 
children 

  

 

 

 

October 2014 

Child 
Protection 
(CP) 
  

Child in 
Need 
(CIN) 

Team 
Around the 
Family 

Under 
Assessment     
from Social 
Care 

Looked 
After 
Children 

Additional 
agency 
support 

Personalised 
school 
support 

Family 
support 
worker 

Total 
  
 

1 3 
  

7 0 8 15 21 3 58 
children 

 
 
 

 
To support our most vulnerable families and children the following principles are applied to 
hub activities: 
 

• CIN/CP children & families attend all activities without charge 

Page 106



• Hub activities are recommended / encouraged at all support meetings 
• A place for supervised contact can be provided in hub facility 
• Family support activities are given priority when planning provision 
• Partnerships with specialist agencies will be forged to provide high quality 

intervention and engagement. 
 
Anti-social Behaviour 
The hub has provided many activities for primary school aged children which have built 
relationships and are beginning to break down barriers across the community. The 
responses from children are without exception, very positive. They enjoy the range of 
events and because of the level of qualified staff planning activities and booking children 
into sessions they are well matched to children’s needs. We have not had any negative 
behaviour in any hub activity which has needed intervention. When we compare this with 
the known number of pupils barred from other local activities for negative behaviour we 
can reasonably conclude that the relationships the school has with children, their 
perception of school expectations and the expertise of the staff all contribute to the initial 
local authority expectation for community hubs in “exploiting the relationship schools have 
with the community to improve outcomes for children”. The gradual impact of reducing 
anti-social behaviour will take time and needs to be addressed by engaging one child and 
their family at a time. The correlation between the reduction in level 3 and 4 cases and the 
increase in school managed level 1 and 2 cases that we can evidence over the past year 
demonstrates the impact of greater school involvement and the importance of changing 
the way schools engage with families. We now also have direct access to wider agencies 
and improved knowledge of services available to meet families’ needs than we did 
previously. We are focusing on providing a safe space for teens during the winter months 
and the community organiser is using this opportunity to extend recruitment of our existing 
teen champions. 

A small number of primary school children who were repeatedly in trouble with the police 
over holiday periods and who had been barred from three other facilities on the estate now 
consistently attend hub activities and have had no known police involvement since the 
spring. Their parents have also actively participated in hub activities aimed at building 
relationships and confidence. We want to work with the police to extend this success more 
widely by targeting other known individuals.  

At the November steering group meeting organisations reported that no vandalism or 
damage had occurred to their properties since before February 2014. Our focus for the 
October – November period was to reduce the number of fire related incidents across the 
estate, particularly on ‘mischief night’. Lantern workshops were led by a number of 
organisations and funded by the hub with all schools participating, the resulting lantern 
parade saw hundreds of Leasowe families walk through the estate past each community 
organisation and reach the Millenium Centre where hot food was served and a band 
played. This event was hugely successful and saw the whole community and all services 
working together, impacting in the following report: 

Page 107



I am pleased to say there were no fires in areas where targeted youth engagement 
activities took place. Wirral Fire Service   

I have attended multi agency meetings since August with the fire department and police 
and youth service outlining plans for the halloween and bonfire period.  Along with our 
firework display and bonfire, Leasowe has done really well.  Leasowe Community 
Housing 

EMPLOYMENT & ENGAGEMENT 

One of the main drivers has been sustainability and to this end, most of our work has 
focused on supporting residents to take the lead in groups, skill sharing sessions and drop 
in activities. The Community Builder initially supported volunteers with sessions and this 
role has now been passed to the Community Organiser to facilitate volunteers taking a 
lead. In doing so, the champion volunteers have developed confidence and status within 
the community. When working to develop a volunteer to become a champion the following 
programme is followed: 
 

 

Hub Community Champions are now working with other groups to develop activities 
across the estate. The allotment champions provide training for the LEY volunteers to help 
them develop their community gardening project; this involves growing initial crop 
seedlings, sharing resources which are available already and accessing funding from the 
hub to expand projects. The new group hopes to become independently self-sufficient as 
well as both providing support for each other. By working together future funding can be 
jointly applied for and more economically used.   

The two groups provide outreach gardening for the elderly and other people who struggle 
to maintain their own gardens. It is then planned for surplus crops to be distributed to 
those in need via the food bank, Neo Café and the groups themselves. Our community 
builder is also assisting a parishioner from St Chads to start up a play group there and 
provide link to other hub groups. 

The Community Champions provide a voice for families and work closely with the 
Community Builder and Community Organiser, in leading their own sessions and sharing 

Engagement Development Training Empowerment 

Hook 
community 
member into an 
enjoyable 
activity of their 
preference 

Once attending 
regularly, 
encourage to 
attend other 
activities and sign 
post to target 

Support and train 
community 
member so that 
they are taking 
shared 
responsibility for 
activity 

Enable community member to 
champion the activity and take 
a lead. Ensure that there are 
between 2 and 4 residents 
allocated for each of the 
focused areas to support each 
other and provide 
sustainability 

Page 108



their skills they have grown in self-esteem and feel they are able to give back to their 
community. 

Community Champion 1:  
"I have enjoyed coming along to the hub because it has helped me gain more confidence 
plus meet new people. I have also learnt new skills and passed my own skills on to others. 
I have also gone on to do more course and start to do a TA course" 
 

Community Champion 2:  
"The Hub has helped me to build my confidence and meet new people. I have enjoyed 
volunteering during sessions and the chance to do other courses in other buildings 
because of coming here" 
 

We now have the equivalent of 32 Community Champions to lead or support sessions (be 
mindful that this is not 32 individuals as some champions volunteer for more than more 
type of activity!) and 5 Teen Champions developing their voice in steering activities for 
themselves and their peers with the Community Organiser. To provide sufficient adults to 
drive, lead or deliver courses and activities we have adopted the following employment 
options: 

Person / 
Group 

Type of activity Employment 
Arrangement 

Community 
Champion 

Skill sharing, buddies & 
drop in sessions 

Volunteers  

Teen 
Champions 

Planning activities, 
engaging others & 
making connections 

Volunteers supported by 
community organiser 

Community 
Organiser 

Canvases opinion and 
views of residents, 
arranges sessions / 
activities and supports 
volunteers 

25% funded by hub, 
25% funded by school 
management and 
resources, 50% funded 
by locality 

Steering 
Group 

Strategic view, skill 
sharing & contributing to 
drive hub activities and 
vision for unified 
working 

All Leasowe 
organisations and 
groups represented 
including charitable 
groups and residents  

Specialist 
services 

Provision of support, 
advice & guidance or 
courses and training or 
assisting with health & 
wellbeing needs 

Employed by own 
agency or company with 
time given to community 
support – only  available 
as hub is community 

Page 109



based or match funded 
time and skills given in 
return for facility and 
access 

Holiday cub 
leaders 

Teaching and learning 
sessions, supporting 
sports courses, craft or 
specific skills based 
delivery 

Existing employees of 
local schools who have 
applied and been 
recruited by hub to 
provide well planned, 
high quality provision. 
Provided with contract 
and terms of 
employment and salaried 
as additional hours. 

Community 
Builder 

Driving vision, securing 
services and 
organisations, day to 
day support for 
community organiser, 
link for wider services 

Employed by school with 
.3 timetable given to 
community and family 
support work 

School 
Business 
Manager 

Management of hub 
finances, payment of 
salaries and successful 
hub funding applications 

Employed by school with 
some previous duties 
delegated to other admin 
staff to release time to 
manage hub accounts 

Headteacher  Strategic management 
of the hub and 
development of the 
vision, application for 
additional funding 
streams, manages 
community builder and 
organiser and business 
manager. Recruits and 
employs additional 
staffing. Chairs steering 
group and is 
accountable for hub 
funding and actions. 
Reports to working party 
and monitors the work 
of others involved in 

Employed by the school. 

Page 110



hub. 

School 
Governors 

Provide challenge for 
Headteacher monitor 
hub activities and 
ensure the school has 
capacity and maintains 
effectiveness. Receives 
termly update reports on 
hub activities and 
impact. 

Volunteers belonging to 
Resources Committee of 
the Full Board of 
Governors 

 

The success of the hub has been in the school initiating the activities and then engaging 
with others and benefiting from their knowledge and expertise to share activities. By 
becoming a community hub we have been able to access far wider assets within the 
community than we would have by applying as a school. The growing number of links can 
be seen in the attached honeycomb illustrations of added value and community assets. 
The steering group is well established and initial unifying difficulties have been overcome 
and a strong commitment to partnership working has evolved amongst the 20+ 
organisations represented. One member commented that after working on the estate for 
nearly twenty years she has;  

“Never seen all the groups sat around a table together never mind working together for the 
same purpose!”  

The school Family liaison Coordinator was identified as a Community Builder and her 
timetable adjusted to develop the role and be integral in the engagement of residents and 
services particularly for the first six months of the hub. In the long term this wasn’t 
sustainable for the school so we looked at other staffing options as it was clear that it was 
necessary to have a contact person available to facilitate activities, especially out of school 
hours. A proposal submitted by another agency to the steering group enabled us to secure 
50% locality funding to provide 2nd year progression for a community organiser. The 
combination of existing community links and experience of listening skills and training 
made her a significant attribute to the hub. The organiser arranges the buddy system for 
new hub users and refers to the builder for advice and guidance when needed. The 
organiser is also available to facilitate activities at other schools and venues under the hub 
umbrella in an effort to engage further school families within their own schools. The role is 
25% funded by the hub grant at a cost of £7,500 and 25% funded by existing management 
and systems already in operation within the school employee structure. This means that 
we are able to provide career progression within existing structures which is not onerous 
on management time. In return, the hub now has a fulltime employee focused upon 
extending provision and engaging the community. This significantly reduced the additional 
school hours that had been expended whilst promoting further engagement.  

Having a named person whom participants can contact means we don’t lose anyone whilst 
school employees are engaged in their primary role. It is particularly important to have the 

Page 111



organiser facilitating drop in sessions and sign posting families to services. These are 
some of our most well attended sessions which run on a cycle of agencies offering support 
and advice in an informal way with the opportunity to use a private room as needed. These 
include: Wirral Autistic Society support; Kirwin’s solicitors providing free family law and will 
writing advice; Pink Commando’s keep safe skills; champion led craft sessions; youth 
service ASB team; champion led cookery and champion led recycling.  

Families who have participated in activities have been forthcoming in sharing their views 
and experiences. 
 
Participant: 
 "At the hub I have made new friends and get to socialise in the week. I have tried loads of 
new things like card making and crafts and everyone is always happy to help."  
 

Case study 1 

Background 

P & Q are in their mid-30’s 

They have 3 children; the eldest is 13 years old 

P smokes, occasionally drink, both parents and the 2 children are overweight with the 
parents being clinically obese, both parents receive PIP [personal independence payment] 
due to health complications. They have a number of pets living in the house.  

They admit that they had a very unhealthy diet and inactive lifestyle. They tended to drive 
everywhere. Their 2 children followed the parents’ example although one of the children is 
older and more independent but still leads a very inactive lifestyle, spending a lot of time 
on computer games. 

Both parents are very supportive of the school and eager to take part in all areas of school 
life, however they said that they often felt unwelcome by other parents. The children were 
often excluded by other children due to lifestyle related issues.  

Since joining Hub activities  

All the family attended a family exercises morning during the half term Mum said it was 
first time that she had participated in exercise where she laughed with others and was not 
laughed at; she said that the setting made her feel comfortable and relaxed and that the 
other participants accepted her, she felt in part because they knew her from other activities 
and sessions. The children mixed with others and were very much included and part of the 
group.  Dad said that it was the first time he had taken part in proper exercise in as long as 
he could remember. 

The whole family has joined the allotment project and have even adopted two growing 
beds of their own. They attend on a regular basis on their own or arrange to meet other 
members there. They said that as a direct result they are spending quality time in the fresh 
air as a family, they not only grow new produce but have started to cook and eat more fruit 

Page 112



and veg as a result. The children are eager to eat what they have grown and are beginning 
to make more healthy choices.  

The parents have signed up to a Livewell (NHS Community Trust) health programme and 
are passing on ideas to their children, they have both said that they want to set a better 
example, especially to the two younger children who have signed up to  a home/ school 
healthy lifestyle diary program in school.  

Here is a direct quote from an open day attendee from an outside agency with regard to 
the dad: 
  
“.. found talking to one resident totally inspiring.  He was saying that he had a lot of 
mobility issues and as a result had a tendency to remain at home in doors watching TV.  
He talked about how the allotment had given him confidence to get out and talk to others 
and that although he didn't garden much, the community element meant he was learning 
alongside others, enjoyed the social aspects and felt his own mental wellbeing had 
improved from talking and fresh air!  …….” 
 
Case study 2 

Participant background 

W is in her late twenties, she lives with her partner X. Neither adult works. They have 2 
children, age 7 and 5, W’s sister’s child aged 13 [for whom she has residency, also lives 
with them], who has special needs. The family has suffered from the death of a 6 year old 
child four years ago. Neither adult smokes, although they do drink. 

W has little family support and relies on her partner. She can be very aggressive towards 
anyone she felt was criticising her or her children. The aggression appeared to be a 
defence mechanism, she had no another way of expressing her feelings. 

She had a very poor relationship with school - both staff and other parents.  Staff found her 
very aggressive and the Head teacher has had to issue a verbal warning with regards to 
her behaviour on the yard and threatening disposition towards staff and other parents.  
Other parents found her unapproachable.  Parents were wary of approaching school if 
they had issues with her children due to being unsure how she would react. If W was 
asked in to school to discuss matters she would be very defensive and aggressive, taking 
any advice or observation as a direct criticism. Both the boys have displayed aggression 
towards others and inappropriate behaviour. W didn’t engage positively with school, she 
didn’t take part in school based activities or event and the children’s behaviour is 
challenging. 

Since Joining Hub activities  

The transformation in what is a relatively short time has been wonderful to be part of. W 
attended playgroup session with another mum; this led to her signing up for a course that 
she attended alongside other parents and children. W began to attend the drop in and skill 
share sessions, she started to help out making teas and volunteering to help with setting 
up and organisation.  W has now built up her own confidence, skills and knowledge,  she 
is a regular attendee of various events and courses; she has begun to volunteer at more 

Page 113



sessions and was actively involved in the preparation for the hub open day she has also 
taken on a leading role in the new allotment group. Although she can still come across as 
abrupt at times she is certainly not aggressive. She has a much more positive relationship 
with school - parents and staff, she has begun to socialise with other parents, which in turn 
gives her a wider support network. She has taken it upon herself to try to learn new skills 
to enable her to think about preparing for a return to work. Other parents have commented 
on the positive change with one course leader saying that she was scared to ask her 
anything for the first few weeks but now she will immediately think of her if something 
needs to be done. 

Recently there was an incident where another child had accused her child of passing an 
inappropriate comment. W came into school and discussed the incident with the Head 
Teacher; mum agreed that staff could talk to the child with regards to appropriate language 
and that she would back this up at home, this would not have been possible even a few 
months ago. W has stated that she has surprised herself with how much she enjoys the 
activities and how she wishes to be involved more in the future.  

 
BARRRIERS & CHALLENGES 

The community hub has been a completely new way of working for our school. Whilst we 
have always engaged in family support activities and worked with services, it has been 
within our arrangements and organisation and has not been led by parent voice or 
involved working so openly and transparently with other organisations and with families. 

To fully engage others we had to recognise that the project wasn’t for our school and 
realise that to actually make a difference the funding would need to be distributed and the 
decision in how that would be allocated would be shared by the organisations. This was 
the way we moved towards breaking down some of the barriers that have existed between 
organisations. The steering group as a whole feel that until funding is allocated for 
community and stipulates the necessity of cross fertilisation or partnership working to meet 
wider needs, unity will not be achieved in practice. If groups are bidding against each other 
for funding it becomes a competition and is then less about community needs and more 
about justification. By forming effective partnerships, workload has been distributed and 
the hub is more efficient and effective. 

The initial start-up process was very challenging and schools should carefully consider 
their capacity, current position with regards to performance indicators and staffing stability 
and their ability to engage with wider groups. As a pilot, we did not have a specific remit 
and shaped our vision as we developed. Within the first three months the time required 
was such that it appeared unsustainable, however this had become more balanced by six 
months and was manageable by nine months as more participants had ownership and 
colleagues were driving activities themselves. 

Maintaining momentum and keeping activities appealing and engaging requires a special 
skill set and an employee who is passionate about working with families to improve 

Page 114



outcomes for children. Participants readily disengage if sessions are lack luster and hubs 
need to commit to high quality provision to achieve high quality outcomes. 

Time learning from other hubs would be well spent as the initial planning stage and action 
planning needs to be well researched and clearly structured to have a smooth launch. To 
progress we will re-visit our surveys, the community organiser will door knock to seek what 
the community want for their next steps whilst the builder will work to gain commitment for 
sustained working from the agencies and organisations that have given us so much 
support over the past year. Without these two drivers and the continued unified approach 
we would not be able to build upon what we have established. 

To move forward we need to complete our evaluations, listen to our stakeholders, share 
our work with the assets in our community and facilitate what that community needs; it’s 
not about us, it’s about them and that has been our greatest realisation.   

Leasowe and Woodchurch Community Hubs Conclusion 

In concluding, both schools would like to thank the working party for the opportunity you 
have given us to engage and support our communities in a new and innovative way. It has 
been a year of learning and understanding how we can identify and utilise the assets in 
our local areas for the benefit of all. In the early stages the work required to drive the vision 
of community hubs seemed unsustainable however, what we now have are models of 
service that are driven by the community and facilitated by the schools. By sharing skills, 
working together and recognising how powerful we can be as a community when we unite, 
the model of community hubs is something we will fight for. 

We look forward to meeting with the Children’s Trust Board on the 20th January to answer 
questions members may have, provide projections for future development and share video 
evidence of the impact you have made by providing community hubs in Wirral. 

 

Donelan & Sargeant, December 2014 

Page 115



Appendix 3 

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 20 January 2015 
 
Birkenhead Foundation Years Project Up-date, January 2015 
 
1.0 Background 
The Project’s first formal report to the Trust was for the quarter up to September 2014.   
 
2.0 Overview of the Project’s activities September – December 2014 
The Project is commissioning and directly delivering services which will impact on 3 factors 
which have a significant impact on school readiness: the home learning environment; 
parental mental health and well-being; and parental warmth and sensitivity.  The services 
which have run in this period (September- December 2014) are as follows: 
 
2.1 Bump-Start: one-to-one peer support for women from the 20th week of pregnancy until 

the child is 6 months old. Ran throughout the period, delivered by Home-Start Wirral: 
target 20 families: actual 23. 

2.2 Parents Early Education Partnership (PEEP) group:  group parent and baby/toddler 
structured play, at St James Centre.  Ran October - November, delivered by the North 
Birkenhead Development Trust: target 12 families; actual 26 parents; 31 children.  
Good recruitment but a high level of one-off or sporadic attendance affects the impact.  
Addresses support for the home learning environment.  We are reviewing delivery with 
the provider. 

2.3 PEEP Home Play: one-to-one play in the home with child and parent(s) to encourage 
those who feel unable to attend groups, because of low self-confidence or practical 
obstacles to accessing services.  Aims are to firstly encourage play in the home and 
subsequently to support parents to access group services.  Ran throughout the period, 
delivered by the project team: target 8 families; actual - 4 supported; staff sickness for 
much of this period resulted in a delay in receiving referrals – we are reviewing 
delivery. 

2.4 Stay & Play: informal parent and child play group with structured activities for children 
and progressive development of parental involvement. Ran throughout the period, 
delivered by the project team: target 15 families; actual 28 families, 29 children.  Some 
sporadic and one-off attendance but a core of 12 families attended the majority of 
sessions. Second group started during period. Addresses support for the home 
learning environment.   

2.5 Read it Together @ (RITA): parent and child group with supported parent and children 
reading together, followed by adult reading while children have play session.  Ran 
throughout the period at the Manor school.  RIT@Manor September- December, target 
6 families; actual 14 adults, 14 children attended, but 5 are consistent attendees.  
Addresses support for the home learning environment and parental mental health and 
well-being. 

2.6 Xmas fun at Rock Ferry: taster for RIT@ group to begin in New Year.  Target 8 
families, actual 5 families and 6 children.  Group to continue. 

2.7 Reflective Parenting: group programme for pregnant mothers/partners before and 
after birth.  Training and multi-agency briefings February.  Delivered by Home-Start 
Wirral: target 8 families; actual 4, reducing to 2.  See milestone report for comments in 
relation to delivery.  Addresses support for parental warmth and sensitivity. 

 
3.0 Monitoring and outcomes 
Poverty indicators are being collected: no member of household in paid work; living in 
social housing/with parents/in rented housing; no access to car.  These were chosen as 

Page 116



externally recognised poverty indicators which are also less intrusive questions for 
families.  This quarter we have moved delivery to a focus on the Beechwood estate and 
have experienced a large increase in residents of social housing as the main group of 
families accessing our services.  Given the limited supply of social housing and the fact 
that young families will not be in receipt of secure tenancies, we can be confident that 
these are low waged families, in the cases where they are in work.  We would like to apply 
‘resident of social housing’ as a criteria for a family which we can regard as living in 
poverty. 
 
4.0 Longer term developments 

a) Outputs, outcomes and meaningful reporting 
We are delivering services on a scale which throws up choices and challenges in relation 
to what we report to the Trust.  The figures on the page attached separately show a level 
of detail which disguises an emerging pictures of families and how they access services; 
‘families’ usually means we see a mother but sometimes a mother + relative; a couple; a 
mother + friend.  We have 2 sets of twins and several families with more than one child 
under 5 years. A small but growing number of families receive support from 2 or more of 
our activities – we track this so that we can differentiate between the impact of different 
programmes of support.  We also need to think about the difference we make to a family 
which attends sporadically as opposed to those who attend regularly.  We need a system 
of reporting where we can compare like with like but Trust meetings do not alien with 
quarters so we will not have the figures for previous quarters at each meeting.  One way to 
provide the Trust with an overview is to report on outcomes (how families are changing) on 
alternate meetings to those when we report outputs.  Would this be helpful?  What level of 
detail is useful? 

 
b) Developing ways to support families at pre-school Transition stages 

In working with primary schools we need to do two things; provide a service which the 
schools feel supports their work directly, not just theoretically in the future; and link our 
group and individual support to the work in schools.  This is now much more complicated 
than previously as children can join school (‘transition’) at age 2 (if they are in receipt of 
the 2 year old funding); at 3 (‘Foundation 1’), at 4 (‘Foundation 2’) or 5 (‘Year 1’).  This 
challenge has changed in the last year, with the introduction of free places for 2 year olds.  
We are reviewing the resources/literature which exists to inform what we do 

 
Report Author:   Zoë Munby    Contact: 0151 647 4830 
zmunby@foundationyearstrust.org.uk 
 

Appendix 3a –Milestone report  

 

Page 117



Appendix 3a Milestone report  
SERVICE OUTPUT and 
OUTCOME

September - December 2014 Red, green, 
amber

Commentary

Progress towards service 
level outputs - reaching 
and sustaining 
engagement with poorer 
families

Bump-Start: 72% of families supported 
meet 2 or more poverty indicators

23 families: 6 have not provided full monitoring data yet;  6 meet 1 poverty indicator; 5 meet 2; 9 meet all three.

Read it Together @ groups: 25% of 
families meet 1 or more poverty 
indicators

14 families:  2 have not provided full monitoring data; all of the remainder meet one poverty indicator and 11 of the 12 live in social housing.  In discussion with 
social housing providers we have arrived at the conclusion that young families living in social housing will have a low income and that this status could be 
considered as a poverty measure in itself.  This shift in profile of the families we are supporting reflects the new focus on supporting families on the 
Beechwood estate.

Home Play: 25% meet 1 or more poverty 
indicators

14 families: all bar one family live in social housing

Play focussed groups: 78% of families 
meet 1 or more poverty indicator 

54 families across 3 groups: as above, there is a strong shift here to supporting families living in social housing.  Two families do not fall neatly into our poverty 
measures as they were mothers being supported d in a fostering arrangement.

Impact on home learning 
environment

Secure referrals from a variety of 
services for families at levels 1 -2 of 
need

The Bump-Start service continues to receive referrals at higher levels of need than we were targeting.  This appears to reflect the priorities of referrers.  We are 
confident that the service addresses real needs for those families.  We continue to work on attracting referrals from lower level families to this service.  Group-
based services which do not rely on referrals are predominantly at Ls.1-2.

Secure synergy of delivery with 
Children's Centres and specifically 
services focussed at a universal level

We have delivered a taster at a Children's Centre and will build upon this start.

Secure partnerships with schools to 
deliver in buildings previously occupied 
by Children's Centres and to develop 
services which complement the school's 
Foundation Stage delivery.

The partnership with a single school on the Beechwood estate this quarter got off to a very productive start, including work at the Foundation Stage in direct 
support of the school's delivery.  Contacts with other schools will be pursued energetically but external events continue to make this complicated.

Activities to engage parents with 'fun' 
piloted

Activities on the Beechwood estate 20+ families involved.

Initial programme for play activity on 
Beechwood estate planned

The initial programme successfully delivered and extended plans for 2015 are developed.

30 or more families attend groups 59 families attended groups: St James Centre; Priory School; Rock Ferry Children's Centre - two locations new to the project this quarter which will be the focus 
of future development. This is a 59% increase on the previous quarter.

8 or more families receive one-to-one 
support

4 families received one-to-one support, half the number in the previous quarter.  Long-term staff sickness affected the service and we are reviewing the 
management of delivery.

Impact on parental 
warmth and sensitivity

Secure referrals from midwives and 
health visitors for antenatal support

There has been a progressive increase in referrals and we are now meeting our target.

Secure shared data relating to 
pregnancy and births from Arrowe Park 
and 121 midwives.  Needed for 
evaluation and planning.

Commitment to data sharing with Arrowe Park was agreed in principle prior to the project's start.  This has been slow to achieve but we believe that there will 
be progress on this front soon.

SERVICE OUTPUT and 
OUTCOME

September- December 2014 Red, green, 
amber

Commentary

Impact on parental 
warmth and sensitivity

Deliver 1  Reflective Parenting 
programme

A programme was piloted with very low numbers but has been used to test delivery in a different format going forward.

Impact on parental mental 
health and wellbeing

20 or more families receiving one-to-
one antenatal support support

23 families are now receiving support, a 92% increase on the previous quarter.

Influence multi-agency 
collaboration around 
school readiness

Collaborative work with Springfield 
Nursery at Beechwood agreed

No new developments this quarter.

Meeting with hospital maternity service 
to discuss action in response to 
maternity report

No developments.

Baby to Toddler consultation 
questionnaire piloted.

10 pilot questionnaires completed and reviewed.

 

Page 118



Public Health, Policy & Performance      1 
 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE 

COMMITTEE 

2ND FEBRUARY 2015 

 

SUBJECT: DIRECTORATE PLAN 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 
REPORT OF: CLAIRE FISH (STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING) 
 
FIONA JOHNSTONE (DIRECTOR OF PUBILC 
HEALTH, POLICY & PERFORMANCE) 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER:  

CLLR CHRIS JONES (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
PUBLIC HEALTH) 

KEY DECISION?  NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The aim of this report (Appendix 1) is to update Members in relation to the 
2014/15 performance to date (as at 31st December 2014) of the Families and 
Wellbeing and Public Health directorate against the delivery of their Directorate 
Plans 2014/15. The report translates the priorities set out in the Directorate 
Plans into a coherent and measurable set of performance outcome measures 
and targets. Members are requested to consider the details of the report and 
highlight any issues. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 As part of the development of the Directorate Plans, SMART (Specific, 
Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Time related) outcome measures have 
been developed that link directly to the Corporate Plan. The senior 
management team have determined the corporate and directorate outcome 
indicators contained within the report and signed off the following parameters 
which underpin their on-going performance management: 

 
• 2014/16 Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Plans 
• 2014/15 Plan trajectories 
• 2014/15 Performance tolerance levels (determine RAG [Red, Amber,  
 Green] status 
• Head of Service responsible for delivery of target 

2.2 Directorate Plan performance (includes Corporate Plan targets) is monitored 
on a monthly basis against the parameters agreed as part of the business 
planning process (e.g. RAG tolerance levels). Some indicators are only 
available on a quarterly or annual basis, in line with the availability of data. 
Heads of Service responsible for the delivery of targets must complete an 

Page 119

Agenda Item 13



Public Health, Policy & Performance      2 
 

exception report and delivery plan for all indicators which are under 
performing (e.g. red RAG rated indicators). 

  
2.3 Monthly Directorate Plan performance reports will be produced and made 

available, to support corporate and directorate challenge via: 
 

• Monthly DMTs 
• Monthly Portfolio Lead briefings 
• Quarterly Audit, Risk, Governance and Performance meetings 
• Quarterly Policy and Performance Committees 

 
3.0 SUMMARY 
 
3.1 The Directorate Plan 2014/15 Performance Report (Appendix 1) sets out 

performance against 57 outcome measures   
 
3.2 Of the 57 measures for 2014/15, 30 are rated green, 5 are rated amber and 5 

are rated red whilst 17 are currently unrated.  The 4 measures rated red have 
action plans (included as Appendix 2, 3, 4 and 5) which refer to: 

 
• NHS Health Checks – Take Up  
• Smoking Quitters (4 Weeks) 
• Proportion of Opiate drug users that left drug treatment successfully who 

do not re-present to treatment within 6 months 
• Timeliness of Adoptions, within 12 months of decision date  
• Average monthly bed days lost due to delayed transfers of care per 

100,000  
 
3.3  The Families & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2014/16 sets out the key functions 

the Directorate is responsible for and the contribution it makes to the delivery of 
the Corporate Plan priorities. The Plan is underpinned by the key performance 
indicator (KPI) planning templates that provide the rationale, trajectory and 
tolerances for the KPIs. 

 
4.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

4.1 The performance management framework policy is aligned to the Council’s risk 
management strategy.  

 
5.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

5.1 N/A 
 
6.0 CONSULTATION  

6.1 N/A 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

7.1 N/A 
 

Page 120



Public Health, Policy & Performance      3 
 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

8.1 Financial implications of undertaking the actions to deliver the Corporate Plan 
will be addressed by Directorates as appropriate.  

 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 N/A 
 
10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 (c) No because equalities implications relating to the actions set out in the 

Corporate Plan will be addressed by departments as appropriate, and details 
set out in individual departmental plans. 

  
 The report is for information to Members and there are no direct equalities 

implications at this stage. 
 
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 N/A 
 
12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 N/A 
 
13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Committee are requested to use the information contained within this report to 
inform its future work programme.  

 
14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

14.1 To ensure that the report provides elected members with the information 
required to evaluate the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan.    

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Fiona Johnstone 
  Director of Policy, Performance & Public Health 
  Telephone:  691 8152 
  Email:   fionajohnstone@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 121



Public Health, Policy & Performance      4 
 

 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Directorate Plan Performance Report (as at 31st December 2014) 
 
Appendix 2 – Action Plan: NHS Health Checks – Take Up 
 
Appendix 3 – Action Plan: Smoking Quitters (4 Weeks) 
 
Appendix 4 – Action Plan: Proportion of Opiate drug users that left drug treatment 

successfully who do not re-present to treatment within 6 months 
 
Appendix 5 – Action Plan: Timeliness of Adoptions, within 12 months of decision 

date 
 
Appendix 6 – Action Plan: Average monthly lost bed days lost due to delayed 

transfers of care per 100,000 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

Families & Wellbeing Policy and Performance 

Committee 

 

Families & Wellbeing Policy and Performance 

Committee 

 

Families & Wellbeing Policy and Performance 

Committee 

 

Families & Wellbeing Policy and Performance 

Committee 

 

Families & Wellbeing Policy and Performance 

Committee 

 

Families & Wellbeing Policy and Performance 

Committee 

 

9th Jul 2013 

 

 

9th September 2013 

 

 

28th January 2014 

 

 

8th April 2014 

 

 

8th July 2014 

 

 

9th September 2014 

 

Page 122



Public Health, Policy & Performance      5 
 

 

 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

No. Description Data Source Performance

2013/14

North West 

2013/14

Target/Plan

2014/15

YTD Target

2014/15

YTD 

Performance

Forecast 

Outturn

Overall Status Monthly 

Trend

Reporting 

Period

Accountable Officer

 (Head of Service)

Comments

1

Alcohol-related admissions to hospital:  Rate of 

attendance at A & E for injury and assault where 

alcohol was a factor

(Corporate Plan)

Trauma, Injury 

Intelligence 

Group (TIIG)

901.37 N/A 901.37 901.37 843.46 901.37 G
Dec 13 

- 

Nov 14

J Webster

The data shows a further reduction in the rate of attendances to A&E, suggesting a 

continuing positive improvement in performance of the system. However it should 

be noted that, although this improvement is encouraging, the methodology we are 

using to track this target is new so it is important to keep a close watch on the data 

to ensure that this downward trend is a genuine improvement and not a function of 

the change in the methodology.

2
NHS Health Checks - Offered

(Corporate Plan)

Integrated 

Performance 

Measures 

Monitoring 

Return

17.7% 18.5% 20.0% 8.0% 12.7% 20.0% G Apr - Sep J Harvey

3
NHS Health Checks - Take up

(Corporate Plan)

Integrated 

Performance 

Measures 

Monitoring 

Return

53.1% 51.0% 50.0% 50.0% 30.1% 50.0% R Apr - Sep J Harvey

4
Smoking quitters (4 weeks) 

(PHOF 2.14)

Stop Smoking 

Service

 1727

(43%) 

 42879

(43%) 
1,900 993                        647                   1,389 R Apr - Sep G Rickwood

Quarter two performance for this target has seen a 35% decrease in performance 

compared to Q2 activity in 2013/2014, this drop in performance is reflected both 

regionally and nationally.  The Public Health team will be undertaking a review of the 

current stop smoking models delivered by all providers in Wirral to identify the most 

appropriate model for local needs and to take account of changing environmental 

factors e.g. use of e-cigarettes.  The revised service model will be produced by the 

summer.

5

Smoking status at time of delivery: rate per 100 

maternities 

(PHOF 2.3)

Integrated 

Performance 

Measures 

Monitoring 

Return

13.7%

12.8%

Cheshire, 

Warrington & 

Wirral)

11.0% 11.0% 12.2% 11.0% A Apr - Sep G Rickwood

Quarter two sees a reduction in women smoking at time of delivery from 13.3% in 

quarter 1 to 11.2% this quarter, giving a cumulative rate of 12.2%.  The current 

programme of work that offers support to pregnant women to stop smoking is 

delivered by Solutions for Health and is a 12 week health and wellbeing course with 

a focus on 4&12 week quits.  Referrals into this programme are predominantly from 

maternity services, we are working with services to increase referrals from all health 

professionals who come into contact with pregnant women.  

7

Excess weight in 4-5 year olds: reception year 

classified as overweight or obese 

PHOF 2.6i)

NCMP 22.3% 22.9% 24.0% 24.0% 23.1% 23.1% G 2013-14 J Graham

8

Excess weight in 10-11 year olds: year 6 classified as 

overweight or obese 

(PHOF 2.6ii)

NCMP 33.3% 33.4% 34.6% 34.6% 35.0% 35.0% A 2013-14 J Graham

Within year, individual practices have the flexibility to spread out their Health Check 

invitations in a way that best suits their practice.  As a result, actual take-up of 

invitations can vary from quarter to quarter. We are therefore aiming to ensure that 

the overall full-year uptake figure is at least 50% (which was exceeded in 2013/14).  

In order to support practices to achieve this, the following is in place:

Seconded Practice Nurses have also been  visiting / liaising closely with GP practices 

who require further support to improve take-up rates.

A promotional video and poster are under development to be used in all GP 

practices and also community settings.

A proposal to pilot the impact of 'Point of Care Testing' within GP practices is being 

developed.

Owing to the availability of additional data for this quarter, practices will also shortly 

receive a personalised performance report, comparing their results to all other 

practices.  

The next data return is due 31st January 2015 (quarter 3).  In the knowledge that 

many patients will not attend for this type of appointment at this time of year, 

practices will not schedule many appointments.  We are therefore predicting 

another underperformance in quarter 3 with a significant upsurge in activity for 

quarter 4. 

A reduction  in rate was experienced for quarter 3 2013.  This reduced from 32.9 in 

Q2 to 31.2 in quarter 3. This is also a reduction from the same point in 2012 when 

the rate was 35.6, however, Wirral's rate still remains higher than that of the North 

West and England.  Teenage pregnancy prevention is currently being addressed 

through a new integrated approach by development of a risk and resilience strategy.  

In the interim, the teenage pregnancy sub-groups continue to sustain momentum 

around this agenda.

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Performance Report as at 31st December 2014

Public Health - Tackling Health Inequalities

Domain 2: Health improvement

Under 18 conceptions: rate per 1,000 population 

aged 15-17

(PHOF 2.4)

31.2 32.9 J Graham6 G
Office for 

National 

Statistics (ONS)

33.5

(2012 national)

Jul - Sep

2013
32.932.9

31.6

(2012)

These are the most up to date figures as published by Public Health England 

December, 2014.  The Wirral model for delivering the National Child Measurement 

Programme goes  beyond weighing and measuring and delivers key healthy lifestyle 

messages direct to the children as part of a structured lesson.  Also, the service 

proactively follows up every very overweight child, giving telephone support and 

boosting referrals in to weight management services.

+

 

+

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

+

 

-

 

-

 

P
age 125



Appendix 2

No. Description Data Source Performance

2013/14

North West 

2013/14

Target/Plan

2014/15

YTD Target

2014/15

YTD 

Performance

Forecast 

Outturn

Overall Status Monthly 

Trend

Reporting 

Period

Accountable Officer

 (Head of Service)

Comments

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Performance Report as at 31st December 2014

10

Proportion of non-opiate drug users that left 

treatment successfully who do not re-present to 

treatment within 6 months 

(PHOF 2.15ii)

NDTMS NYA NYA 53.0% 53.0%

52.58%

(Apr 13 -

Mar 14)

53.0% G
Apr - Mar 

2014
G Rickwood

This indicator, predominantly delivered by Arch Initiatives, has now achieved its 

performance target for a sustained period.  However this is a volatile performance 

target sensitive to small changes in the number of completers and subject to 

fluctuation.

11
Cancer screening coverage – breast cancer (PHOF 

2.20i)

Health and 

Social Care 

Information 

Centre /Public 

Health England

77.2%

(2013)

74.1%

(2013)
77% 77% NYA 77% - - - A Sahu

The Director of Public Health has an assurance role with regard to cancer screening 

programmes.  It is the responsibility of NHS England to commission and performance 

manage the programmes.  It is important for Councillors to be aware of our 

performance against the programmes as they are key elements in our prevention 

activity to reduce death and disease from cancer. The Breast screening programme 

is performing well locally with coverage targets achieved.

12
Cancer screening coverage – cervical cancer (PHOF 

2.20ii)

Health and 

Social Care 

Information 

Centre /Public 

Health England

72.6%

(2013)

72.8%

(2013)
76% 76% 78.8% 76% G Apr - Jun A Sahu

A report on performance of the cervical cancer programme from NHS England (the 

commission body) shows that the uptake of cytology by most GP practices in the 

Wirral did not meet national targets.  However, most of the GP surgeries have 

increased in their uptake of cytology (up to June 2014).  The Local Authority Public 

Health team is working with NHS England and the CCG to improve the uptake of 

cancer screening programmes including: breast, bowel and cytology.  The Director of 

Public Health will be presenting an education event for GPs focusing on cancer.  This 

will enable discussions with local GPs around screening programmes for cancer. 

13
Crude rate of chlamydia diagnoses per 100,000 young 

adults aged 15-24 years

Health 

Protection 

Agency (HPA)

2,309 per 100,000

(2013)

2,257 per 100,000

(2013: North of 

England)

2,300 per 

100,000
2,300 2,606 2,300 G Apr - Sep J Graham

Public Health England published data for quarter 1 and 2, 2014-15 indicate that 

Wirral is on track to achieve the chlamydia target.

14

% of eligible children who received 3 doses of Dtap / 

IPV / Hib vaccine at any time by their 1st birthday 

(PHOF 3.03iii)

Cover of 

Vaccination 

Evaluated 

Rapidly (COVER) 

data collected by 

Public Health 

England (PHE)

96.8%

(2012/13)

95.7%

(2012/13)
95% 95% 95.8% 95% G

Apr 13 

- 

Mar 14

A Sahu

The Director of Public Health has an assurance role with regard to immunisation and 

vaccination programmes.  It is the responsibility of NHS England to commission and 

performance manage the programmes. It is important for Councillors to be aware of 

our performance against the programmes as they are key elements in our 

prevention activity to reduce death and disease from communicable diseases e.g. 

measles, mumps.  

Data for quarter 2 shows that this indicator is performing slightly above trajectory, 

coverage of 95% of the eligible population is required to ensure herd immunity.

15

% of eligible children who have received one dose of 

MMR vaccine on or after their 1st birthday and 

anytime up to their 2nd birthday (PHOF 3.03viii)

Cover of 

Vaccination 

Evaluated 

Rapidly (COVER) 

data collected by 

Public Health 

England (PHE)

95%

(2012/13)

94.9%

(2012/13)
95% 95% 95.1% 95% G

Apr 13 

- 

Mar 14

A Sahu

Please see commentary above. Current performance is exceeding the 95% target to 

provide good population coverage.

Measures for this outcome are under development

16

The gap between the proportion of pupils achieving a 

Good Level of Development  (in the Early Years 

Foundation Stage Profile) 

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
39.5 38.7 36.6 - - 36.6 - - - S Talbot

Annual Indicator

17

The achievement gap between pupils eligible for free 

school meals and their peers achieving at Key Stages 

2 (Level 4 +Reading, Writing and Maths)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
20.9 19.0 16.0 - - 16.0 - - - S Talbot

Annual Indicator

R

Proportion of opiate drug users that left drug 

treatment successfully who do not re-present to 

treatment within 6 months 

(PHOF 2.15i)

NDTMS

The National NDTMS database is currently out of service due to major upgrade work 

being undertaken by Public Health England.  Data on the most recent performance is 

not currently available.  The system is not expected to be back on line until February 

so no performance analysis is possible at this time.  This service has now been re-

tendered and mobilisation of the new service is now well under way with a start 

date set for 1st February 2015. 

9

Children and young people are prepared for working life and adulthood

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING - CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE

Domain 3: Health protection

G Rickwood
Apr - Mar 

2014

7.91%

(Apr 13 -

Mar 14)

10.0%NYA NYA 10.0%

Children are ready for school

10.0% -

 

+

 

+

 

+

 

+

 

+

 

P
age 126



Appendix 2

No. Description Data Source Performance

2013/14

North West 

2013/14

Target/Plan

2014/15

YTD Target

2014/15

YTD 

Performance

Forecast 

Outturn

Overall Status Monthly 

Trend

Reporting 

Period

Accountable Officer

 (Head of Service)

Comments

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Performance Report as at 31st December 2014

18

The achievement gap between pupils eligible for free 

school meals and their peers achieving at Key Stages 

4 (5 or more A*-C including English and maths)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
34.9 29.5 26.5 - - 26.5 - - - S Talbot

Annual Indicator

19
The % of Looked After Children achieving Key Stages 2 

(Level 4 +Reading, Writing and Maths)
FFT Aspire 42.9 N/A 61.0 - - 61.0 - - - S Butcher

Annual Indicator

20

The % of Looked After Children achieving expected 

levels at Key Stages 4 (5 or more A*-C including 

English and maths)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
11.8 15.7 44.0 - - 44.0 - - - S Butcher

Annual Indicator

21
Inequality of achievement of a Level 2 qualification by 

the age of 19 (FSM)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
17.0 19.0 16.0 - - 16.0 - - - P Smith

Annual Indicator

22
Inequality of achievement of a Level 3 qualification by 

the age of 19 (FSM)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
36.0 28.0 31.0 - - 31.0 - - - P Smith

Annual Indicator

23
The % of young people aged 16-18 who are not in 

Employment, Education or Training. (NEET)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
5.7% 6.4% 5.5% 5.5% 5.8% 5.5% G Oct P Smith

The adjusted NEET rate as at the end of October was 5.8% (573 Young People)

24
The % of Care Leavers in Employment Education or 

Training

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
66.0% 60.0% 70.0% 70.0% 67.5% 70.0% G Dec P Smith

The anticipated number of young people who will be eligible for inclusion in this 

measure in 2014-15 is currently 51.

To date there have been a total of 34 young people eligible to be included in the 

calculation of whom 25 are engaged in Education, Employment or Training

25 Rate of Children in Need per 10,000 402.1
343.1

(2012-13)
375.0 381.0 381.7 380.0 G Dec S Butcher

The number of Children in Need have reduced despite a high number of referrals in 

the reporting period.  The number of cases closed (1,306) have exceeded the 

number of new referrals (1,255).

The referrals open to the Pathway and transition teams for young people over the 

age of 18 are no longer included in the formula as population based on ages of 

children 0-17.

26
Rate of Child Protection Plans (Per 10,00 population 

aged 0-17)

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
41.2 37.9 37.9 29.3 29.3 G Dec S Butcher

The number of child protection plans has decreased from 214 in November to 198 in 

December.

27 Rate of referrals to Social Care per 10,000 599.8 575.0 575.0 569.5 575.0 G Dec S Butcher

October and November have seen the highest number of referrals (458 and 449). 

The number of referrals in Quarter 3 was 22% higher than Quarter 2.

This is 4% lower than at the equivalent point in 2013-14.

28
Number of families achieving a positive outcome 

through the Payment by Results schedule
304.0 510.0 510.0 NYA 510.0 - - - D Gornik

Currently awaiting data to enable calculation of this measure

29 Rate of Child Protection Plans per 10,000
Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
41.2 37.8 37.9 29.3 29.3 G Dec S Butcher

The number of child protection plans has decreased from 214 in November to 198 in 

December.

30 Rate of Looked After Children per 10,000 100.1 - 95.8 97.0 100.1 95.8 A Dec S Butcher

Looked after children (LAC) numbers continue to be higher than the national 

average and statistical neighbours.  A LAC Task Group is now in operation which is 

ensuring a whole systems approach to addressing this issue.  Emphasis is on detailed 

analysis of individual children and implementing strategies to safely reduce the LAC 

population and associated costs.  

The number of LAC has been relatively static since July with minor fluctuations 

month on month . The current number of LAC is 34 higher than the 2014/15 end of 

year target.

31
% of Children in Foster care having three or more 

placements

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
6.8% 10.0% 10.0% 6.6% 8.0% G Dec S Butcher

The % of LAC who have had 3 or more placements has reduced from 7.5% in October 

to 6.6% in December.

32
% of Children in Foster care being in placement for 

two years or more
67.9% 70.0% 70.0% 71.8% 70.0% G Dec S Butcher

The percentage of children in care who are in placement over 2 years has marginally 

from 70.5% in October to 74.8% in December.

33
Percentage of children leaving care through SGO’s / 

adoptions
23.1% 27.7% 28.0% 28.0% 33.9% 33.9% G Dec S Butcher

A total of 121 children have been discharged from care to date during 2014/15 of 

whom 22 were discharged via a Special Guardianship Order and 19 have been 

adopted.

34 Percentage of children in care placed with parents 11.0% 8.0% 8.0% 12.6% 12.0% G Dec S Butcher
A total of 85 children were placed with parents as at 31st December.

Children and young people feel safe and secure

Children, young people and families have their needs met at the earliest opportunity

- 

+ 

+ 

+ 

+ 

- 

+ 

+

 

+

 

+

 

-

 

P
age 127



Appendix 2

No. Description Data Source Performance

2013/14

North West 

2013/14

Target/Plan

2014/15

YTD Target

2014/15

YTD 

Performance

Forecast 

Outturn

Overall Status Monthly 

Trend

Reporting 

Period

Accountable Officer

 (Head of Service)

Comments

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Performance Report as at 31st December 2014

35
Timeliness of Adoptions, within 12 months of decision 

date

Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
75.0% - 80.0% 80.0% 63.2% 70.0% R Dec S Butcher

YTD Adoptions

Quarter 1 =  5

Quarter 2 =  5

Quarter 3 =  9

  

Of the 19 adoptions to date 12 were completed within timescale. During November 

3 out of 5 adoptions were completed within timescale.  There were no adoptions in 

December.  3 Children adopted by their existing carer have now been included in the 

formula.  These were previously excluded.

36 Became Looked After to Adoption Timescale in days
Local Authority 

Interactive Tool
744.0 - 547.0 547.0 547.9 480.0 G Dec S Butcher

This measure has been recalculated in August to calculate the number of days 

between the Became Looked After (BLA) date and the date of the adoption 

placement as opposed to the the days between the BLA and the adoption order. This 

is line with the adoption scorecard calculation.

9 adoptions have exceeded the target with the longest timescale being 1,336 days.

37
Percentage of on time admissions applications 

received online – F2
64.0 68.0 - - 68.0 - - - N Clarkson

Annual Indicator

38
Percentage of on time admissions applications 

received online –Year 7
58.0 62.0 - - 62.0 - - - N Clarkson

Annual Indicator

39
Proportion of people who use services who have 

control over their daily life (ASCOF 1B)

Adult Social Care 

Survey
79.9% 76.6% 80.0% - - 80.0% - - - C Beyga

Annual Indicator

40

Proportion of people using social care who receive 

self-directed support, and those receiving direct 

payments (ASCOF 1C)

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)

63.8%

Approx. as new 

measure for 

2014/15

67.6% 66.0% 65.5% 88.4% 90.0% G Dec C Beyga

The calculation of this measure has changed for 2014/15 to only include those 

people in receipt of a long term service for whom self directed support is most 

relevant. The denominator also excludes those people in residential & nursing care 

whereas previously they were included, this limits the ability to make comparisons to 

previous years.

Performance has continued to improve throughout the year which can be linked to 

the implementation of Liquid Logic as the system now enforces the need for 

individuals to have an agreed support plan. As people go through the annual review 

process performance against this measure should continue to rise.

41

Permanent admissions of younger adults (aged 18-

64) to residential and nursing care homes, per 

100,000 population (ASCOF 2Ai)

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
18.1 14.5 17.0 17.3 16.0                     17.3 G Dec C Beyga

To date there have been a total of 5 permanent admissions to nursing care and 15 to 

residential care. 

This represents a 4% reduction when compared with the same period in 2013-14.

35% of placements are for people with a learning disability, 30% physical disability, 

25% Mental Health issues and 10% for Substance/Alcohol misuse.

42

Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 and 

over) to residential and nursing care homes, per 

100,000 population (ASCOF 2Aii)

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
835.9 777.8 759.3 778.5 787.4                   787.4 G Dec C Beyga

The average number of placements per month equates to 43 against a monthly 

target of 42. When compared with the same period in 2013-14 the number of 

admissions is 10% lower.

The proportion of placements which can be linked directly back to hospital 

discharges has increased from 60% in 2013-14 to 70% in 2014-15.

43

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were 

still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital 

into reablement/rehabilitation services (ASCOF 2Bi)

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
89.4% 83.6% 85.0% 85.0% 90.7% 90.0% G Dec C Beyga

Performance has been consistently around 90% throughout 2014-15. There was an 

expectation that there may be a slight reduction in performance during 2014-15 due 

to the transition to a new provider and the increased reablement offer, however this 

hasn’t been the case as performance remains in line with 2013-14 with Wirral being 

one of the top performers in the North West.

44

Number of episodes of reablement or intermediate 

care intervention for clients aged 65 years and over, 

per 10,000 population (Links to ASCOF 2Bii)

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
311.5 354.8 390.7 364.2 402.1                   403.0 G Dec C Beyga

Performance remains above target as has been the case throughout 2014-15. 

December saw a 20% increase when compared to the average between April and 

November, this has a direct correlation with the pressures currently being 

experienced by the NHS and demonstrates how social care is helping to support the 

unprecedented pressures on the health system.

2014-15 has seen a 10% rise in the number of people being offered reablement with 

63% of all reablement packages being commissioned to support a hospital discharge.

Enhance the quality of life for people with care and support needs

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING - ADULTS

Universal and Infrastructure Services

Delay and reduce the need for care and support

+ 

+

 

+

 

-

+

 

- 

P
age 128



Appendix 2

No. Description Data Source Performance

2013/14

North West 

2013/14

Target/Plan

2014/15

YTD Target

2014/15

YTD 

Performance

Forecast 

Outturn

Overall Status Monthly 

Trend

Reporting 

Period

Accountable Officer

 (Head of Service)

Comments

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Performance Report as at 31st December 2014

45
Average monthly bed days lost due to delayed 

transfers of care per 100,000 (Better Care Fund)

NHS England 

Statistics
66.3 199.7 61.3 63.0 78.1                     76.0 R Nov J Evans

Whilst performance remains below targeted levels this is in the main due to Wirral 

having set an ambitious target for 2014/15. Wirral is currently the 3rd best 

performing authority in the North West with regards the average number of delayed 

discharges per month.

The largest proportion of lost bed days continues to be attributable to NHS delays 

predominantly related to people waiting for further non acute NHS treatment which 

includes waiting for intermediate care.

Weekend access to both intermediate care and transitional care beds has been put 

in place from December to facilitate weekend discharges. Alongside this the number 

of beds has also been increased to ensure quicker access to short stay beds.

Specific delays are highlighted via a daily teleconference so that action can be taken 

to reduce delays and address any blockages; this is attended by staff from both the 

NHS and Social Care.

46
Total number of avoidable admissions per 100.000 

population (Better Care Fund)

Local Data

(Wirral CCG)
3,059.7 2,871.6 478.6 497.0  - A May J Evans

This indicator was originally included within the directorate plan as a measure linked 

to the Better Care Fund. 

Following further evaluation of the Better Care Fund metrics it was decided by the 

Department of Health that due to issues with the identification and definition of 

avoidable admissions that this metric would no longer be reported. As a result there 

is no data available to enable any further reporting of performance against this 

measure.

47

Proportion of people who have received short term 

services to maximise independence requiring no 

ongoing support (ASCOF 2D)

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
N/A N/A 50.0% 50.0% 75.0% 75.0% G Dec C Beyga

This is a new measure introduced as part of the 2014/15 Adult Social Care Outcomes 

Framework. 

Performance has consistently exceeded the target set with:

58% of people being completely independent

13% of people require only ongoing low level support (Assistive Tech)

 2% of people require short term support

 2% of people declined further support

48
Overall satisfaction of people who use services with 

their care and support (ASCOF 3A)

Adult Social Care 

Survey
63.0% 65.8% 67.0% - - 67.0% - - - C Beyga

Annual Indicator

49
Proportion of Social Work assessments completed 

within 28 days

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
97.4% N/A 100.0% 100.0% 98.6% 98.6% G Dec C Beyga

The proportion of assessments completed within 28 days was 81% during 

September and October which is due to the implementation of Liquid Logic and the 

change in processes that workers have had to adapt to. This has been mitigated 

against by the use of 'floor walkers' who have supported staff to understand the 

new system processes. 

Performance has improved since the end of October with all assessments in 

December having been completed within timescale.

50
Overall satisfaction of carers with social services 

(ASCOF 3B)
Carers Survey

Carers survey is 

biennial - not 

completed in 

2013/14

45.4%

2012-13
46.0% - - 46.0% - - - J Evans

Annual Indicator

51
Proportion of people who use services who find it 

easy to find information about support (ASCOF 3Di)

Adult Social Care 

Survey
75.5% 75.0% 80.0% - - 80.0% - - - J Evans

Annual Indicator

52
Improving people's experience of integrated care 

(ASCOF 3E)
TBC 0.0% N/A - - - - - - - C Beyga

This is a new measure for 2014/15 taken from the Adult Social Care Outcomes 

Framework. Local Authorities were initially advised to either develop a local measure 

or to wait for further national guidance regarding a nationally agreed measure. 

However subsequent analysis of potential existing measures identified a number of 

shortcomings, particularly in their ability to reflect experience across entire journeys 

of care and sectors. As a result Local Authorities were advised in August that no 

national metric would be agreed and it was down to each Local Authority to agree a 

measure.

An intermediate care survey has been introduced this year to capture peoples 

experience of the service, a new question has recently been incorporated asking:

"Did all the different people treating and caring for you work well together to give 

the best possible care and support?".

This question will now also be included in the Adult Social Care Survey

Ensure that people have a positive experience of care and support

-

 

+

 

-

 

P
age 129



Appendix 2

No. Description Data Source Performance

2013/14

North West 

2013/14

Target/Plan

2014/15

YTD Target

2014/15

YTD 

Performance

Forecast 

Outturn

Overall Status Monthly 

Trend

Reporting 

Period

Accountable Officer

 (Head of Service)

Comments

WIRRAL COUNCIL
Families and Wellbeing and Public Health Performance Report as at 31st December 2014

53

Proportion of people who use services who say that 

those services have made them feel safe and secure 

(ASCOF 4B)

Adult Social Care 

Survey
71.7% 77.0% 80.0% - 0.0% 80.0% - - - C Beyga

Annual Indicator

54
Proportion of Safeguarding Alerts actioned within 

24hrs

Local Data

(Liquid Logic)
98.4% N/A 100.0% 100.0% 99.4% 99.5% G Dec J Evans

There have been 12 cases out of a total of 2,173 that have fallen outside of target 

and this is due to waiting for further information from either the referrer or the 

police.

There had been recording issues previously that have been addressed by the design 

of the new client information system, Liquid Logic. Social workers now have to 

complete the section on what action is required following a safeguarding alert 

before they can complete the section on confirming that action has been completed. 

All safeguarding alerts received since October have been actioned within 24 hours.

55
Proportion of completed scheduled monitoring visits 

to residential homes

Local Data

(QA Team)
100.0% N/A 100.0% 41.7% 99.1% 100.0% G Dec J Evans

110 out of 111 homes have received a monitoring visit to date during 2014-15.

73% of homes are currently rated as green under the Quality Assurance Framework, 

17% are Amber and 10% are Red.

56

Projected net expenditure for 2014-15 as a 

Proportion of the 2014-2015 net budget for Adult 

Social Services

Local Data

(Finance)
100.0% N/A 100.0% 100.0% 95.8% 100.0% A Nov G Hodkinson

Revised Budget = £74.67m

Forecast Spend = £77.35m

A potential overspend of £2.7 million remains forecast at Month 8. This is made up 

of £2.4m slippage against current year savings and £0.3m demand pressures. 

Management actions of £3.6m have been identified and are being analysed against 

new datasets from the recently implemented Adults care management system to 

provide a further update.

57

Proportion of care packages able to commence within 

24 hours of initial contact with agency (Better Care 

Fund)

Local Data

(CAT Team)
12.5% N/A 95.0% 95.0% 94.1% 95.0% G Dec J Evans

Data collated by the Care Arranging Team indicates that the availability of providers 

to commence packages within 24 hours remains within targeted levels.

Performance is improving

Lower is better G

A

R

Safeguard adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting them from harm

Transform the business to be as efficient and effective as possible

Performance sustained 

in line with targets set

Performance within tolerance for target set.

Performance is deteriorating

Lower is better

Performance target slightly missed (outside of tolerance).
Performance is improving

Higher is better
Performance not on track, action plan required.

Performance is deteriorating

Higher is better

- 

- 

+ 

+ 

- 

+

 

P
age 130



Appendix 2 

PERFORMANCE ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
This template is to be completed for ALL measures showing RED status of non-compliance against the 
specified target reported. 

 
INDICATOR OVERVIEW 

Indicator Title 
 

NHS Health Checks: Take up of the NHS Health check programme by 
those eligible  

Strategic Director Lead 
 

Fiona Johnstone,  
Director of Public Health  

Departmental Lead 
 

Julie Webster 
Head of Public Health 

Target 
 

50% take up by those people offered a health check  

 

CURRENT SITUATION:  Detail what the performance is for this measure and reason/s for non-
compliance 

Performance this Period 
 

30.0% 
 

+ / - Target : -20.0% YTD  

Non-compliance reason 
 
 

 Individual practices have the flexibility to schedule their 
Health Check appointments through the year in a way that 
best suits their work profile.  Many practices have initially 
sent out a large volume of invites to patients and are now 
arranging for patients to have their actual appointments. This 
inevitably has an impact on quarterly figures. 

 

 This programme is effectively competing with the Quality 
Outcomes Framework (QoF) and 2 major Local Enhanced 
Service (LES) contracts; ‘Over-75s’ and ‘Admissions 
avoidance’. These are all far more financially attractive to 
practices and are of higher priority.  

 

 There are ongoing issues with data collection. Despite now 
being in the 2nd year of operation, we are still uncovering 
basic yet significant errors (eg practice nurses using the 
wrong clinical template, hence activity data not coming 
through). 

 
Please note the take-up rate in Wirral for 13-14 was 53.09% compared 
to national figure of 49%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



Appendix 2 

 
 

ACTIONS:  This describes what’s necessary or how to achieve a ‘green’ score. This way everyone is clear 
on what is required and when; knows the expected outcome and how to achieve it . 

What (is required) 
 
 
 

 A close review of data and processes with associated support 
to poorly performing practices.    
 

 Promoting GP health checks within practices and in 
community settings. 
 

 Explore feasibility of using Point of Care Testing (POCT) that will 
enable patients to receive relevant tests and receive immediate 
results at the practice. Evidence from other programmes has 
shown a positive impact.  

How (will it be achieved) 
 
 
 

 Public Health will continue to work with those GP practices 
that are significantly underperforming to improve the uptake 
rates. Factors to be addressed include inaccurate coding and 
reinforcing the invitation process.   
 

 Training sessions to support healthcare professionals in 
undertaking NHS health checks will be repeated early in the 
new year.  
 

 Promotional materials are currently being developed (video 
and posters) for GP practices to use in their patient waiting 
areas to promote NHS health checks. These materials will 
also be used to promote the programme in a range of 
community settings. 
 

 A pilot study is planned to test out the impact of using Point 
of Care Testing (POCT) in each practice, which would allow 
for a range of test to be carried out as part of the one 
consultation. At present, patients sometimes have to attend 
repeat appointments for various tests at various locations, 
which can result in non-attendance or follow-up.  

 

Who (will be responsible) 
 

Jane Harvey  

When (will results be realised) 
 
 

The next data return is 31st January 2015 for Q3 data (1st October – 31st 
December 2014).  However, it is predicted that the Christmas period 
will have an inevitable impact on Health Checks uptake. In the 
knowledge that many patent swill not attend for this type of 
appointment at this time of year, practices will not schedule many 
appointments.  We are therefore predicting another 
underperformance in Q3 with a significant upsurge in activity for Q4.  

 

 

Page 132



Appendix 3 

PERFORMANCE ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
This template is to be completed for ALL measures showing RED status of non-compliance against the 
specified target reported. 

 
INDICATOR OVERVIEW 

Indicator Title 
 

Smoking quitters (4 weeks) 
 

Strategic Director Lead 
 

Policy, Performance & Public Health 

Departmental Lead 
 

Julie Webster, Head of Public Health 

Target 
 

1900 

 

CURRENT SITUATION:  Detail what the performance is for this measure and reason/s for non-
compliance 

Performance this Period 
 
 

617 Wirral Wide April target is 993 
 

Non-compliance reason 
 
 

The underperformance of this target is attributed to Wirral NHS 
Community Trust’s under performance. The service has experienced a 
45% drop in attendance; a mitigating action plan has been 
implemented by Wirral NHS Community Trust. 
 
This fall in attendance at services is being seen across the region. The 
increased use of e-cigs is thought to be a significant cause behind this 
with insight work to date suggesting that more people are choosing to 
use them to either try to quit on their own, or as a harm reduction 
step. 

 

ACTIONS:  This describes what’s necessary or how to achieve a ‘green’ score. This way everyone is clear 
on what is required and when; knows the expected outcome and how to achieve it. 

What (is required) 
 

Increase in Quit Dates Set* (*Quit Date is the date on which a smoker 
plans to stop altogether with support from a stop smoking adviser as 
part of an NHS  assisted quit attempt). 
 
An increase in 4 week quitters** (**Four-week quitter is a smoker 
whose quit status is smoke free at four weeks from their quit date.  
Follow up must occur 25 to 42 days from the quit date) 
 

How (will it be achieved) 
 
 
 

Actions taken by Wirral Community NHS Trust include targeted work 
with GP practices to increase referrals; training of dental staff to refer 
to the service; insight work with local people and health professionals 
to understand local behaviour re stopping smoking; the promotion of 
Stoptober.  Further work is required to understand the self-care 
agenda and the "Livewell" team has facilitated consultation with local 
people relating to e cigarette use, focusing on knowledge, perceptions, 
purchasing behaviours and use.  It is intended that this learning will 
inform further service development, including proposals for a cut down 

Page 133



Appendix 3 

to quit (harm reduction) pilot, which will work with those smokers 
struggling to quit straight away.     
 
The performance of this target will also be raised in the monthly SLA 
meeting with Wirral Community NHS Trust. Continued under 
performance will be subject to standard contractual mechanisms. 
 
This will be reported back to commissioner on a monthly basis.  
 

Who (will be responsible) 
 

Rebecca Mellor, Public Health 
 

When (will results be realised) Quarter 3 

 

 

Page 134



Appendix 4 

PERFORMANCE ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
This template is to be completed for ALL measures showing RED status of non-compliance against the 
specified target reported. 

 
INDICATOR OVERVIEW 

Indicator Title 
 

Proportion of opiate users that left drug treatment successfully who do 
not represent to treatment within 6 months 

Strategic Director Lead 
 

Fiona Johnstone,  
(Director of Public Health ) 

Departmental Lead 
 

Julie Webster 
(Head of Public Health) 

Target 
 

10% 

 

CURRENT SITUATION:  Detail what the performance is for this measure and reason/s for non-
compliance 

Performance this Period 7.91% (December 2014) 
(Covering the service delivery 
period April 2013-March 2014) 
The NDTMS database from which 
this performance data is drawn is 
currently out of commission 
while work is undertaken be 
Public Health England to update 
it.  While this is going on new 
performance data on this 
indicator will not be available. It 
is not expected to be back on line 
until the end of January 2015.  

+ / - Target : - 0.5% 

Non-compliance reason 
 
 

The profile of the in treatment population is as follows: 

 46% of those in treatment have been in treatment for at least 
6 years (Cluster average 23%). 

 50% of those in treatment have a drug using career of over 21 
years (Cluster average 21%). 

 53% of those in treatment were in their first treatment episode 
(Cluster average 36%). 

This data illustrates that a high percentage of those in treatment 

entered the treatment system 15 to 20 years ago and have never left.  

The Public Health England report, “Drug Treatment in England, 
2012/13”, highlighted that drug treatment was still seen to be working 
but added that, “The treatment population is ageing, with the over 
40’s now being the largest group receiving treatment. Many are older 
heroin users who have failing health and entrenched addiction 
problems. This group is particularly hard to help into lasting recovery. 
The impact is beginning to show in the proportion of people 
successfully completing treatment, which levelled off in 2012-13 
following an increasing trend over the previous 7 years.”  
 

Page 135



Appendix 4 

This issue is particularly pronounced with our in treatment population, 
as evidenced above. 
 
Over the past 6 years, there have been over 1,600 completed 
treatment journeys. Although some of these have been followed by 
relapse, this does represent considerable movement of service users’ 
thorough treatment. One effect of this is that those who haven’t 
already achieved recovery, or at least engaged with the process, are 
those that are less able/equipped/inclined to move on. This group, 
which represents a growing proportion of those still in the treatment 
services, present an increasingly difficult challenge to services.    

 

ACTIONS: This describes what’s necessary or how to achieve a ‘green’ score. This way everyone is clear 
on what is required and when, knows the expected outcome and how to achieve it . 

What (is required) 
 
 
 

 A refreshed approach to delivering the recovery message to 
service users that brings new energy and motivation for change.  

 Greater integration through the treatment and recovery system, 
from access and entry, through the stabilisation and harm 
reduction interventions, through to recovery instigation and 
support. 

 Peer support needs to be fully factored into the treatment and 
recovery system. 

 Data reporting needs to be consistently comprehensive and 
accurately following the service user through the system to 
ensure performance is accurately reported. 

How (will it be achieved) 
 
 
 

 Re-tendering process has been undertaken to invite all potential 
service providers to put forward a redesigned and refreshed 
integrated model of treatment and recovery for Wirral.  

 This process has now been completed. A new partnership, led by 
CRI, has won the contract and is currently working with outgoing 
providers to manage a smooth and safe transition, and mobilise 
the new contract for 1st February 2015. 

 The under-performance for this target will continue to be a high 
priority with the new Provider(s), after 1st Feb, but in the 
meantime will remain an issue raised with the outgoing provider. 

 As part of contract meeting requirements, regular monitoring of 
performance data to drive high performance, and ensure data 
accuracy, will continue. The new partnership is introducing one 
data base across the whole system. This offers potential for 
improved, more efficient, performance reporting along the 
treatment and recovery pathway. 

 System meetings to improve communication, integration and co-
operation will continue within the new partnership model. These 
will focus on improving the overall effectiveness and efficiency of 
the system.  

 The current provider will continue to implement action plans as 
previously agreed and designed and delivered to improve 
performance and deliver the targets (e.g. remedial actions plans 
developed by Cheshire and Wirral Partnership in response to the 
initiation of a number of contract queries as part of the SLA 
monitoring process). 

Page 136



Appendix 4 

 

Who (will be responsible) 
 
 
 

Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust as the biggest 
current contributor to the target will continue to be responsible for 
delivering this performance until 31st January 2015. From 1st February 
this responsibility will pass to CRI as the lead provider in the new 
partnership.  

When (will results be realised) 
 
 
 
 

The performance in terms of treatment completions has improved 
over the past 3 months but the impact of this improved performance 
will not register on this indicator for 6 months and therefore it will not 
be on target by the end of the contract (31st January). Some disruption 
to service delivery can be expected in the first 3 months of the new 
contract, due to transitional disruption, but the expectation is that a 
steady improvement in performance begins to appear in the second 
quarter of the new financial year.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 5 

PERFORMANCE ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
This template is to be completed for ALL measures showing RED status of non-compliance against the 
specified target reported. 

 
INDICATOR OVERVIEW 

Indicator Title 
 

Timeliness of Adoptions, within 12 months of decision date 

Strategic Director Lead 
 

Clare Fish 

Departmental Lead 
 

S Butcher 

Target 
 

80% (December 2014) / 80% (March 2015) 

 

CURRENT SITUATION:  Detail what the performance is for this measure and reason/s for non-
compliance 

Performance this Period 63.2% + / - Target: -16.8% 

Non-compliance reason 
 
 

Of the 19 adoptions completed during 2014-15 to date, a total of 12 
have been placed within 12 months of the decision date.  
 
There were no adoptions during December.  
 
The number of adoptions now includes three children who were 
adopted by their existing carer. 
 

ACTIONS:  This describes what’s necessary or how to achieve a ‘green’ score. This way everyone is clear 
on what is required and when; knows the expected outcome and how to achieve it. 

What (is required) 
 
 
 

An exercise is needed to scope the number of adoptions that it is 
possible to achieve before 31st March 2015.  
 
Scoping will need to continue into 2015/16 to ensure that 
performance is optimised.  

How (will it be achieved) 
 
 
 

Managers in the districts will be mandated to individual scrutinise case 
work with children who have a plan for adoption to minimise drift and 
delay.  
 
Managers will make timely responses to requests for information to 
input into the departmental adoption tracker so that it can effectively 
inform strategic decision making. 
 
Contact will be made with the court to ensure that hearing dates are 
set as early as possible.   

Who (will be responsible) 
 
 

Sue Butcher Head of Specialist Services (interim) 

When (will results be realised) 
 

An improvement in this indicator is expected by March 2015.  

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6 

PERFORMANCE ACTION PLAN TEMPLATE 
This template is to be completed for ALL measures showing RED status of non-compliance against the 
specified target reported. 

 
INDICATOR OVERVIEW 

Indicator Title Average monthly lost bed days due to delayed transfers of care per 
100,000 

Strategic Director Lead Claire Fish 

Departmental Lead Jacqui Evans 

Target 63.0 (Nov ’14) / 61.3 (Mar ’15)  

  

CURRENT SITUATION:  Detail what the performance is for this measure and reason/s for non-
compliance 

Performance this Period 78.1 + / - Target: +15.1 (+24.0%) 

Non-compliance reason 
 
 

Whilst performance remains below targeted levels this is in the 
main due to Wirral having set an ambitious target for 2014/15. 
Wirral is currently the 3rd best performing authority in the North 
West with regards the average number of delayed discharges per 
month. 
 
All areas across the North West are currently under significant 
pressure. 
 
Comparing the total lost bed days between Apr and Oct 2013-14 
to the total for the same period in 2014-15 shows a 26.8% 
increase. 
 
The increased trajectory is predominantly due to delays 
attributable solely to the NHS. Of the total lost beds days in 14-
15; 56% are attributable solely to the NHS, the same period in 
2013-14 was 36%.  
 
Further analysis of the data indicates the primary reason for NHS 
delays is due to patients awaiting further non-acute treatment 
which will include intermediate care and transitional care beds. 
 
Full seven day working has not yet been successfully 
implemented due to several factors including HR issues, 
recruitment delays and consultation on new job descriptions. 

ACTIONS:  This describes what’s necessary or how to achieve a ‘green’ score. This way everyone is 
clear on what is required and when; knows the expected outcome and how to achieve it. 

What (is required) 
 
 
 

In order to achieve a RAG rating of ‘green’ by March 2015 the 
average number of lost bed days per month would need to be 
below 100 between December and March, the average so far in 
2014-15 has been 198. 

How (will it be achieved) 
 
 
 

Weekend access to both intermediate care and transitional care 
beds has been put in place from December to facilitate weekend 
discharges. Alongside this the number of beds has also been 
increased by 22 to ensure quicker access to short stay beds. Daily 
monitoring of capacity is also in place. 

Page 141



Appendix 6 

 
Intermediate Care pathway redesign work has been recently 
completed with new simplified pathways and processes set to be 
briefed to staff by the end of January. 
 
It is envisaged that full implementation of seven day working will 
be achieved by April 2015 for priority teams such as Integrated 
Discharge Team, Care Arranging Team and Intermediate Care. 7 
day working in Integrated Care Co-Ordination teams will be 
achieved by September 2015. 
 
Specific delays are highlighted via a daily teleconference so that 
action can be taken to reduce delays and address any blockages; 
this is attended by staff from both the NHS and Social Care. 
 
Identification of a home of choice can sometimes be a 
contributing factor to lost bed days, to mitigate against this there 
has been some specific work carried out with staff to support 
families to reduce the time spent looking for their home of 
choice. 
 
Wirral University Teaching Hospital is also looking to embed daily 
board rounds to ensure the discharge process can start as early as 
possible. 

Who (will be responsible) 
 

Jacqui Evans (Head of Service – Transformation) 
Sarah Quinn (Commissioning Manager – Wirral CCG) 

When (will results be realised) 
 
 
 
 

The introduction of weekend access to intermediate care and 
transitional care should have an immediate impact on the 
number of lost bed days. 
 
The biggest impact will be seen once full seven day working has 
been implemented which is expected to be staggered between 
April and September 15. 

 

Page 142



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 
2 FEBRUARY 2015 
 
SUBJECT Financial Monitoring 2014/15 

Month 8 (November 2014) 
WARD/S AFFECTED ALL 
REPORT OF ACTING SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the financial monitoring information for this Committee in 

a format consistent across the Policy and Performance Committees. The 
report aims to give Members sufficient detail to scrutinise budget performance 
for the Directorate. Financial information for Month 8 (November 2014) which 
was reported to Cabinet on 15 January is included. 

 
2 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
2.1 Members of the Policy and Performance Committees have previously 

requested that financial monitoring information is provided as a standard item 
at each Committee. 

 
2.2 Since September 2012 monthly revenue and capital monitoring reports have 

been submitted to Cabinet as a means of providing regular, detailed updates 
on budget performance. 

 
2.3 The Coordinating Committee has agreed that in order to fulfil its corporate and 

strategic scrutiny role, it will continue to review the full versions of the most up 
to date monitor reports at its future scheduled meetings. 

 
3 REPORTING TO POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEES 
 
3.1 The relevant sections from the most recent revenue and capital monitoring 

reports reported to Cabinet are summarised into a bespoke report for each   
Policy and Performance Committee.  This will include the following: 

 
• Performance against revenue budget 
• Performance against in year efficiency targets 
• Performance against capital budget 

 
3.2 The following sections have been extracted from the Financial Monitoring 

reports presented to Cabinet on 15 January 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143

Agenda Item 14



 

 

PERFORMANCE AGAINST REVENUE BUDGETS MONTH 8 (NOVEMBER 
2014) 

 
3.3 CHANGES TO THE AGREED BUDGET 
 
3.3.1 2014/15 Original & Revised Net Budget £000’s 
 

Original 
Net 

Budget

Approved 
Budget 
Changes 
Prior Mths 

Approved 
Budget 
Changes 
Month 8

Revised 
Net 

Budget

FWB - Adult Social Services 74,667 -55 - 74,612
FWB – Children & YP,Schools  & 
Safeguarding

82,877 -87 - 82,790

FWB - Sport & Recreation 8,502 - - 8,502
Net Cost of Services 166,046 -142 0 165,904  
There were no budget changes in month 8  which impact upon the directorate. 

 
3.4 VARIATIONS 
 
3.4.1 The report will use RAGBY ratings that will highlight under and overspends 

and place them into ‘risk bands’.  The ‘risk band’ classification is: 
• Extreme:   Overspends - Red (over +£301k), Underspend Yellow (over -

£301k) 
• Acceptable:  Amber (+£141k to +£300k), Green (range from +£140k to -

£140k); Blue (-£141k to -£300k) 
 
3.4.2 2014/15 Projected Budget variations £000’s 
 

(Under) 
Overspend
Month 8

FWB - Adult Social Services 74,612 77,329 2,717 R -
FWB – Children & YP,Schools  & 
Safeguarding

82,790 83,120 330 R -222

FWB - Sport & Recreation 8,502 8,639 137 G 48
TOTAL 165,904 169,088 3,184 -174

Change 
from prev 
mnth

Directorates Revisd 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

RAGBY 
Classifica

tion

 
3.4.3 Directorate Updates 

 
Families and Wellbeing: Adults 

 
3.4.4 A potential overspend of £2.7 million is forecast at Month 8.  This is made up 

of £2.4 million slippage against current year savings and £0.3 million demand 
pressures.  The level of management actions required to contain budget 
issues have reduced by £0.6 million to £3.0 million. Following implementation 
of the new care management system, financial data has been transferred and 
an in year reconciliation between old and new systems undertaken which will 
provide information to monitor future progress. 

 
3.4.5 Day Services are likely to only achieve in year £370,000 of the £750,000 

2014/15 saving, due to part year impact of implementation, with the balance 
slipping into 2015/16. The full saving will be made from 1 April 2015 when the 

Page 144



 

 

new service commences. 
 
3.4.6 Targeting support through NHS contracts and targeting Council resources are 

large 2014/15 savings options.  The review of current cases remains 
challenging, however revised processes and tightened procedures are now in 
place for all new packages and current packages are being picked up through 
the review process. 

 
3.4.7 Demand for Adult Social Care continues to increase and the mix of services 

provided to individuals continues to vary as a consequence.  These changes 
together with the outcome of case reviews impact on the forecasted spend 
across care areas.  At this stage there remains a £300,000 projected 
overspend. 

 
3.4.8 The review of Continuing Health Care Appeals has required liaison.  Whilst a 

number of hurdles have now been cleared the NHS project includes a lengthy 
10 stage process.  This is taking longer than initially envisaged delaying the 
achievement of the £500,000 saving. 

 
3.4.9 A number of the savings are linked to increased income, the main item being 

the income from the domiciliary care block contracts.  The £250,000 target is 
viewed as achievable but the full target is unlikely to be reached until 2015/16. 

 
3.4.10 Management actions include:- 

• The assessment and review of cases is key and a Business Case is 
being prepared about the potential recruitment of additional temporary 
support in order to progress the reviews. 

• For the high cost placements an additional review is being undertaken 
by the Head of Service and Director. 

• A Transformation Group supported by colleagues from other 
Directorates is monitoring progress has given greater focus to ensure 
that scarce resources are targeted towards achieving the savings. 

• Review of other departmental budgets to ascertain if any efficiencies 
can be identified to mitigate against the projected overspend being 
forecast. This includes the use of the monies set-aside as a result of 
the early delivery of savings achieved in 2013/14. 

 Families and Wellbeing: Children’s 

3.4.11  There has been an improvement to the position with the projected overspend 
reducing from £552,000 to £330,000. This reduction is primarily due to the 
reduction in placements for Looked After Children. Pressures continue within 
this area along with the costs of agency staff and within the transport budget 
all of which are being closely managed.   

 
3.4.12 As previously reported the savings attributed to changes in the Day Nursery 

provision have slipped. This will be compensated for from savings within the 

Page 145



 

 

service and use of the early learning reserve. 
 
3.4.13 A number of management actions are being taken with regards to controlling 

he overspend these are - 

• Restructures across the department are being implemented and are 
closely managed to minimise the impact on services and staff, whilst 
keeping slippage on savings targets as low as possible. 

• There is a rolling programme of recruitment to Social Work positions.  
Agency costs and placements are reviewed on a monthly basis. 

• Residential Care placements are by a multi-agency panel and no 
decision is made below head of service. Progress and packages of 
care are closely monitored by the Head of Service in monthly traffic 
light meetings to ensure that decisions are implemented and overall 
costs for children entering and leaving care are clearly understood. 

• Budget progress is reported and reviewed monthly at DMT with 
opportunities to maximise grant and external funding are constantly 
reviewed. 

3.4.14 Sport & Recreation: An adverse variance of £137,000 is currently forecast 
which is attributable to elements of the transformation programme taking 
longer to deliver than was originally anticipated 

3.4.15 RAGBY full details 
 

Department Red Amber Green Blue Yellow
Adult Social Services 2 1 0 1 0 0
Children & Young People, & Schools 5 2 0 1 0 2
Safeguarding 1 0 0 1 0 0
Sports & Rec 1 0 0 1 0 0
Total 9 3 0 4 0 2

Number of 
Budget 
Areas

 
 

3.4.16 Three business areas are currently flagged as red rated. They relate to: 
 

• Delivery within Families and Wellbeing (Adult Social Services). This 
relates mainly to the delivery of some 2014/15 savings for which 
management actions are as outlined earlier in the report. 

• Integrated Transport Unit within Families and Wellbeing (Childrens). 
Overall against the £556,000 target for both the Childrens (£306,000) 
and Adults (£250.000) provision there is £90,000 shown as being 
achieved.  There is £104,000 of travel grant monies brought forward 
that will help to offset the savings target leaving a potential shortfall of 
£362,000.  The overspend is also attributable to the Depot savings 
target of £100,000 which has only been partially met by the relocation 
of the Reeds Lane Depot and the lease of the Salt Barn. 

Page 146



 

 

• Specialist Services within Families and Wellbeing (Childrens). The 
main reasons for the projected overspend remains to be in relation to 
the cost of agency staff (currently 37 in Fieldwork) exceeding the 
established employee budget however there are contributions from 
reserves helping to reduce the impact.  The forecast for Residential 
placements exceeds the available budget by £0.6 million with 44 in 
residential and 22 in semi-independent placements compared to 45 
and 34 at the start of the financial year respectively.  Fostering is £0.6 
million over budget with 37 in non-local authority placements compared 
to 34 at the start of the year. 
 

3.4.17 Two business areas are currently flagged as yellow rated. They relate to: 
 

• Targeted Services within Families and Wellbeing (Childrens). There are 
reduced budgetary pressures within Youth & Play and, although New 
Brighton Day Nursery has transferred, the remaining 5 nurseries are 
subject to ongoing discussions.  The additional costs to the end of 
March have been offset by a reserve and vacancies. 

• Universal Services within Families and Wellbeing (Childrens) - Vacant 
posts within Admin contribute largely towards the under spend together 
with a projected £150,000 under spend against the 
redundancy/severance budget relating to teachers. 

 
3.5 IMPLEMENTATION OF 2014/15 SAVINGS 
 
3.5.1 Budget Implementation Plan 2014/15 £000’s 

BRAG Number of 
savings 
Options 

Approved Budget 
Reduction 

Amount 
Delivered 
at November 

Still to be 
Delivered 

B - delivered 31 6,077 6,077 0 
G – on track 14 3,428 540 2,888 
A - concerns 18 7,776 1,068 6,708 
R - high risk/ not 

achieved 
3 1,106 90 1,016 

Total at M8 Nov 66 18,387 7,775 10,612 

 
3.5.2 The Red rated options relates to the following: 

 
• Continuing Health Care Appeals – This is an NHS led project involving a 

number of separate stages. This has taken longer than envisaged which 
has impacted on the timing of the delivery of the saving in 2014/15. 

• External Funding Expertise - Post on hold subject to review. Mitigation 
will be required for this £50,000 saving. 

• Transport Policies - £306,000 to be delivered through new transport 
CYPD policies and £250,000 for DASS.  Contracts have been re-tendered 
and routes updated.  Although there has been some reduction in numbers 
of children and adults receiving transport this has not met the agreed 
target to date.  This area continues to be closely monitored. 

 
A number of other options are rated as amber and are being closely 

Page 147



 

 

monitored during the year. 
 
3.6 PERFORMANCE AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGETS MONTH 8 (NOV 2014) 
 
3.6.1 Table 1: Capital Budget 
 

 Capital 
Strategy 

Changes 
approved 
by Cabinet  

Changes  
not yet 
approved/
noted 

Revised 
Capital 
Programme 

Actual 
Spend 
Nov 2014 

Universal & Infrastructure 5,827 -2,490 0 3,337 1,379 
Families & Wellbeing – 

Children 
10,998 -688 0 10,310 5,200 

Families & Wellbeing – 
Adults 

3,611 -38 0 3,573 1,018 

Families & Wellbeing – 
Sport & Recreation 

1,000 1,157 0 2,157 564 

Total expenditure 21,436 -2,059 0 19,377 8,161 
 
 
Universal and Infrastructure Services 

 
3.6.2  The roofing scheme at West Kirby Concourse is 100% complete, cost 

£344,000. 
 

3.6.3  Phase 1 & 2 of Electrical Infrastructure and refurbishments works at Cheshire 
Lines are complete.  Phases 3 is complete and 4 will be completed by March 
2015 at an estimated cost of £0.250 million. This will enable Birkenhead 
Municipal Building to be demolished and staff relocated to Cheshire Lines. 

 
3.6.4  Works to Birkenhead Town Hall are complete and Acre Lane staff have now 

been relocated. 
 

3.6.5 The full refurbishment tender for Wallasey Town Hall North Annexe will be 
loaded onto the Procurement Portal (The CHEST) by the end of December. 

 
3.6.6  Cleveland Street Transport Depot, works are underway refurbishing existing 

buildings to allow a phased move from various Parks Depots that will reduce 
revenue implications and/or produce a capital receipt. 

 
3.6.7  Work in respect of a New Salt Barn facility at the Cleveland Street site is 

approximately 85% complete. 
 
3.6.8  Construction of the new build for Arrowe Park changing pavilion Commenced 

in November. 
 
3.6.9 The schemes to demolish Bebington Town Hall and Liscard Municipal 

Building are on temporary hold. 
 

Page 148



 

 

3.6.10  Stanley School demolition on site with an estimated contract duration of 10 
weeks (tender price £171,000). Work to the playing field cannot be completed 
until April/May 2015. 

 
3.6.11  Planning permission has been granted for the demolition of Rock Ferry High 

School but awaiting Secretary of State Approval before proceeding to tender. 
Approval is also awaited before the demolition of former Foxfield facility can 
commence. 

 
3.6.12 The demolition of Moreton Adult Unit and Fernleigh has been completed. 
 
3.6.13  Cabinet 13 March 2014 agreed that the Council enters into a Deed of 

Surrender of land included in the present agricultural tenancy at New Hall 
Farm, Hoylake, which is required for the proposed Hoylake Golf Resort. 
Compensation to the current lessee was agreed from the Capital Programme 
with a capital receipt being generated from the future disposal of this land. 

 
   Children and Young People 

 
3.6.14  Good progress is being made by the in-house Asset Management and Design 

Teams on major projects included in the Programme. There are 2 large 
contracts (over £500,000) on site in addition to a range of smaller value 
projects and 15 large projects where detailed design work is taking place; 
these are at various stages of the design/conception phases. 

 
3.6.15  Universal Infants Free School Meals. The Government initiative will result in 

an expected increase of 7,000 pupil meals per day. Some kitchens required 
extensive building work to meet capacity increase others new heavy 
equipment. Continuation of capital investment was required to meet the 
increased meal numbers, to ensure that safety legislation is met and to 
replace old kitchen equipment. This being met from the grant of £624,000. 

 
3.6.16  The tenders for the redevelopment works to Elleray Special School were 

returned in early December with the scheme then to commence and carry 
over in 2015/16. 

 
3.6.17  Priority School Building Programme (PSBP). The first scheme to rebuild 

Foxfield Special School is on-site and construction is progressing quickly. The 
anticipated date for completion is February 2015. Ridgeway High School and 
Bedford Drive School are also included in PSBP (1) but will follow a Private 
Finance Initiative route and the projects are progressing. PSBP (2). Wirral 
submitted three bids as follows; Pensby High for Girls, Pensby High for Boys - 
refurbishment & re-design and Riverside Primary bid to re-build new school. 
An announcement of the successful bids is now expected in Spring 2015. 

 
3.6.18 School Basic Need and Sufficiency Requirements 

 
 Fender Primary School has been identified for use of the Basic Need 
allocation to meet the increase in pupils in the Woodchurch area. However, 
The Council Capital contributions of £750,000 in 2014/15 and the indicative 

Page 149



 

 

allocations for Basic Need in 2015/16 and 2016/17 which are in the region of 
£3 million have not been allocated. Further discussions are required with 
curriculum leaders, pupil admissions, schools forum etc to agree the 
programme for increasing pupil numbers in selected schools. Further reports 
to Cabinet will follow. 

 
3.6.19 Phase 1 of the Somerville Mobile Replacement scheme has been completed 

(approx £0.7 million in total). Phase 2 has been completed (estimated £0.2 
million) with the final phase starting in September (£0.85 million). 

 
3.6.20  A new charitable organisation is being created to manage the construction of 

the Youth Zone. Once formally established the Council contribution to the £6 
million scheme will be paid. 

 
3.6.21  School remodelling – a number of schemes have now been identified. Given 

that these will need approval and feasibility studies it is anticipated that £1.1 
million will now be required in 2015/16 as opposed to the current year. 

 
3.6.22 Vehicle procurement – 2 gritters have been purchased and a car for 

transporting pupils to and from Oaklands has been ordered. 
 

 
Adults 

 
3.6.23 The Integrated I.T. scheme (Liquidlogic) went live during September 2014. 

 
3.6.24  Next phase of the Liquidlogic project will see the procurement and 

implementation of the additional modules relating to the citizen and provider 
portals. Implementation will support the delivery of some Care Act duties from 
April 2015. 

 
3.6.26  Transformation of Day Services is ongoing and now moving into the 

implementation stage with work expected to be completed by the year end. 
 
  Sport and Recreation 
 

3.6.27  All projects are now underway at Guinea Gap with completion estimated for 
January 2015. Works at West Kirby are commenced late October with 
completion anticipated in April 2015. 

 
3.6.28 The work on the 3G football pitches at Guinea Gap commenced on 30 July. 

Tender cost is £204,000 with a completion date of December. 
 

4 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
4.1 There are none relating to this report. 
 
5 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 Any option to improve the monitoring and budget accuracy will be considered. 

Page 150



 

 

6 CONSULTATION 
 
6.1 No consultation has been carried out in relation to this report. 
 
7.0 OUTSTANDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ACTIONS  

7.1   There is an ongoing requirement to identify during the financial year 
necessary actions to mitigate any forecast overspend. 

 
8 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 
 
8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
9 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL, IT, STAFFING AND ASSETS 
 
9.1 In respect of the Revenue Budget the Families and Wellbeing Directorate is 

projecting a £3.2m over spend as at the 30 November 2014. 
 
10 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
11 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The report is for information and there are no direct equalities implications at 

this stage. 
 
12 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
13 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
14 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 Members are requested to review the information presented to determine if 

they have any specific questions relating to the budget for the Families and 
Wellbeing Directorate. 

 
15 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15.1 To ensure Members have the appropriate information to review the budget 

performance of the directorate. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Peter Molyneux 
Telephone   (0151) 666 3389 
E-mail    petemolyneux@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 

Page 151



 

 

Extracted from the Capital Monitoring report to Cabinet on 15 January 2015:- 
Annex 1 Revised Capital Programme and Funding 2014/15 and Programme 

2015/16 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY 
 
Council Meeting  Date 
Monthly financial monitoring reports for Revenue and 
Capital have been presented to Cabinet since 
September 2012. 

 

Page 152



 

 

 

Annex 1 Revised Capital Programme 
 

 Revised    Council  Revenue/     
 Programme Actual  Resources Grants Reserves Total  Programme  
 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000  2015/16  
Universal and Infrastructure Services           
Building refurbishment to increase 
occupancy 660 355  660   660  2,262 Start Up/Delivery 

Wallasey Town Hall 68 0  68   68   Completion 
Strategic Asset Review 96 164  96   96   Completion 
Fund to assist land assembly and re-sale 200 121  200   200  736 Conception/Start  

Cleveland St Transport Depot 450 175  450   450  3,050 Start 
Park depot rationalisation 710 40  710   710  600 Conception 

Energy efficiency Initiatives 500   500   500  500 Conception 
Structural/Roofing works - West Kirby 
Concourse 344 313  344   344   Completion 
Arrowe Park Changing pavilion 144 106  144   144   Start  Up 
Demolish Stanley Special & External 
Renovation Work 160 100  160   160  115 Start/Completion 
Demolish Bebington Town Hall and Liscard 
Municipal 0   0   0  378 Conception 
Demolish former Rock Ferry High 5 5  5   5  395 Conception 
Demolish Foxfield 0   0   0  120 Conception 

  3,337 1,379  3,337 0 0 3,337  8,456  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 153



 

 

  Revised    Council  Revenue/     
  Programme Actual  Resources Grants Reserves Total  Programme  
  £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000  2015/16  
Families and Wellbeing - CYP           
Elleray Park Special School redevelopment 100 9  100   100  900 Conception 
School remodelling/additional classrooms 236 153  0 236  236  1,850 Conception 
Children's centres  106 18   106  106  100 Approval 
Aiming Higher for Disabled Children 90 63   90  90   StartUp/Delivery 
Youth Capital 149   98 51  149   Approval 
Birkenhead High Girls Academy  472 390   403 69 472   Delivery 
Vehicle Procurement  123 106    123 123  17 Delivery 
Condition/Modernisation 3,590 2,220   3,590  3,590  4,500 Delivery/Completion 
Basic Need 100    100  100   Conception 
Family Support Scheme 155 1  155   155  100 Approval 
Private Finance Imitative  0     0 0  150 Conception 
Wirral Youth Zone 2,085 55  2,085   2,085   Approval 
Funding for 2 year olds 130 51   130  130   Delivery 
Foxfield contribution to priority school 1,000 1,000  500 500  1,000   Completion 
Somerville Primary School 1,350 611  600 750  1,350   Delivery/Completion 
Universal Free School Meals 624 523   624  624   Delivery/Completion 

  10,310 5,200  3,538 6,580 192 10,310  7,617  
Families and Wellbeing - DASS           
Citizen and Provider Portal for Social and 
Health Services 450    450  450  167 Conception 
Transformation of Day Service  1,250 114   1,250  1,250   Conception 
Integrated IT 1,873 904  1,000 873  1,873   Delivery 
Extra Care Housing 0      0  1,500 Conception 
LD extra care housing 0      0  1,396 Conception 
  3,573 1,018  1,000 2,573 0 3,573  3,063  

 
  

 

 

P
age 154



 

 

Families and Wellbeing - Sports & 
Recreation           
West Kirby/Guinea Gap/Europa 1,800 420  1,800   1,800  1,200 Delivery 
Guinea Gap 3G Football pitches 245 144  245   245   Delivery 
West Kirby Concourse Fitness Suite 112   112   112   Conception 

  2,157 564  2,157 0 0 2,157  1,200  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

FAMILIES AND WELLBEING POLICY & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

2ND FEBRUARY 2015 

SUBJECT: COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT OF: THE CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report updates Members on progress towards delivering the work programme for 
the Families and Wellbeing Policy & Performance Committee.  

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 
2.1 The Families and Wellbeing Policy & Performance Committee is responsible for 

proposing and delivering an annual work programme. This work programme should 
align with the corporate priorities of the Council and be informed by service priorities 
and performance, risk management information, public or service user feedback and 
referrals from Cabinet or Council.  

 
2.2 The work programme is made up of a combination of scrutiny reviews, standing items 

and requested officer reports. This provides the committee with an opportunity to plan 
and regularly review its work across the municipal year. The current work programme 
for the Committee is attached as Appendix 1.  

 
 
3.0 CURRENT / RECENT SCRUTINY REVIEWS - UPDATE  

3.1 Future Council 
Members will be aware that, during September and October 2014, detailed scrutiny 
work took place with members of this Committee focusing particularly on four Future 
Council options, namely: 
• Youth and Play Services 
• Girtrell Court 
• All-age Disability Service 
• West Kirby Marine Lake 

 

Page 157

Agenda Item 15



 

 

The final report was submitted to Cabinet, along with similar reports from the other 
Policy & Performance Committees on 9th December, prior to budget decisions being 
finalised at Council on 15th December.  The relevant budget options agreed by Cabinet 
and endorsed by Council were: 
 

Officer 
Proposal 

Agreed 
Saving 

2015-16 2015-16 
Savings Proposal 

£000s £000s 
Youth and Play 450 0 
All Age Disability 
Service 

600 600 

West Kirby Marine Lake 25 25 
Girtrell Court 385 385 
Sub Total 1,460 1,010 

  
 

3.2 Safeguarding Children Scrutiny Review 
Panel members met recently to assess progress to date with this review and plan the 
remaining activities. A further three evidence-gathering sessions will be scheduled prior 
to the review being concluded before the end of the municipal year. Future sessions will 
include a meeting with children and families who have experience of the system.  
 

3.3 Commissioning community services, managing the market and reducing reliance on 
residential and nursing care services  
The Committee’s annual work program includes a review of the relationship between 
the provision of care in the community and the necessity for admission of people to 
residential and nursing homes and possibly to hospital. A report can be found as a 
separate item on the agenda for this meeting regarding this topic. Members may wish 
to determine whether to form a task & finish group to undertake further detailed work.  
  
 
 

4.0 REPORTS DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS SINCE THE LAST COMMITTEE MEETING 

4.1 At a previous meeting, Committee agreed, in principle, that in order to reduce the 
number of agenda items at meetings, some reports will be distributed to Committee 
Members outside the committee schedule. In order to maintain public transparency, it 
was also agreed that all reports dealt with in this way will be highlighted in this report. 

 
4.2 Since the last Committee meeting, no reports have been distributed to members in this 

way.  
 
 
5.0 SPOTLIGHT SESSIONS 

5.1 At a previous meeting, Committee agreed, in principle, for members to hold Spotlight 
sessions, which, in an informal setting, will enable a topic to be explored in greater 
detail than time would allow during a formal Committee meeting.  

 
 

Page 158



 

 

 
5.2 Two sessions have been held recently, both of which were learning events for 

members: 
• An update of the provisions of the Children and Families Act 2014 – Led by Julia 

Hassall (27th November 2014) 
• Proposals for the implementation of the Care Act 2014 – Led by Jon Goldie and 

Graham Hodkinson (8th January 2015) 
  It was proposed that a further Spotlight session regarding the Care Act should be held 

in approximately six months. The work programme has been amended accordingly.  
  
5.3  Future sessions are proposed as follows: 

• An information session led by CRI, the providers of drug and alcohol services 
(21st January 2015)  

• NHS & Social Care Integration plus Vision 2018 – Led by Graham Hodkinson 
(Date to be confirmed in 2015) 

 
 
6.0 ATTAINMENT SUB-COMMITTEE –  

6.1 The latest meeting of the Attainment Sub-Committee was held on 10th December. The 
minutes of that meeting are included as a separate item on the agenda for this meeting. 
The next meeting of the Attainment Sub-Committee is scheduled for 4th March 2015.  

 
 
7.0 HEALTH & CARE PERFORMANCE PANEL 

7.1 Two meetings of the Health & Care Performance Panel have been held recently. The 
meeting held on 19th November focused on care home issues. The subsequent meeting 
held on 11th December included reports following recent CQC inspections of two local 
health providers, namely, Wirral Community Trust and Wirral University Teaching 
Hospital. Reports from those meetings can be found as a separate item on the agenda 
for this meeting. 
 

7.2 The next meeting of the Panel is arranged for 4th February at which home care 
provision will be reviewed as will performance measures for the health sector.  

 
 
8.0 CLATTERBRIDGE CANCER CENTRE – PROPOSED RE-ORGANISATION OF 

SERVICES 

8.1 Members will be aware of the proposal to re-configure the services provided by 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre (CCC). A joint health scrutiny committee, comprising 
members from across Cheshire and Merseyside, has been appointed to scrutinise the 
proposals in detail. Wirral Council was represented on the joint committee by 
Councillors Moira McLaughlin and Wendy Clements. The administration for the joint 
committee was provided by Liverpool City Council. Copies of the meeting agendas, 
reports and minutes are available on the following link: 
http://councillors.liverpool.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1445&Year=0 

 
The joint committee has now concluded their work and a report can be found as a 
separate item on the agenda for this meeting.  

 
 

Page 159



 

 

 

9.0 PROGRESS IMPLEMENTING PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS  

9.1 The outstanding recommendations from previous scrutiny reviews for this Committee 
relate to the following Reviews completed in the previous municipal year. It has 
previously been agreed by members that these scrutiny reports will be monitored as 
follows: 

• Outcomes for Looked After Children – An update report was provided to 
members of this Committee at the meeting held on 2nd December 2014. 
Members requested a further update in approximately one year’s time (that is, 
end of 2015).    

• Implications of the Francis Report for Wirral - referred to the Health and Care 
Performance Panel for initial consideration. This report was discussed by Panel 
members at a meeting held on 20th October and a further update will be provided 
to a future meeting of the Panel.    

• Quality Assurance and Standards in Care Homes - referred to the Health and 
Care Performance Panel for initial consideration. This report was discussed by 
Panel members at a meeting held on 19th November 2014 and a further update 
was requested by members in mid-2015.   

 
 

10.0 FRAMEWORK FOR EFFECTIVE WORKING BETWEEN THE HEALTH & 

WELLBEING BOARD, HEALTHWATCH AND HEALTH SCRUTINY  

10.1 The Robert Francis report stressed the necessity “to promote the coordination and 
cooperation between local Healthwatch, Health & Wellbeing Boards and local 
government scrutiny committees”. A meeting between representatives of health 
scrutiny, Healthwatch and the Health & Wellbeing Board to propose areas for 
collaborative working and avoid duplication of effort had been scheduled for 5th 
December 2014. However, this meeting had to be cancelled and has now been re-
arranged for 4th February 2015.   
 

 
11.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

11.1 Members are requested to approve the updated Families and Wellbeing Policy & 
Performance Committee work programme for 2014/15 as shown in the appendix, 
making any necessary amendments. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Alan Veitch 
  Scrutiny Support 
  0151 691 8564 
  email:  alanveitch@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 160



2014-15 Families and Wellbeing Policy & Performance Committee - Work Programme Updated - 20/01/2015

Committee Dates Tues 8th 
Tues   
9th 

Mon    
3rd

Tues  
2nd

Mon   
2nd

Mon 
13th

Scheduled Reviews

Safeguarding Children Cllr Moira McLaughlin Agreed by P&P 
Committee on 5th Dec 

2013
Domestic Violence Cllr Janette Williamson Agreed by P&P 

Committee on 9th Sept 
2013

Future Council options Cllr Moira McLaughlin Part of Future Council 
process

Complete - Report to be submitted to Cabinet on 
09/12/14. 

Reducing hospital admission and dependency on 
nursing and residential home for older people 

Proposed by 
Spokespersons - July 

2013

12/08/14 - Spokespersons agreed to prioritise this 
review for early 2015

Impact Report from previous In-depth Reviews

Looked After Children Review Committee (02/12/14) requested future progress 
report in Dec 2015

Implications of the Francis Report for Wirral 12/08/14 - Spokespersons agreed to refer this item 
to the Health & Care Performance Panel. A report 
was presented to the Panel on 20/10/14.

Review of Co-optees 12/08/14 - Spokespersons agreed to remove this 
item from the 2014/15 work programme

Quality Assurance and Standards in Care Homes 12/08/14 - Spokespersons agreed to refer this item 
to the Health & Care Performance Panel. A report 
is due to be discussed by the Panel on 19/11/14.

Reports Requested to Committee

Families and Wellbeing Departmental Plan Clare Fish Complete

Cheshire, Warrington & Wirral Area Team of NHS 
England, Two Year Plan (to include proposed service 
reviews)

Andrew Crawshaw Item requested by NHS 
England Area Team 

Complete, although NHS England Area Team will 
update members during the next 2 years regarding 
specific projects

Clatterbridge Cancer Centre - Restructuring proposals 
(Are the proposals a substantial variation to service for 
Wirral?

Jacqueline Robinson Item offered by 
Clatterbridge Cancer 

Centre

08/07/14 - Members agreed that the proposals 
were a substantial variation to service. Wirral will 
participate in the proposed joint scrutiny 
arrangements across Merseyside and Cheshire 
Local Authorities

Future Council - outline of process Further scrutiny of specific Future Council options 
/ proposals will take place during Sept / Oct 2014 

Community Dental Service Procurement Richard Freeman Item requested by NHS 
England Area Team 

Complete

Specialised Commisioning Richard Freeman Item requested by NHS 
England Area Team 

Complete

Traded Services - proposed changes to service delivery Clare Fish / David Armstrong Committee (02/12/14) requested future progress 
updates

Safeguarding Annual Report 2013/14 Julia Hassall / Graham Hodkinson Proposed by 
Spokespersons 16th Dec 

2013

Complete

Leisure Review Clare Fish

All-age Disability Service Julia Hassall / Graham Hodkinson

Anti-social Behaviour, emphasising on youth Julia Hassall Agreed by P&P 
Committee 28th Jan 2014

Child Poverty Strategy - update Julia Hassall

Early Years and Children's Centres Julia Hassall Agreed by 
Spokespersons 6th Nov 

2014

Deferred due to the call-in of the Cabinet decision 
of 11th September

An asset based approach to support: 'Using social care 
resources effectively to transform lives

Graham Hodkinson Agreed by 
Spokespersons 6th Nov 

2014

Complete

Sexual Health Service - Proposed service change Fiona Johnstone / Julie Graham

Wirral University Teaching Hospital - Cost Improvement 
Plan 

Requested by Chair, 11th 
Dec 2014

Wirral University Teaching Hospital - A&E targets Agreed by 
Spokespersons 7th Jan 

2015

Reports to be distributed to Members for information 

Audit on Public Health Annual Report 2012/13 (Social 
Isolation) - The response of partners

Fiona Johnstone / Julie Webster Proposed by 
Spokespersons 16th Dec 

2013
Public Health Annual Report 2013/14 Fiona Johnstone / Julie Webster

Fostering Annual Report Julia Hassall

Adoption Annual Report Julia Hassall

Health & Wellbeing Strategy Fiona Johnstone

Outcome
April
2015

Mar
2015

Dec
2014

Jan
2015

Feb
2015

Key Activities Lead Member / Officer
Nov
2014

May
2014

June
2014

Aug
2014

Oct
2014

July
2014

Sept
2014

Reason for Review

$khz2oura

P
age 161



Outcome
April
2015

Mar
2015

Dec
2014

Jan
2015

Feb
2015

Key Activities Lead Member / Officer
Nov
2014

May
2014

June
2014

Aug
2014

Oct
2014

July
2014

Sept
2014

Reason for Review

Local Government Declaration on Tobacco Control - 
update

Julie Webster Agreed by 
Spokespersons 7th 
January 2014

Referrals from other Committees

NOM - Local Government Declaration on Tobacco 
Control

Fiona Johnstone Agreed by P&P 
Committee 28th Jan 2014

Follow-up Report - proposed Jan 2015

NOM - Becoming a 'Dementia-friendly' Council Proposed: Cllr Tom Anderson; 
Seconded: Cllr Tracey Smith

Referred from Council, 
14th July 2014 

Standing Items

Performance  Dashboard

Financial Monitoring

Policy Update

Special Budget meeting

Spotlight Sessions

Overview of the NHS framework
Fiona Johnstone Agreed by F&W P&P 

Committee 8th July 2014 14th

Proposed implementation of the Care Act 2014 Graham Hodkinson Agreed by F&W P&P 
Committee 8th July 2014 8th

Proposed to hold a follow-up session in approx 6 
months (July 2015)

Children & Families Act - Update Julia Hassall Proposed by 
Spokespersons 10th 

March 2014
27th

CRI - Provider of Drug and Alcohol Service Julie Webster / CRI Agreed by Chair 9th Dec 
2014 21st

NHS & Social Care Integration plus Vision 2018 Graham Hodkinson Proposed by 
Spokespersons 12th 

August 2014

Date to be arranged

Health Inequalities Fiona Johnstone Proposed by F&W P&P 
Committee 8th July 2014

Date to be arranged

Attainment Sub-Committee

Sub-Committee meetings 1st 10th 4th

Health & Care Performance Panel

Panel meetings 20th 19th 11th 4th 1st

$khz2oura

P
age 162


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 MINUTES OF ATTAINMENT SUB COMMITTEE - 10 DECEMBER 2014
	4 Report of the Chair from meetings of the Health & Care Performance Panel held on 19 November 2014 and 11 December 2014
	Health  Care Perf Panel - Notes from mtg on 14 12 11(2)

	5 Sexual Health Service - Proposal for Service Change
	6 Wirral University Teaching Hospital - Cost Improvement Plan
	7.1.2 Month 7 Finance Report

	7 Wirral University Teaching Hospital - Compliance with the 4 Hour Standard
	8 Clatterbridge Cancer Centre Re-organisation Proposals - Outcomes of the  joint Cheshire and Merseyside Scrutiny Review
	9 Commissioning Community Services, Managing the Market and Reducing Reliance on Residential and Nursing Care Services
	10 Leisure Review - Progress Update
	11 Anti-Social Behaviour with an Emphasis on Youth
	12 Child Poverty Strategy
	13 Families and Wellbeing Dashboard (including Public Health)
	Appendix 1 F&WB Performance Report December
	Appendix 2 Action Plan PHCP03 NHS Healthchecks Take-up - December 2014
	Appendix 3 Action Plan Smoking 4weekquits - December 2014
	Appendix 4 Action Plan Opiate users - December 2014
	Appendix 5 Action Plan Timeliness of Adoptions
	Appendix 6 Action Plan Lost Bed Days - December 2014

	14 Financial Monitoring
	15 Work Programme
	F & W work programme 2014-15 (V4.2) - Feb mtg


